
Vestavia Hills 
City Council Agenda 
December 9, 2019 

6:00 PM 

1. Call to Order              

2. Roll Call 

3. Invocation – David Phillips; Vestavia Hills Chaplain  

4. Pledge Of Allegiance  

5. Announcements and Guest Recognition 

6. City Manager’s Report 

7. Councilors’ Reports 

8. Financial Reports – Melvin Turner III, Finance Director 

9. Approval Of Minutes – November 13, 2019 (Regular Meeting); November 18, 2019 

(Work Session); November 25, 2019 (Work Session); November 25, 2019 (Regular 

Meeting); November 26, 2019 (Work Session) 

Old Business 

New Business 

10. Resolution Number 5208 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Issue A 

Refund For Overpayment Of Privilege Licenses/Sales Taxes   

11. Resolution Number 5209 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Issue A 

Refund For Overpayment Of Privilege Licenses/Sales Taxes   

12. Resolution Number 5210 - A Resolution Declaring Certain Personal Property As 

Surplus And Authorizing The City Manager To Sell/Dispose Of Said Property 

13. Resolution Number 5211 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute An 

Easement Agreement For Alabama Power At Wald Park 

14. Resolution Number 5214 – A Resolution Appointing A Member To The Vestavia Hills 

Parks And Recreation Board 

15. Resolution Number 5215 – A Resolution Appointing A Member To The Vestavia Hills 

Library Board 

16. Ordinance Number 2903 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Execution And Delivery Of 

An Agreement For Access Easement, Improvement, Temporary Construction 

Easement, Maintenance And Shared Parking Easement By And Between Dolly Ridge 

Development, LLC And The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama 

New Business (Requesting Unanimous Consent) 



First Reading (No Action To Be Taken At This Meeting) 

1. Resolution Number 5212 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Purchase 

Cancer Insurance Coverage For Vestavia Hills Fire Fighters Pursuant To Act 2019-361  

(public hearing) 

2. Resolution Number 5213 – Vacation – Ingress/Egress Easement Located On Lot 5C, 

Patchwork Farms Recorded In Map Book 241, Page 34, Jefferson County Judge Of 

Probate And In A Certain Reciprocal Easement And Maintenance Agreement Of Lots 

5A, 5B And 5C, Patchwork Farms As Recorded In LR201515, Page 14992, Jefferson 

County Judge Of Probate; Christopher LLC, Owner    (public hearing) 

3. Ordinance Number 2900 – Rezoning – 2926 Columbiana Road (2927 Columbiana 

Court); Elevation Apartments (Formerly Windcliff Apartments); Rezone From 

Jefferson County R-4 (Multi-Family Residential) To Vestavia Hills R-5 (Multi-Family 

Residential), Compatible Zoning From A 1983 Annexation; ECG Vestavia, LLC; 

Summit Vestavia I, LLC; Summit Vestavia II, LLC As Tenants In Common, Owners   

(public hearing)    

4. Ordinance Number 2901 – Rezoning For A Revised Site Plan And A Conditional Use 

Approval – 3127 Blue Lake Drive; Lot 10A-, Resurvey Of Lots 8, 9 & 10, Topfield 

Subdivision And Lot 11, Topfield Subdivision; The Purpose Of The Request Is To 

Revise A Site Plan Of A B-1.2 Zoned Development And A Conditional Use Approval 

To Allow An Additional 2,500 Square Foot To Allow For A Total 12,500 Square Foot 

Building; SWBP Investments, LLC, Owners     (public hearing) 

5. Citizens Comments 

6. Motion for Adjournment 

 
 



City Council Minutes 
November 13, 2019 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

NOVEMBER 13, 2019 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 6:00 PM, 
rescheduled from November 11, 2019, following publication and posting pursuant to Alabama 
law.  Mayor Curry called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:    Mayor Ashley C. Curry  

Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Kimberly Cook, Councilor ** 
Paul Head, Councilor 

      George Pierce, Councilor 
       **arrived at 6:20 PM 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Melvin Turner, Finance Director 
      George Sawaya, Asst. Finance Director 
      Dan Rary, Police Chief 
      Jason Hardin, Police Captain 
      Marvin Green, Fire Chief 
      Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
      Cinnamon McCulley, Communications Specialist 
 

Butch Williams; Vestavia Hills Senior Chaplain, led the invocation followed by the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION  
 

 The Mayor stated that only one application was received for the upcoming vacancy of the 
Vestavia Hills Library Board and six applications for Parks and Recreation Board.  
Interviews will be held on the 26th of November for these vacancies. 

 Mr. Pierce recognized Board Member James Robinson who was in attendance 
representing the Chamber of Commerce. 

 Mr. Weaver announced that the Planning and Zoning Commission will meet in regular 
session tomorrow evening at 6 PM in the Council Chamber here at City Hall. 

 Mr. Weaver welcomed Park Board Mitch Bevill to the meeting.  He announced that the 
Parks and and Recreation Board’s regular meeting will be held on November 19, 2019 
beginning at 7 AM in the Executive Conference Room here at City Hall.       

 



City Council Minutes 
November 13, 2019 

Page 2 
 

 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
 Mr. Downes showed the Council and the audience the projected year-end general fund for 

FY 2019 that projected a surplus of approximately $1.4 million.  He stated that the City 
has had a great year.  Mr. Downes stated he would like to suggest taking that healthy 
surplus and transfer some of it to the capital fund to match the expected 20% matches of 
the federal funded budgets that are upcoming.  He stated that will be a future decision of 
the Council and he wanted to introduce it to them as food for thought. 

o The Mayor stated that he would feel better if the City positioned the matches of 
Massey Road and the Pedestrian Bridge over 31 so this sounds like a viable 
proposition. 

 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 

 Mr. Pierce stated that the keynote speaker at the Chamber luncheon was Tony Cooper, 
Executive Director of the Jimmie Hale Mission.  He saluted Mr. Cooper for his work with 
Jimmie Hale missions and the community. 

 Mr. Pierce highlighted several upcoming events from Holidays in the Hills including Shop 
Dine and Play Bingo, November 1-25; Deck the Heights, November 14; Christmas Tree 
Lighting, December 3; Breakfast with Santa, December 7; and the City Christmas Parade 
at Liberty Park Sports Complex on December 8.  He encouraged everyone to eat and shop 
locally in Vestavia Hills. 

 The Mayor stated that the Veterans event held last Thursday was a tremendous success .  
He stated that it highlighted the history of four WWII veterans.  He looks forward to this 
event becoming an annual event. 

o Mr. Weaver echoed the Mayor’s comments stating that the Veterans Day event 
was wonderful.  He commended everyone who put this event together and stated 
that the presentation was very well done and enjoyed by all. 

 
 

FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
 Melvin Turner, III, Finance Director, presented the financial reports for FY2019.  He read 
and explained the closing balances. 
 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of the following meeting were presented for approval:  October 28, 2019 
(Work Session). 
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the October 28, 2019 (Work 

Session); and approve them as amended was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 
Pierce.  Roll call vote as follows: 



City Council Minutes 
November 13, 2019 

Page 3 
 

   Mr. Head – yes   Mr. Pierce – yes    
   Mr. Weaver – yes  Mayor Curry – yes    
        Motion carried. 
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the October 28, 2019 

(Regular Meeting); and approve them as amended was by Mr. Weaver seconded 
by Mr. Pierce.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Head – yes   Mr. Pierce – yes    
   Mr. Weaver – yes  Mayor Curry – yes    
        Motion carried. 
 
 

OLD BUSINESS  
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5194 
 

Resolution Number 5194 – Vacation – Lot Line/Utility Easements Located On Lots 1, 2, 3 
And 4, Block 2, Meadowlawn Estates; 1st Addition; Tiebo, LLC, Owners  
(public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5194 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 

Pierce.  
 
 Mr. Downes stated that these easements exists under a commercial business in Cahaba 
Heights.  The utilities and engineer have signed off and this cleans up that lot. 
 
 Mayor Curry opened the floor for public hearing.  There being no one to further address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as 
follows: 
   Mr. Head – yes   Mr. Pierce – yes    
   Mr. Weaver – yes  Mayor Curry – yes    
        Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5200 
 

Resolution Number 5200 – A Resolution To Reinstate Incentives For Serra Automotive 
Group And Anthony And Mary Margaret Serra For The Purpose Of 
Construction Of Land And Facility Improvements And Conveyance Of 
Property To Be Used For Public Purposes Within The Massey Road Project   
(public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5200 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 

Head.  
 



City Council Minutes 
November 13, 2019 

Page 4 
 

 Mr. Downes gave a brief background of this request on a dealership located at the south 
end of Montgomery Highway, owned by Serra Automotive Group.  In 2012, a previous Council 
entered into an incentive agreement and later, the dealership experienced some flooding and 
closed. Since then, the dealership has done flood mitigation on the property to raise a portion of 
the property above flood elevation and lowering another portion to allow for water retention in 
flooding events in an effort to reopen.  This request is to reinstate the old agreement to commence 
at the day the dealership opens or is validated by the courts.  This agreement was amended to 
include some donation of property on the other side of the creek to be utilized by the City in the 
Massey Road project.   
 
 **Mrs. Cook entered the meeting at 6:20 PM. 
 
 Mr. Pierce asked about the projected opening of the dealership. 
 
 Alton Parker, attorney representing Serra, explained that some landscaping needs to occur 
and then the paving of the parking lot.  Once finished, high-end vehicles will be sold from the lot 
and they anticipate good sales revenue from the property.  He stated Serra will fulfill their 
obligation to grant the right-of-way needed for the Massey Road project. 
 
 Mr. Pierce asked about DRB review. 
 
 Ms. Leavings stated that they have already been to DRB. 
 
 Keith Andrews, 3026 Massey Road, asked how the agreement would be affected if Serra 
sells the property. Mr. Parker stated that if Serra sells the property the agreement would not be 
automatically assigned to the new owner. Mr. Boone noted the agreement could be assigned to 
an affiliate of the owner. 
 
 Mr. Downes explained an assignment clause in the agreement and the intent would be to 
keep an active business operating on this property. 
 
 Discussion ensued as to the reassignment clause of the agreement. 
 
 Mayor Curry opened the floor for public hearing.  There being no one to further address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as 
follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2880 
 

Ordinance Number 2880 - An Ordinance To Amend Section 12-4 Of The Vestavia Hills 
Code Of Ordinances Entitled “Vestavia Hills Athletic Complex Cahaba 
Heights” To Rename The Park As “Cahaba Heights Park”  (public hearing) 



City Council Minutes 
November 13, 2019 

Page 5 
 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2880 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 

Head.  
 
 Mr. Downes stated that the Parks and Recreation Board recommended renaming this park 
so that it is consistent with the naming of other City parks. Signage will include the city’s logo to 
make it clear to the public that it is a Vestavia Hills park. 
 
 Mayor Curry opened the floor for public hearing.  There being no one to further address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as 
follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5196 
 

Resolution Number 5196 – Annexation – 90 Day – 2312 St. Joseph Road; Lot 22, St. Joseph 
Retreat; Vincent And Julie Pappalardo, Owners  (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5196 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mrs. 

Cook.  
 
 Mr. Pierce gave the annexation report for this property with no adverse information given. 
 
 Mr. and Mrs. Pappalardo were present in regard to this request. 
 
 Mayor Curry opened the floor for public hearing for both this resolution and the following 
ordinance.  There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing 
and called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2881 
 

Ordinance Number 2881 – Annexation – Overnight – 2312 St. Joseph Road; Lot 22, St. 
Joseph Retreat; Vincent And Julie Pappalardo, Owners    (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2881 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 

Pierce.  
 



City Council Minutes 
November 13, 2019 

Page 6 
 

 Mayor Curry opened the floor for public hearing.  There being no one to further address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as 
follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5197 
 

Resolution Number 5197 – Annexation – 90 Day – 2801 Gresham Drive; Lot 13, Gresham 
Woods Subdivision; Carla And Robert Ingram Jr., Owners   (public hearing) 

 
 This request was withdrawn by the applicant. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2881 
 

Ordinance Number 2881 – Annexation – Overnight – 2801 Gresham Drive; Lot 13, 
Gresham Woods Subdivision; Carla And Robert Ingram Jr., Owners   (public 
hearing) 

 
 This request was withdrawn by the applicant. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5198 
 

Resolution Number 5198 – Annexation – 90 Day – 2637 Alta Glen Drive; Jimit Parekh And 
Pallavi Shah, Owners   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5198 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 

Head.  
 
 Mr. Pierce gave the annexation report for this property with no adverse information given 
other than a narrow road. 
 
 Pallavi Shah was present in regard to this request. 
 
 Mayor Curry opened the floor for public hearing for both this resolution and the following 
ordinance.  There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing 
and called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
November 13, 2019 

Page 7 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2883 
 

Ordinance Number 2883 – Annexation – Overnight – 2637 Alta Glen Drive; Jimit Parekh 
And Pallavi Shah, Owners   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2883 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mrs. 

Cook.  
 
 Mayor Curry opened the floor for public hearing.  There being no one to further address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as 
follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2884 
 

Ordinance Number 2884 – An Ordinance Granting A Non-Exclusive Right-Of-Way Use 
Agreement To Level 3 Communications, LLC, For The Purpose Of 
Constructing And Maintaining A Fiber-Optic Transmission Line Within 
Certain Public Rights-Of-Way Within The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama     
(public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2884 was by Mr. Pierce seconded by Mr. 

Weaver.  
 
 Mr. Downes explained that Level 3 Communications has approached the City for a 
franchise agreement for installation of fiber optic facilities within various rights-of-way of the 
City.  He showed a map which depicts the area.  Mr. Boone has reviewed the proposed agreement 
and finds no issues. 
 
 Mayor Curry opened the floor for public hearing.  There being no one to further address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as 
follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5201 
 

Resolution Number 5201 – A Resolution Changing The Regular Meeting Of The Vestavia 
Hills City Council From December 23, 2019 To December 16, 2019 Beginning 



City Council Minutes 
November 13, 2019 

Page 8 
 

At 6 PM And Rescheduling The December 16, 2019 Work Session From 6 PM 
To 5 PM 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5201 was by Mr. Head seconded by Mr. 

Weaver.   
 
 There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor called for the question.  Roll 
call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5203 
 

Resolution Number 5203 – A Resolution To Allow A New Type Of Employee Contribution 
To The City’s Deferred Compensation Plan Known As A Roth Contribution 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5203 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 

Pierce.   
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this is a 100% employee contribution plan for retirements which 
allows an employee to contribute should he/she choose to do so. 
 
 There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor called for the question.  Roll 
call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5204 
 

Resolution Number 5204 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute And 
Deliver All Agreements And Documents Necessary In Order To Secure 
Water Main Extensions And Three Fire Hydrants At Wald Park 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5204 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mrs. 

Cook.   
 
 Mr. Downes stated this was reviewed by the design team and recommended for approval. 
 
 There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor called for the question.  Roll 
call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 



City Council Minutes 
November 13, 2019 

Page 9 
 

   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5205 
 

Resolution Number 5205 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute And 
Deliver An Intergovernmental Purchasing Agreement With The North 
Alabama Cooperative Purchasing Association 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5205 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 

Pierce.   
 
 Mr. Downes stated that the FY2020 budget allowed the purchase of vehicles and since the 
state’s bid list is behind, the only option found would be to purchase through this coop.  He stated 
that the City belongs to several cooperatives like this.  This allows the City to get into line for 
first come first purchase. 
 
 There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor called for the question.  Roll 
call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2898 
 

Ordinance Number 2898 - An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver Agreements With The Vestavia Hills Board Of 
Education Regarding Access To The School System’s Live Feed Security 
System 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2898 was by Mrs. Cook seconded by Mr. 

Head.   
 
 Mr. Downes stated that these agreements allow the City’s police department and SROs to 
be treated as school employees in order to view live feeds of various school cameras. 
 
 There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor called for the question.  Roll 
call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS (UNANIMOUS CONSENT REQUESTED) 
 



City Council Minutes 
November 13, 2019 

Page 10 
 

 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 The Mayor passed the gavel and Mr. Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem, who announced that the 
following resolutions and/or ordinances will be presented at a public hearing at the Council’s next 
regular meeting on November 25, 2019, at 6:00 PM. 

 Resolution Number 5202 – A Resolution To Provide Tier I Benefits To Tier II Plan 
Members Pursuant To Alabama Act 2019-132   (public hearing)   

 Ordinance Number 2502-A – An Ordinance Amending Ordinance Number 2502 To 
Further Amend Chapter 8 Of The Vestavia Hills Code Of Ordinances Entitled “License 
And Business Regulations” To Add An Article To Establish A NAICS Code, Operating 
Standards And Definitions For Mobile Food Units Operating Within The City Of 
Vestavia Hills, Alabama And To Provide For Penalties For Violation Thereof   (public 
hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2885 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 3516 Squire Lane; Brook And 
Celine Russell, Owners   (public hearing)   

 Ordinance Number 2886 – Rezoning – 3516 Squire Lane, Rezone From VH E-2 To 
VH R-1; Brook And Celine Russell, Owners  (public hearing)      

 Ordinance Number 2887 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 929 Mountain Branch Circle; 
Lot 40, Mountain Branch Sub; Honeycutt Real Estate Holdings, Owners    (public 
hearing)   

 Ordinance Number 2888 – Rezoning – 929 Mountain Branch Circle; Lot 40, Mountain 
Branch Sub; Rezone From JC R-1 To VH R-2; Honeycutt Real Estate Holdings 
(Owners)  (public hearing)    

 Ordinance Number 2889 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 2790 Acton Place; Hugh 
Humphrey, Owner    (public hearing)   

 Ordinance Number 2890 – Rezoning – 2790 Acton Place; Rezone From JC R-1 To VH 
R-2; Hugh Humphrey, Owner   (public hearing)   

 Ordinance Number 2891 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 2606 Acton Road; Lot 5, 
Altadena Valley Country Club; Mark And Jennifer Weldon  (public hearing)    

 Ordinance Number 2892 – Rezoning – 2606 Acton Road; Lot 5, Altadena Valley 
Country Club; Rezone from Jefferson County Agriculture to VH A; Mark and Jennifer 
Weldon    (public hearing)   

 Ordinance Number 2893 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 2429 Kenvil Circle; Lot 36, 
Res Of Lots 18, 19, 20, 33, 34, 46, 47 & 48, Buckhead, Second Sector; William Ennis    
(public hearing)   

 Ordinance Number 2894 – Rezoning – 2429 Kenvil Circle; Lot 36, Res Of Lots 18, 19, 
20, 33, 34, 46, 47 & 48, Buckhead, Second Sector; Rezone From Jefferson County E-
2 To VH R-1; William Ennis   (public hearing)   

 Ordinance Number 2895 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 2645 Alta Glen Drive; Paul 
And Gloria Russell    (public hearing)   

 Ordinance Number 2896 – Rezoning – 2645 Alta Glen Drive; Rezone From JC E-1 To 
VH E-2; Paul And Gloria Russell   (public hearing)    



City Council Minutes 
November 13, 2019 

Page 11 
 

 Ordinance Number 2897 – Rezoning – 4222 Dolly Ridge Road; Rezone From VH B-
3 To Vestavia Hills B-1.2 For Construction Of A Commercial Building With A 
Residential Unit On 2nd Floor; Timothy Higgins, Owner    (public hearing)   

 Ordinance Number 2899 - An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager 
To Execute And Deliver An Agreement With Jefferson County Commission To Join 
A Jefferson County GIS Consortium For The Utilization Of GIS Planimetric Data Over 
The Next 3 Years   (public hearing) 

 
CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 
 None. 
 
 At 6:48 PM, Mr. Pierce made a motion to adjourn.  The meeting adjourned at 6:49 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



City Council Work Session Minutes 
Page 1 

 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

WORK SESSION 
 

NOVEMBER 18, 2019 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in a regular scheduled work session on this 
day in the Executive Conference Room at 6:00 PM, following posting/publication as 
required by Alabama law.  The City Clerk checked the roll with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Ashley C. Curry 
      Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 
      Kimberly Cook, Councilor 
      Paul J. Head, Councilor 
      George Pierce, Councilor 
  
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager  
      Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Cinnamon McCulley, Communications  
       Specialist  
      Dan Rary, Police Chief 
      Jason Hardin, Police Captain 

Ryan Farrell, Fire Marshal 
 
 The Mayor called the work session to order.   
 
 

UPDATE ON HUMAN TRAFFICKING 
 
 The Mayor announced that he is working with Barbara Fowler, the Co-Convener 
of Child Trafficking Solutions Project, Community Engagement and Awareness.  He stated 
that he would like to see the City become the first Human Trafficking-Free zone.  He 
provided statistics regarding human trafficking and indicated that human trafficking is the 
second-largest international problem and might soon surpass drugs as the largest.  The 
average age of victim is 5-12 years old.  Birmingham is a major hub with the intersection 
of two major highways running north/south and east/west.  The Mayor stated that, last 
August, a joint task forced took down 48 traffickers, and 17 of those were in Vestavia Hills.  
This is a major problem that is right here in this area. 
 



City Council Work Session Minutes 
Page 2 

 

 Police Chief Rary stated that the overview of activities within the City has 
historically been centered in the southern part of the City on Highway 31.  This program 
will allow training of first responders and City employees to help spot and help these 
victims. 
 
 In attendance were:   Barbara Fowler, Jan Bell, Jordan Giddens and Julia Myers, 
all of the Child Trafficking Solutions Project. 
 
 Mrs. Myers stated that there are several “momma bears” and active leaders in this 
community and she looks forward to inspiring an active social change in battling this issue. 
 
 Mrs. Fowler stated that this is the fastest growing industry with statistics surpassing 
previous years.  This coalition has been instrumental in the passage of four trafficking laws 
through the Alabama Legislature which will provide for more education and training within 
communities. 
 
 Jordan Giddens stated their primary goal would be to educate the community, the 
employees, and first responders to allow for a systemic change.  He explained that the 
Proclamation scheduled for Monday will contain three items of importance:  (1) establish 
a Trafficking-Free zone in the City; (2) educate City staff in recognizing trafficking 
victims; and (3) Implement policy within the City to prohibit purchasing of sex at work. 
 
 The Mayor stated that the timing of these actions help to target the 2021 World 
Games where the supply and demand of human trafficking increases.  Where there are 
crowds, there is trafficking. 
 
 Discussion ensued regarding support of the program, training of employees, and 
expansion of the project to include the Chamber of Commerce, civic groups, businesses, 
parents, etc. 
 
 

UPDATE ON POSSIBLE DEVELOPMENT ON MONTGOMERY HWY 
 
 Mr. Downes introduced Larry Maddox.  The Maddox family owns property on 
Montgomery Highway, the former site of the Motor Lodge.  He stated that a recent 
development opportunity has been reviewed and will allow for the subdivision of the 
Maddox property into two lots.  One lot would be developed as a restaurant and the other 
lot will be held by the Maddox family until they determine how to use it.  Mr. Boone has 
drafted an agreement that would allow the Council to forgive one-half of the $75,000 lien 
that is currently recorded on the property in order to allow the sale and development of the 
first lot.  The agreement goes further to limit the second lot--the lot to be retained by the 
Maddox family--to only permanent uses from a building as defined in the City zoning code. 
 
 Mr. Maddox stated he has owned the property since 1969 and, following the 
demolition of the motel, they have allowed for several temporary uses on the property such 



City Council Work Session Minutes 
Page 3 

 

as mobile food trucks, sale of Christmas trees and various other tent sales.  He asked that 
this agreement be amended to allow these temporary uses to continue. 
 
 Discussion ensued.  The Council thanked Mr. Maddox for his continued ownership 
and diligence to increase the value and revenues of the property and indicated that the 
agreement would be deliberated at Monday’s meeting of the Council. 
 
 

LEAF COLLECTION SERVICES 
 
 Brian Davis, Public Services Director, explained the background of leaf collection 
services within the City.  He stated that in 200-2009, the vacuuming of leaves was 
discontinued which saved the City a good deal of money.  It also kept loose leaves from 
blowing into the streets and washing into the City’s storm sewer system, causing blockages.  
He stated that there has been some interest in the City beginning a City leaf-vacuuming 
program.  One truck would cost approximately $175,000.  The City would need a minimum 
of two trucks along with personnel to man the trucks for this to occur. 
 
 Discussion ensued.  The Council reiterated that lawn services should be taking care 
of their debris and not blowing it into the streets and gutters. 
 
 

CHAMBER OF COMMERCE STRATEGIC PLAN 
 
 Mr. Pierce indicated that the Chamber is finalizing their five-year strategic plan. He 
stated that he would forward copies to the Council when it is released. 
 
 

MEETING DATE CHANGE 
 
 Mrs. Leavings advised the Council that the last meeting date of the year was 
scheduled for December 23.  She stated that is just before the City closes for the Christmas 
holidays and wanted to know if the Council wished to move the meeting to the 16th and 
move up that night’s work session. 
 
 Following discussion, the Council asked that a resolution be put onto the agenda 
for consideration. 
 
 There being no further business, the work session adjourned at 7:19 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
 



City Council Work Session Minutes 
Page 4 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



City Council Work Session Minutes 
Page 1 

 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

WORK SESSION 
 

NOVEMBER 25, 2019 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in a regular scheduled work session on this 
day in the Executive Conference Room at 5:00 PM, following posting/publication as 
required by Alabama law.  The City Clerk checked the roll with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Ashley C. Curry 
      Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 
      Kimberly Cook, Councilor 
      Paul J. Head, Councilor 
      George Pierce, Councilor 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager  
      Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Melvin Turner, Finance Director 

Jason Hardin, Police Captain 
 
 The Mayor called the work session to order.   
 
 

UPDATE ON INFRASTRUCTURE AND COMMUNITY SPACES PLAN 
 
 Raynor Boles, TCU, gave an update on the following Community Spaces Projects: 
 

 Community Center – TCU continues value engineering efforts in order to reduce 
the costs of the renovations of the former Gold’s Gym located adjacent to City Hall.  
He showed architectural renderings showing revisions to the exterior of the building 
in order to save costs but not sacrifice programming.  He detailed the changes in 
the exterior as well as interior to show a more industrial look than a mimicked wood 
interior as with City Hall. Mrs. Cook requested that some amount of stacked stone 
be considered as an exterior design element to maintain a consistent appearance 
with other City buildings. 

 New Merkel House – TCU showed architectural renderings, which include a one-
story building with a stone chimney, porch, warming kitchen, office, and multi-
purpose room. Mrs. Cook asked if a kitchen pass-through serving bar could be 



City Council Work Session Minutes 
Page 2 

 

added and discussion ensued about the current kitchen wall functioning as a 
viewing wall for projected presentations. 

 Wald Park is continuing to progress.  The swimming pools have been dug and 
plumbing is ongoing.  TCU indicated they are attempting to stay on schedule. 

 Cahaba Heights Park – Work is progressing as planned. 
 

Discussion ensued into each project update. 
 
 
 There being no further business, the work session adjourned at 5:47 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



City Council Minutes 
November 25, 2019 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

NOVEMBER 25, 2019 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 6:00 PM, 
following publication and posting pursuant to Alabama law.  Mayor Curry called the meeting to 
order and the City Clerk called the roll with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:    Mayor Ashley C. Curry  

Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Kimberly Cook, Councilor 
Paul Head, Councilor 

      George Pierce, Councilor 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Melvin Turner, Finance Director 
      George Sawaya, Asst. Finance Director 
      Jason Hardin, Police Captain 
      Marvin Green, Fire Chief 
      Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
      Cinnamon McCulley, Communications Specialist 
 

Tom Bell; Vestavia Hills Chaplain, led the invocation followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION  
 

 Mrs. Cook welcomed students in attendance. 
 Mr. Pierce welcomed Anna Alfano, VHHS City Youth Connection, as well as Chamber 

Board members Rachel Patterson and Chairman, Gary Jordan.  
o Mr. Jordan stated that the Chamber annually recognizes members in two 

categories:  service and retail.  This year, in the retail category, the Chamber 
recognized Donato’s Pizza and Robert Sullivan, owner.  He stated that Mr. 
Sullivan continually gives back to the community and to the schools.  The other 
recognized member in the service category was Philadelphia Baptist Church.  This 
year this Church hosted Back to School in the Hills and were wonderful hosts for 
such a great event.  These are two examples of exemplary members of the 
Chamber. 



City Council Minutes 
November 25, 2019 

Page 2 
 

 Mr. Pierce announced several upcoming events from the various Holiday in the Hills 
activities.  He encouraged everyone to participate and stated details were on the 
Chamber’s website. 

 Mr. Weaver thanked the number of first responders who were in attendance at the meeting 
tonight. 

 Mr. Head announced that the Council will meet in work session, tomorrow, to interview 
applicants for the upcoming vacancies on the Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Board 
and the Library Board starting at 8 AM. 

 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 
 The Mayor presented a Proclamation designating the City of Vestavia Hills as a “Human 
Trafficking-Free Zone.”  In attendance to receive the Proclamation were:  Jan Bell, Executive 
Director of the Children’s Policy Council of Jefferson County and Co-Chair, Child Trafficking 
Solutions Project, TraffickingFree Zone.; Jordan Giddens, Community Engagement Coordinator 
of the Children’s Policy Council of Jefferson County and Co-Convener, Child Trafficking 
Solutions Project, Public Policy, TraffickingFree Zone; Julia Myers, Anti-Human Trafficking 
Chairman, Junior League of Birmingham, Co-Convener, Child Trafficking Solutions Project, 
Community Engagement and Awareness, TraffickingFree Zone, community member and active 
leader in Vestavia Hills; and Barbara Fowler, Human Trafficking advocate, Owner, Fowler Davis, 
LLC and Fowler Davis Entertainment, award-winning film producer, Hidden Gem, a short film 
on human trafficking in the U.S., Co-Convener, Child Trafficking Solutions Project, Community 
Engagement and Awareness, TraffickingFree Zone. 
 
 The Mayor explained the importance of this designation and gave current statistics 
regarding how sex trafficking trade remains today.  The Birmingham area is an important hub 
with the intersection of Interstates 20 and 65.  He described a recent task force undercover 
operation that made many arrests--so many, in fact, the jails were full.  Arrests also occurred in 
several sister cities in the Birmingham area.  He explained the City decided to partner with these 
advocacy groups in order to fight human trafficking.  This includes training the City’s employees, 
especially the first responders, on identifying and helping anyone who might be trafficked. 
 
 Mrs. Fowler thanked the Mayor and Council for the support and participation in the 
project.  Jared echoed her remarks and stated that they look forward to working with the City to 
achieve this goal. 
 
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

 Mr. Downes stated that last year the City paved 20 +/- miles of roadway and, this year, 
there is even more money for paving.  The contractor will begin paving around Shades 
Crest and Buckhead next week, and Ashley Woods is also on the short list of paving 
projects. 

 
 



City Council Minutes 
November 25, 2019 

Page 3 
 

 
 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 

 Mrs. Cook stated that she attended today’s School Board meeting and got interesting 
updates on school construction projects, specifically regarding school recreational fields, 
traffic and new school openings.  She stated that the anticipated opening of the former 
Berry baseball fields is January 8.  December 18 the completion date of the lane addition 
on Columbiana Road, along with accompanying signal changes. Commuters should 
expect delays during the first part of December as the traffic changes are constructed.  The 
new Pizitz campus is expected to have 70% capacity, which is an accomplishment the 
school system has not seen in recent memory.  Stakeholders will be invited to tour the 
facility this upcoming spring with a grand opening expected August 2020, which 
coincides with the school system’s 50th anniversary. 

 Mrs. Cook stated that the Board also approved some agreements previously approved by 
the Council, regarding police access to the school system’s live security video-feed. 

 Mr. Pierce stated that the Chamber Board, last week, approved a five-year strategic plan 
for the Chamber of Commerce.  This has been sent to the Council for review. 

 Mr. Weaver stated that there are several zoning requests on the agenda tonight which have 
been reviewed by the Planning and Zoning Commission. 

 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The Mayor indicated that the Council has not had a chance to review the minutes and 
recommended that they be approved at the next meeting. 
 
 

OLD BUSINESS  
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5202 
 

Resolution Number 5202 – A Resolution To Provide Tier I Benefits To Tier II Plan 
Members Pursuant To Alabama Act 2019-132   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5202 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 

Pierce.  
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this Resolution allows the City’s Tier II employees to opt into the 
Tier I pension plan through RSA.  He explained that Act 2019-132, passed by the legislature in 
2019, allows this opportunity.  He stated that this will help the City in recruitment and that the 
benefits outweigh the cost, giving the City an advantage in recruitment and retention of younger 
employees. He stated the City wants to recruit and retain the best employees, and this is an 
important step to make that a reality. 
 



City Council Minutes 
November 25, 2019 

Page 4 
 

 Mrs. Cook stated that this was discussed at work session and the Council heard from 
employees about how important this is for them. 
 
 Mr. Weaver stated that any time this city has a way of distinguish itself from other cities, 
it needs to be addressed.  He stated he feels this is best for recruiting and retaining employees. 
 
 Mr. Pierce thanked the many first responders who were present in the meeting in regard 
to this issue. 
 
 Mayor Curry stated that the Council had a lot of input from both inside and outside the 
city and he feels this is best for the City.   
 
 Mr. Head echoed the Mayors comments. 
 
 Mayor Curry opened the floor for public hearing.  There being no one to further address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as 
follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2502-A 
 

Ordinance Number 2502-A – An Ordinance Amending Ordinance Number 2502 To 
Further Amend Chapter 8 Of The Vestavia Hills Code Of Ordinances 
Entitled “License And Business Regulations” To Add An Article To Establish 
A NAICS Code, Operating Standards And Definitions For Mobile Food Units 
Operating Within The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama And To Provide For 
Penalties For Violation Thereof   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2502-A was by Mr. Weaver, seconded by 

Mrs. Cook.  
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this revised ordinance changes the existing food truck ordinance 
to mandate that all trucks and associated equipment, tables, tents, etc., are removed from the 
property when a truck is not operating. 
 
 Mayor Curry opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to further address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as 
follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
November 25, 2019 

Page 5 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2885 
 

Ordinance Number 2885 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 3516 Squire Lane; Brook And 
Celine Russell, Owners   (public hearing)   

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2885 was by Mr. Weaver, seconded by Mr. 

Pierce.  
 
 The Mayor stated that the ordinances to be considered next will each include a 90-day 
annexation and compatible rezoning of the same property. He stated that the public hearing will 
be combined for each annexation/rezoning ordinance group. 
 
 Mr. Pierce gave the report from the Annexation Committee with no adverse information 
found.  This is the 90-day final annexation of the same property. 
 
 Mayor Curry opened the floor for public hearing for this and the following ordinance.  
There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called 
for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2886 
 

Ordinance Number 2886 – Rezoning – 3516 Squire Lane, Rezone From VH E-2 To VH R-1; 
Brook And Celine Russell, Owners  (public hearing)    

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2886 was by Mrs. Cook, seconded by Mr. 

Weaver.  
 
 There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor called for the question.  Roll 
call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2887 
 

Ordinance Number 2887 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 929 Mountain Branch Circle; Lot 
40, Mountain Branch Sub; Honeycutt Real Estate Holdings, Owners    (public 
hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2887 was by Mr. Weaver, seconded by Mr. 

Pierce.  



City Council Minutes 
November 25, 2019 

Page 6 
 

 
 Mr. Pierce gave the report from the Annexation Committee with no adverse information 
found.  This is the 90-day final annexation of the same property. 
 
 Mayor Curry opened the floor for public hearing for this and the following ordinance.  
There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called 
for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2888 
 

Ordinance Number 2888 – Rezoning – 929 Mountain Branch Circle; Lot 40, Mountain 
Branch Sub; Rezone From JC R-1 To VH R-2; Honeycutt Real Estate 
Holdings (Owners)  (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2888 was by Mrs. Cook, seconded by Mr. 

Weaver.  
 
 There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor called for the question.  Roll 
call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2889 
 

Ordinance Number 2889 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 2790 Acton Place; Hugh Humphrey, 
Owner    (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2889 was by Mr. Weaver, seconded by Mrs. 

Cook.  
 
 Mr. Pierce gave the report from the Annexation Committee with no adverse information 
found.  This is the 90-day final annexation of the same property. 
 
 Mayor Curry opened the floor for public hearing for this and the following ordinance.  
There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called 
for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 



City Council Minutes 
November 25, 2019 

Page 7 
 

 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 2890 

 
Ordinance Number 2890 – Rezoning – 2790 Acton Place; Rezone From JC R-1 To VH R-2; 

Hugh Humphrey, Owner   (public hearing) 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2890 was by Mrs. Cook, seconded by Mr. 

Weaver.  
 
 There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor called for the question.  Roll 
call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2891 
 

Ordinance Number 2891 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 2606 Acton Road; Lot 5, Altadena 
Valley Country Club; Mark And Jennifer Weldon  (public hearing)    

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2891 was by Mr. Weaver, seconded by Mr. 

Pierce.  
 
 Mr. Pierce gave the report from the Annexation Committee with no adverse information 
found.  This is the 90-day final annexation of the same property. 
 
 Mayor Curry opened the floor for public hearing for this and the following ordinance.  
There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called 
for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2892 
 

Ordinance Number 2892 – Rezoning – 2606 Acton Road; Lot 5, Altadena Valley Country 
Club; Rezone from Jefferson County Agriculture to VH A; Mark and 
Jennifer Weldon    (public hearing)    

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2892 was by Mrs. Cook, seconded by Mr. 

Weaver.  
 
 There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor called for the question.  Roll 
call vote as follows: 



City Council Minutes 
November 25, 2019 

Page 8 
 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2893 
 

Ordinance Number 2893 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 2429 Kenvil Circle; Lot 36, Res Of 
Lots 18, 19, 20, 33, 34, 46, 47 & 48, Buckhead, Second Sector; William Ennis    
(public hearing)    

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2893 was by Mrs. Cook, seconded by Mr. 

Weaver.  
 
 Mr. Pierce gave the report from the Annexation Committee with no adverse information 
found.  This is the 90-day final annexation of the same property. 
 
 Mayor Curry opened the floor for public hearing for this and the following ordinance.  
There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called 
for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2894 
 

Ordinance Number 2894 – Rezoning – 2429 Kenvil Circle; Lot 36, Res Of Lots 18, 19, 20, 
33, 34, 46, 47 & 48, Buckhead, Second Sector; Rezone From Jefferson County 
E-2 To VH R-1; William Ennis   (public hearing)   

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2894 was by Mrs. Cook, seconded by Mr. 

Weaver.  
 
 There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor called for the question.  Roll 
call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2895 
 

Ordinance Number 2895 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 2645 Alta Glen Drive; Paul And 
Gloria Russell    (public hearing)   



City Council Minutes 
November 25, 2019 

Page 9 
 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2895 was by Mrs. Cook, seconded by Mr. 

Weaver.  
 
 Mr. Pierce gave the report from the Annexation Committee with no adverse information 
found.  This is the 90-day final annexation of the same property. 
 
 Mayor Curry opened the floor for public hearing for this and the following ordinance.  
There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called 
for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2896 
 

Ordinance Number 2896 – Rezoning – 2645 Alta Glen Drive; Rezone From JC E-1 To VH 
E-2; Paul And Gloria Russell   (public hearing)  

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2896 was by Mrs. Cook, seconded by Mr. 

Weaver.  
 
 There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor called for the question.  Roll 
call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2897 
 

Ordinance Number 2897 – Rezoning – 4222 Dolly Ridge Road; Rezone From VH B-3 To 
Vestavia Hills B-1.2 For Construction Of A Commercial Building With A 
Residential Unit On 2nd Floor; Timothy Higgins, Owner    (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2897 was by Mr. Weaver, seconded by Mr. 

Pierce  
 
 Mr. Weaver stated that the Planning and Zoning Commission voted to recommend 
approval of this request.  He explained that the reason for the zoning classification would allow 
the owner to build a two-story commercial building with retail on ground floor and a living unit 
on the second floor.  There are covenants attached to this, which should be recorded prior to the 
ordinance taking effect. 
 



City Council Minutes 
November 25, 2019 

Page 10 
 

 Tim Higgins, owner of the property, explained the covenants which would prohibit the 
living unit from being rented out like an apartment. 
 
 Mayor Curry opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
 Keith Russell 235 East Green, stated he owns the property adjacent to this and he is aware 
that the City tried to put parking along this roadway and that didn’t work out.  He stated he has 
no objections to this request, however, it leaves him with insufficient parking.  He stated that he 
will have a hardship on parking on his property when he gets around to developing it.  He stated 
that when they built the first building, they left dirt on his property and he wants to ensure 
retaining walls and drainage required for this development won’t affect his property. 
 
 Rosemarie Putman, 3001 Manor Brook Drive, stated that Manor Brook Drive is the only 
access for several homes and she wanted to be assured that this development will not block their 
street for long periods of time with this construction. 
 
 Mr. Russell stated he has agreed the developer, Higgins, may access part of Russell’s lot 
to assist in construction and to prevent the need to block the road. 
 
 Mrs. Cook stated she is happy to see neighbors working together for the good of the 
community. 
 
 There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing 
and called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2899 
 

Ordinance Number 2899 - An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver An Agreement With Jefferson County Commission To 
Join A Jefferson County GIS Consortium For The Utilization Of GIS 
Planimetric Data Over The Next 3 Years   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2899 was by Mr. Weaver, seconded by Mrs. 

Cook.  
 
 Mr. Downes stated that participation within this consortium will enhance the City’s GIS 
system with better planimetric information. This will assist the City’s emergency services, 
engineering and other departments by detailing more accurate property lines, infrastructure, and 
other geographic elements. The package includes annual updates for the next 3 years.  This has a 
shared cost with other entities and the City’s share is 5% with two escalating payments over the 
next three years.  The value of this information is immeasurable. 
 



City Council Minutes 
November 25, 2019 

Page 11 
 

 Leonid Mazur, Jefferson County Informational Services, was present in regard to this 
request. 
 
 Mayor Curry opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to further address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as 
follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5206 
 

Resolution Number 5206 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Transfer Fifty 
Percent Of The FY2019 General Fund Surplus To The City’s Capital Projects 
Fund 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5206 was by Mr. Weaver, seconded by Mrs. 

Cook.   
 
 Mr. Downes stated that the Council was briefed in work session of the City’s expected 
surplus and looking into the future, a portion of this needed to be put into Capital Projects in order 
to fund the 20% matches in upcoming ALDOT projects. 
 
 Mrs. Cook asked about specific projects. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that projects include: the Highway 31 pedestrian bridge, the Massey 
Road project as well as the Sicard Hollow pedestrian tunnel in construction now. 
 
 Mr. Pierce stated many cities would love to have such a surplus at the end of the year. 
 
 There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor called for the question.  Roll 
call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2902 
 

Ordinance Number 2902 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver An Agreement With Maddox Enterprises, LP And The 
City Of Vestavia Hills In Order To Forgive A Portion Of A Lien An 



City Council Minutes 
November 25, 2019 

Page 12 
 

Authorizing The Development Of Lot 1 Along With Designating Certain 
Prohibited Uses On Lot 2 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2902 was by Mr. Weaver, seconded by Mrs. 

Cook.   
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this was discussed at length at the last work session and includes 
an agreement with the Maddox family to forgive half of the $75,000 lien for construction of a 
restaurant and then prohibiting certain uses on the adjoining lot. 
 
 Mrs. Cook stated that this is a great opportunity to jump-start redevelopment in this area. 
 
 There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor called for the question.  Roll 
call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS (UNANIMOUS CONSENT REQUESTED) 
 

 The Mayor opened the floor for unanimous consent for the immediate consideration and 
action of Resolution Number 5206. 
 
MOTION Motion for unanimous consent for immediate consideration and action of 

Resolution Number 5206 was made by Mr. Weaver, seconded by Mrs. Cook.  Roll 
call vote as follows: 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5206 

 
Resolution Number 5207 – A Resolution Declaring Water Damage At The Cahaba Heights 

Police Substation As An Emergency And Authorizing The City Manager To 
Take All Actions Necessary To Repair Said Damage   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5207 was by Mrs. Cook, seconded by Mr. 

Weaver.   
 
 Mr. Downes explained that water damage occurred to the sub-station and needs to be 
addressed. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing. 
 



City Council Minutes 
November 25, 2019 

Page 13 
 

 Donald Harwell, 1357 Willoughby Road, asked the reason for the repairs. 
 
 Mr. Downes indicated there were plumbing problems. 
 
 There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing 
and called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 The Mayor passed the gavel to Mr. Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem, who announced that the 
following resolutions and/or ordinances will be presented at a public hearing at the Council’s 
regular meeting on December 16, 2019, at 6:00 PM. 

 Ordinance Number 2900 – Rezoning – 2926 Columbiana Road (2927 Columbiana 
Court); Elevation Apartments (Formerly Windcliff Apartments); Rezone From 
Jefferson County R-4 (Multi-Family Residential) To Vestavia Hills R-5 (Multi-Family 
Residential), Compatible Zoning From A 1983 Annexation; ECG Vestavia, LLC; 
Summit Vestavia I, LLC; Summit Vestavia II, LLC As Tenants In Common, Owners   
(public hearing)    

 Ordinance Number 2901 – Rezoning For A Revised Site Plan And A Conditional Use 
Approval – 3127 Blue Lake Drive; Lot 10A-, Resurvey Of Lots 8, 9 & 10, Topfield 
Subdivision And Lot 11, Topfield Subdivision; The Purpose Of The Request Is To 
Revise A Site Plan Of A B-1.2 Zoned Development And A Conditional Use Approval 
To Allow An Additional 2,500 Square Foot To Allow For A Total 12,500 Square Foot 
Building; SWBP Investments, LLC, Owners     (public hearing) 

 
CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 
 David Harwell, 1803 Catala Road, asked who monitors the times the mobile food trucks 
are present and operating and who enforces this ordinance. 
 
 Mr. Downes explained that Cpl. Jimmy Coleman enforces the ordinances and, if there is 
a continued violation, it would be tried in court. 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 The Mayor stated that the Council needed to go into Executive Session for a period of 
about 30 minutes to discuss pending litigation.  Mr. Boone, City Attorney, affirmed the reason 
for the Executive Session.  The Mayor stated that there’ll be no business following the Executive 
Session and opened the floor for a motion. 
 



City Council Minutes 
November 25, 2019 

Page 14 
 

MOTION Motion to go into Executive Session for a period of 30 minutes for pending 
litigation was by Mrs. Cook.  Second was by Mr. Weaver.  Roll call vote as 
follows: 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 The Council exited the Chambers and entered into Executive Session at 7:04 PM.  At 
7:30 the Council re-entered the Chambers and the Mayor called the meeting back to order. 
 
 
 At 7:31 PM, Mrs. Cook made a motion to adjourn.  The meeting adjourned at 7:32 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
  
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



City Council Minutes 
Work Session 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

WORK SESSION 
 

NOVEMBER 26, 2019 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in a special work session on this date at 
8:00 AM following posting/publication as required by Alabama law.  The Mayor called 
the meeting to order and the roll with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Ashley C. Curry  

Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Kimberly Cook, Councilor 

      Paul J. Head, Councilor 
George Pierce, Councilor 

 
The Mayor presented the interview schedules for both Parks and Recreation 

applicants and the Library Board applicants and the applicants were interviewed, as 
follows: 
 
Vestavia Hills Library Board 

 Kevin Archer     8:00 AM 
 
Vestavia Hills Park and Recreation Board 

 Donnie Winningham      8:30 AM  
 Shelley Gentle   9:00 AM  
 Lisa Booher   9:30 AM  
 Danny Marshall  10:00 AM  
 Anthony L. Watkins Jr. 10:30 AM  
 Marc Tillis   11:00 AM  

 
The Council interviewed the applicants and advised that appointments would be 

made at the December 9 Council meeting. 
 
 Following interviews, discussion ensued regarding the qualifications of the 
candidates. 
  



City Council Minutes 
Work Session 

Page 2 
 

 
 
 
 There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 11:30 AM. 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor  
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 5208 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ISSUE 
A REFUND ON PRIVILEGE LICENSE AND/OR SALES TAXES 
WHICH WERE REMITTED TO THE CITY IN ERROR 

WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills has received a petition from Vani Inc., requesting 

a refund totaling $8,691.96 due to an error in reported gasoline sales taxes; and 

WHEREAS, the Finance Director has reviewed the petition, investigated and verified that 

the refund is due and payable; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager has also reviewed the petition and recommended a refund; 

and 

WHEREAS, the City Council feel it is in the best public interest to issue a refund to Vani, 

Inc., in the amount of $8,691.96 as requested. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to issue a refund to Vani, Inc., in the amount of

$8,691.96 as requested; and

2. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption and approval.

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 9th day of December, 2019.

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit  - Resolution No. 5208



Exhibit  - Resolution No. 5208



Exhibit  - Resolution No. 5208



Exhibit  - Resolution No. 5208



Exhibit  - Resolution No. 5208



Exhibit  - Resolution No. 5208



Exhibit  - Resolution No. 5208



Exhibit  - Resolution No. 5208



Exhibit  - Resolution No. 5208



RESOLUTION NUMBER 5209 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ISSUE 
A REFUND ON PRIVILEGE LICENSE AND/OR SALES TAXES 
WHICH WERE REMITTED TO THE CITY IN ERROR 

WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills has received a petition from MiniMed Distribution Corp., 

requesting a refund totaling $12,153.86 due to an error in reported tax exempt sales taxes; and 

WHEREAS, the Finance Director has reviewed the petition, investigated and verified that 

the refund is due and payable; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager has also reviewed the petition and recommended a refund; 

and 

WHEREAS, the City Council feel it is in the best public interest to issue a refund to 

MiniMed Distribution Corp., in the amount of $12,153.86 as requested. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to issue a refund to MiniMed Distribution Corp.,

in the amount of $12,153.86 as requested; and

2. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption and approval.

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 9th day of December, 2019.

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5209



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5209



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5209



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5209



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5209



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5209



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5209



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5209



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5209



Resolution Number 5210 
Page 1 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5210 

A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THAT CERTAIN 
PERSONAL PROPERTY IS NOT NEEDED FOR 
PUBLIC OR MUNICIPAL PURPOSES AND 
DIRECTING THE SALE/DISPOSAL OF SAID 
SURPLUS PROPERTY 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, is the owner of personal property 

detailed in the attached “Exhibit A”; and 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that it would be in the best public interest to 

sell or dispose of said property. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to sell or dispose of the above-

referenced surplus personal property; and

2. This Resolution Number 5210 shall become effective immediately upon

adoption and approval.

DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED on this the 9th day of 

December, 2019. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor  

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



VOLENS ET POTENS 
 

 
 

VESTAVIA HILLS FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Marvin Green, Fire Chief 
 
DATE:  December 3, 2019 
 
RE:  Surplus Equipment 
 
 
The Fire Department has purchased a new vehicle which has created a vehicle for disposal. I 
recommend that the 2012 Jeep Liberty Sport, VIN 1C4PJMAKOCW145186 with the City of 
Vestavia Hills property tag #1167 be deemed as surplus and disposed. 
 
 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5210



Resolution Number 5211 
Page 1 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5211 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING ALABAMA POWER COMPANY A 
UTILITY EASEMENT FOR CONNECTION OF ELECTRICAL 
SERVICE  

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to sign an agreement with Alabama

Power Company to grant an easement, right and privilege as described in said

Exhibit A, attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 5211 as if

written fully therein; and

2. Resolution Number 5211 shall become effective immediately upon adoption

and approval.

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 9th day of December, 2019. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5211



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5211



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5211



RESOLUTION NUMBER 5214 

APPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE VESTAVIA HILLS 
PARKS AND RECREATION BOARD 

BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 WHEREAS, ____________________ is hereby appointed as a member of the City 

of Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Board; and 

WHEREAS, the appointment shall be effective January 1, 2020, and shall expire 

December 31, 2025. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this the 10th day of December, 2019. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 5215 
 
 APPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE 

VESTAVIA HILLS LIBRARY BOARD 
 

 BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 WHEREAS, ________________________ is hereby appointed as a member of 

the City of Vestavia Hills Library Board; and 

 WHEREAS, the said appointment shall be effective January 1, 2020 and shall 

expire December 31, 2024. 

 APPROVED AND ADOPTED this the 9th day of December, 2019. 

 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2903 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2903 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY 
OF AN AGREEMENT FOR ACCESS EASEMENT, IMPROVEMENT, 
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT, MAINTENANCE AND 
SHARED PARKING EASEMENT BY AND BETWEEN DOLLY RIDGE 
DEVELOPMENT, LLC AND THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 
HILLS, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized and directed to execute and
deliver an Agreement for Access Easement, Improvement, Temporary Construction Easement, 
Maintenance and Shared Parking Easement by and between Dolly Ridge Development, LLC, an 
Alabama limited liability company, and the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

2. A copy of the Agreement for Access Easement, Improvement, Temporary
Construction Easement, Maintenance and Shared Parking Easement is attached hereto, marked as 
Exhibit A and is incorporated into this resolution by reference as though set out fully herein. 

3. This resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption and approval.

RESOLVED, DONE, ADOPTED and ORDERED, on this the 9TH day of December, 
2019. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY:  

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2903



 
 

This instrument was prepared by: 
Patrick H. Boone, Attorney at Law 
705 New South Federal Savings Building 
215 Richard Arrington, Jr. Boulevard North 
Birmingham, Alabama 35203-3720 
Telephone No. 205-324-2018 
 
STATE OF ALABAMA 
 
JEFFERSON COUNTY  

 
AGREEMENT FOR ACCESS EASEMENT, IMPROVEMENT,  

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT,  
MAINTENANCE AND SHARED PARKING EASEMENT  

 
 THIS AGREEMENT FOR ACCESS EASEMENT, IMPROVEMENT, TEMPORARY 
CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT, MAINTENANCE AND SHARED PARKING EASEMENT 
(“Agreement”), is made and entered into on this the _________ day of December, 2019 by and 
between Dolly Ridge Development, LLC, an Alabama limited liability company (“DRD”) and the 
City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, a municipal corporation (“City”).   

   
 WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS: 
 
 WHEREAS, Dolly Ridge Development, LLC is a limited liability company, organized, 
existing and operating in good standing pursuant to the laws of the State of Alabama (“DRD”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama is a municipal corporation, organized, 
existing and operating pursuant to the laws of the State of Alabama (“City”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, DRD owns the real estate and improvements referred to as Parcel A, which is 
more particularly described in Exhibit 1, attached hereto and incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference as though set out fully herein; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Parcel A is zoned Business B-1.2 pursuant to Zoning Code Ordinance Number 
2557 of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 
 
 WHEREAS, DRD intends to use Parcel A for the uses authorized on property with a 
Business B-1.2 zoning classification; and 
 
 WHEREAS, DRD owns the real estate and improvements referred to as Parcel B, which is 
more particularly described in Exhibit 1, attached hereto and incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference as though set out fully herein; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Parcel B is zoned Business B-1.2 pursuant to Zoning Code Ordinance Number 
2557 of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2903



Agreement for Access Easement, Improvement,  
Temporary Construction Easement,  
Maintenance and Shared Parking Easement  
Page 2 
 
 
 WHEREAS, DRD intends to use Parcel B for the use by its owners, users, guests, invitees 
and licensees, including all customers, employees, agents, permittees, contractors, subcontractors, 
tenants and subtenants, as a non-exclusive and perpetual easement and right-of-way over, across and 
upon said Parcel B for ingress and egress from Hollis Crossings to Parcel A; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City owns the real estate and improvements referred to as Parcel C, which 
is more particularly described in Exhibit 1, attached hereto and incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference as though set out fully herein; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Parcel C will be used by the City of Vestavia Hills for public parking; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City intends to continue using Parcel C for the purposes of public parking; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, DRD is in need of additional parking for Parcel A for the use of its owners, 
users, guests, invitees and licensees, including all customers, employees, agents, permittees, 
contractors, subcontractors, tenants and subtenants, who visit the businesses operated by DRD on 
Parcel A; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City is willing to grant, bargain, sell and convey to DRD, its successors and 
assigns, perpetual and non-exclusive shared parking rights on Parcel C; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City is in need of access for vehicular and pedestrian ingress and egress for 
members of the general public who wish to park on Parcel C; and 
 
 WHEREAS, DRD is willing to grant, bargain, sell, convey and assign to the City an access 
easement for ingress and egress on, over and across Parcel B; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City has agreed to improve Parcel B by paving said Parcel B pursuant to 

and all in accordance with the requirements and specifications of a public street as set forth in City 
ordinances, rules and regulations; and 

 
WHEREAS, DRD is willing to grant to City a temporary construction easement over, on, 

under and along Parcel B in order to enable the City to complete said improvements; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City is willing to make said improvements on Parcel B at its sole cost; and 
 
WHEREAS, upon the completion of said improvements, Parcel B shall not be a public right-

of-way owned by the City but simply be a perpetual and non-exclusive access easement to be used 
by members of the general public ingress and egress; and 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2903



Agreement for Access Easement, Improvement,  
Temporary Construction Easement,  
Maintenance and Shared Parking Easement  
Page 3 
 
 

WHEREAS, DRD shall continue to own Parcel B after completion of the improvements as 
described herein and shall have perpetual rights to connect to the improvements constructed by the 
City; and 

 
 WHEREAS, Parcel A, Parcel B and Parcel C are accurately shown on the map attached 
hereto, marked as Exhibit 2 and is incorporated herein by reference as though set out fully herein; 
 
 WHEREAS, DRD and the City wish to reduce their agreement to writing. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the mutual covenants hereinafter 
contained herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged by the parties hereto, DRD and City hereby mutually covenant and agree 
as follows: 
 
I.  RECITALS 
 
  The recitals set forth in the premises above are hereby incorporated into this Agreement for 
Access Easement, Improvement, Temporary Construction Easement, Maintenance and Shared 
Parking Easement (“Agreement”) by reference as though set out fully herein. 
  
II.  MAP SHOWING PARCEL A, PARCEL B AND PARCEL C 
 
 The map marked as Exhibit 2 and attached hereto shows the location of Parcel A, Parcel B and 
Parcel C.   
 
 Parcel A and Parcel B are owned by Dolly Ridge Development, LLC, an Alabama limited 
liability company (“DRD”).  Parcel C is owned by the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, a municipal 
corporation (“City”). 
 
III.  EXHIBITS 
 
  NUMBER      DESCRIPTION 
 
  1    Legal description of Parcel A. 
  1    Legal description of Parcel B. 
  1    Legal description of Parcel C. 
  2    Map showing Parcel A, Parcel B and Parcel C 
 
  Exhibits 1 and 2 are attached hereto and incorporated into this Agreement by reference as 
though set out fully herein. 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2903



Agreement for Access Easement, Improvement,  
Temporary Construction Easement,  
Maintenance and Shared Parking Easement  
Page 4 
 
 
IV.  SHARED PARKING EASEMENT 
 
  A. ACCESS EASEMENT: The City does hereby grant, bargain, sell and convey to DRD, 
its successors and assigns, for its use and for the use of its owners, users, guests, invitees and 
licensees, including all customers, employees, agents, permittees, contractors, subcontractors, 
tenants and subtenants, a non-exclusive and perpetual access easement and right-of-way over, across 
and upon Parcel C for ingress and egress to Parcel C from Parcel A, Parcel B and Hollis Crossings 
for vehicular and pedestrian ingress and egress. 
 
  B. SHARED PARKING:  The City does hereby agree, for the benefit of Parcel A, and does 
hereby grant, bargain, sell and convey to DRD, its successors and assigns, for its use and for the use 
of its owners, users, guests, invitees and licensees, including all customers, employees, agents, 
permittees, contractors, subcontractors, tenants and subtenants, a non-exclusive and perpetual 
parking easement on Parcel C for the purpose of parking on Parcel C when additional parking is 
needed. 
 
V.  ACCESS EASEMENT 
 
  DRD does hereby grant, bargain, sell and convey to City, its successors and assigns, and for 
the use of its users, invitees, guests, licensees, including all employees, agents, permittees, 
contractors, subcontractors and any and all members of the general public, a non-exclusive and 
perpetual access easement and right-of-way over, across and upon Parcel B for vehicular and 
pedestrian ingress and egress to Parcel C from Hollis Crossings. 
 
VI.  IMPROVEMENTS 
 
  Even though Parcel B, after completion of the improvements described herein, will not be a 
public right-of-way, the City shall construct the improvements in conformity with City requirements 
to construct a public street at the sole cost of the City. 
 
VII. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
 
 The City and DRD recognize and mutually agree that the City will enter into a written 
Construction Contract with a General Contractor properly licensed within the meaning of Title 34-8-
1, Code of Alabama, 1975, and its subcontractors for the construction of the improvements on Parcel 
B. 
 
 The City and DRD agree that any and all contracts entered into by and between the City and 
a General Contractor shall include the following terms, provisions and conditions: 
 A. LIABILITY INSURANCE:  The General Contractor shall carry Manufacturer's and 
General Contractor’s General Comprehensive Liability and Public Liability Insurance with limits of 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2903



Agreement for Access Easement, Improvement,  
Temporary Construction Easement,  
Maintenance and Shared Parking Easement  
Page 5 
 
 
One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00), per person, and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000,00), per 
occurrence, to cover and protect the City, its Mayor, City Manager, individual City Council 
members, servants, agents, employees or representatives, DRD and its owners, shareholders, 
officers, directors, stockholders, servants, agents, employees and other representatives, the General 
Contractor and its subcontractors against claims or injury to or death of one or more than one person 
because of accidents which may occur or result from operations under the contract; such insurance 
shall cover the use of any and all equipment, including but not limited to machinery, tractors, rollers, 
mixers, motor vehicles and other related equipment necessary to perform the work and installations 
and embraced in the contract. 
 
 The General Contractor shall carry, during the life of this contract, property damage 
insurance in the amount of not less than Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000.00) to protect it 
and its subcontractors from claims for property damage which might arise from the work performed 
under this contract. 
 
 Before commencing work, the General Contractor shall submit evidence of the coverages 
required above to the City for review and approval. Such insurance shall be carried with financially 
responsible insurance companies, licensed in the state and approved by the City and shall be kept in 
full force and effect until the General Contractor's work is accepted by the City.  Contracts of 
insurance (covering all operations under this contract) which expire before the General Contractor's 
work is accepted by the City shall be renewed and evidence of such renewal shall be submitted to 
the City for its approval. 
 
 B. ADDITIONAL INSUREDS: The General Contractor shall cause all of the insurance 
policy coverages described in the contract above (except for the Worker's Compensation coverages) 
to include: 
 
  1. The City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and its Mayor, City Manager, individual 
City Council members, servants, agents, employees or representatives as additional insureds for 
claims caused in whole or in part by the General Contractor’s negligent acts or omissions during the 
General Contractor’s operations; and 
 
  2. The City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and its Mayor, City Manager, individual 
City Council members, servants, agents, employees or representatives as additional insureds for 
claims caused in whole  or in part by the General Contractor’s negligent acts or omissions during the 
General Contractor's completed operations; and 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2903



Agreement for Access Easement, Improvement,  
Temporary Construction Easement,  
Maintenance and Shared Parking Easement  
Page 6 
 
 
  3. DRD and its owners, shareholders, officers, directors, stockholders, servants, 
agents, employees and other representatives, and DRD’s lender as additional insureds for claims caused 
in whole or in part by the General Contractor’s negligent acts or omissions during the General 
Contractor’s operations; and 
  
  4. DRD and its owners, shareholders, officers, directors, stockholders, servants, 
agents, employees and other representatives, and DRD’s lender as additional insureds for claims caused 
in whole or in part by the General Contractor’s negligent acts or omissions during the General 
Contractor’s completed operations; and 
 
  5. The insurance policy coverages shall state that these coverages shall be 
primary insurance for the additional insureds; and 
 
  6. Contain no exclusions of the additional insureds relative to job accidents; and 
 
  7. The policies must be on an “occurrence” basis. 
 
 C. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION:  The General Contractor shall carry Worker's 
Compensation insurance for all of its employees and those of its subcontractors engaged in the work 
at the site in accordance with the State of Alabama Worker's Compensation Law.  This insurance 
coverage provided by the General Contractor under the Worker's Compensation Act shall provide 
protection from any and all claims for bodily injury, death or property damage, which may arise 
from the performance of any servant, agent, employee or other representative of General Contractor 
or its subcontractors under this contract.  Certificates of insurance issued by competent insurance 
companies qualified and licensed to do business in the State of Alabama and approved by the City 
evidencing that all of said subcontractors of the General Contractor are covered by said Worker's 
Compensation insurance coverage and furnished to the General Contractor and the City by the 
individual subcontractors shall meet the requirements of this section. 
 
 D. INDEMNITY:  The General Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless the City, its 
Mayor, City Manager, individual City Council members, servants, agents, employees and 
representatives, DRD and its owners, shareholders, officers, directors, stockholders, servants, agents, 
employees and other representatives, and DRD’s lender from any and all claims, demands, 
controversies, actions, causes of action, liabilities of action, lawsuits, liabilities, damages and losses 
and expenses, including but not limited to attorney fees, arising out of or resulting from property 
damage, personal injury and/or death suffered or alleged to have been suffered by any person as a 
result for work performed under the contract between the City and General Contractor, a 
subcontractor and anyone directly or indirectly employed by them.  This indemnification shall 
extend to all claims, damages, losses and expenses for injury or damage to adjacent or neighboring 
property, or persons injured thereon, that arise out of, relate to or result from performance of the 
Work. 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2903



Agreement for Access Easement, Improvement,  
Temporary Construction Easement,  
Maintenance and Shared Parking Easement  
Page 7 
 
 
VIII. GRANT OF TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT 
 
 DRD hereby grants and conveys unto City and City’s employees, agents, contractors, 
subcontractors and licensees a temporary construction easement on, over and along Parcel B for the 
purpose of helping City develop and construct improvements on Parcel B as provided herein. 
 
 A. BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES:  City, for itself and all its other servants, agents, 
employees, contractors, subcontractors and licensees, shall utilize best management practices in the 
use of this temporary construction easement and shall otherwise comply in all respects with any and 
all statutes, ordinances, code provisions, rules, regulations, requirements and directives (collectively, 
“governmental requirements”) of any federal, state, county, city or quasi-governmental agency, 
bureaus, departments, divisions or regulatory authorities having jurisdiction of any portion of Parcel 
B. 
 
 B. TERM:  This temporary construction easement granted herein shall automatically 
terminate on the date which is the earlier of:  (a) six (6) months from the date of this Agreement; or 
(b) the completion of the construction on Parcel B. 
 
IX.  MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR 
 
  A. Parcel A:  DRD shall be solely responsible for the maintenance, repair and upkeep of 
Parcel A. 
 
  B. Parcel B:  The City shall be solely responsible for the maintenance, repair and 
upkeep of Parcel B in a safe, clean and attractive condition consistent with good standards of 
maintenance and cleanliness.  If the City, its successors or assigns, fails to maintain, repair or upkeep 
Parcel B in accordance with this Agreement, then DRD, its successors and assigns, may after sixty 
(60) days’ written notice of such failure to the City and opportunity to cure, enter into Parcel B and 
conduct such maintain and repair, and the City shall reimburse DRD within thirty (30) days after 
written notice and billing of such costs.  The City’s failure to timely reimburse DRD for such costs 
of repair and maintenance shall terminate the right to the use of such easement for ingress and egress 
until such costs are paid.    
 
  C. Parcel C:  The City shall be solely responsible for the maintenance, repair and 
upkeep of Parcel C. 
 
X. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW 
 
 DRD and City shall at all times exercise its rights hereunder in compliance with all 
applicable federal, state and local statutes, regulations, ordinances, rules, judicial decisions, 
governmental permits and approvals and all other laws now or hereafter in effect. 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2903



Agreement for Access Easement, Improvement,  
Temporary Construction Easement,  
Maintenance and Shared Parking Easement  
Page 8 
 
 
 
XI. BENEFITS 
 
 A. CITY:  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties 
hereto and their successors and assigns and the rights and obligations and benefits and burdens 
granted and imposed hereby shall be covenants which run with the land and shall benefit Parcel A 
owned by DRD and burden Parcel C owned by the City and the successors in title thereto of each of 
the parties. 
 
 B. DRD:  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties 
hereto and their successors and assigns and the rights and obligations and benefits and burdens 
granted and imposed hereby shall be covenants which run with the land and shall benefit Parcel C 
owned by the City and burden Parcel B owned by DRD and the successors in title thereto of each of 
the parties. 
 
XII. NO PUBLIC DEDICATION 
 
 Nothing contained in this Agreement in the use of Parcel B by any member of the general 
public shall evidence any intent of DRD to offer Parcel B for dedication or shall result in any public 
dedication of any rights with respect to Parcel B. 
 
XIII. MISCELLANEOUS 
 
 A. GOVERNING LAW:  This Agreement and the rights and obligations of the parties 
hereto shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Alabama.  The 
jurisdiction and venue for the resolution of any dispute shall be in Jefferson County, Alabama. 
 
 B. BINDING AGREEMENT:  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the 
benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, successors and assigns. 
 
 C. SURVIVAL:  All representations and warranties of this Agreement shall survive the 
execution and delivery, as shall any covenants for performance after the recording of this instrument. 
 
 D. TIME OF THE ESSENCE:  Time is of the essence of this Agreement. 
 
 E. NO WAIVER:  The failure of either party to exercise any rights under this Agreement 
shall not constitute a waiver of any right, nor excuse the other party’s full performance.  No express 
waiver of any matter shall affect any other matter under this Agreement.  Express waivers are only 
effective if in writing. 
 
 F. CONSTRUCTION OF TERMS:  Descriptive headings are for convenience only and shall 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2903



Agreement for Access Easement, Improvement,  
Temporary Construction Easement,  
Maintenance and Shared Parking Easement  
Page 9 
 
 
not control or affect the meaning or construction of any provision.  Any ambiguities of this 
Agreement shall be construed fairly and equitably regardless of the participation of either party in 
drafting this Agreement.  The reference in terms to gender and number shall be modified as may be 
appropriate. 
 
 G. SEVERABILITY:  In case of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall for any 
reason be held invalid, illegal or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction in any respect, 
the remaining provisions shall remain in effect and the Agreement be performed in a fair and 
equitable manner as to any uncertainties arising from the unenforceable provisions.   
 
 H. DATES:  If any date provided in this Agreement falls on a Saturday, Sunday or 
holiday, the date shall be the next business day. 
 
 I. EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS:  This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in 
any number of counterparts, each of which shall be an original, but all of which shall constitute but 
one and the same instrument. 
 
 J. ENTIRE AGREEMENT:  This written Agreement contains the entire agreement 
between the parties, incorporating all prior agreements, and may only be amended in writing 
executed by both parties. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, a municipal corporation, 
and Dolly Ridge Development, LLC, an Alabama limited liability company, have hereunto caused 
this Agreement for Access Easement, Improvement, Temporary Construction Easement, 
Maintenance and Shared Parking Easement to be executed by their duly authorized officers and their 
respective seals to be affixed hereto as of the date first above written. 
 
     CITY: 
     CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 
     A Municipal Corporation 
 
     By __________________________________________ 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Its Mayor 
 
     By __________________________________________ 
      Jeffrey D. Downes 
      Its City Manager  
ATTESTED  
 
 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2903



Agreement for Access Easement, Improvement,  
Temporary Construction Easement,  
Maintenance and Shared Parking Easement  
Page 10 
 
 
By ___________________________________ 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2903



Agreement for Access Easement, Improvement,  
Temporary Construction Easement,  
Maintenance and Shared Parking Easement  
Page 11 
 
 
     DRD: 
     DOLLY RIDGE DEVELOPMENT, LLC 
     An Alabama Limited Liability Company 
 
                   
     By __________________________________________ 
      __________________ 
      Its _______________ 
ATTESTED: 
                  
 
By ___________________________________ 
 
STATE OF ALABAMA 
JEFFERSON COUNTY 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
                  
 I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public, in and for said County, in said State, hereby 
certify that _________________________________, whose name as ________________________ 
of Dolly Ridge Development, LLC, an Alabama limited liability company, is signed to the foregoing 
Agreement for Access Easement, Improvement, Temporary Construction Easement, Maintenance 
and Shared Parking Easement, and who is known to me, acknowledged before me on this day that 
being informed of the contents of the contract, he in his capacity as such and with full authority, 
executed the same voluntarily for and as the act of said Dolly Ridge Development, LLC on the day 
the same bears date. 
                  
 Given under my hand and official seal, this the _________ day of December, 2019. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
       Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 
____________________ 
SEAL 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2903



Agreement for Access Easement, Improvement,  
Temporary Construction Easement,  
Maintenance and Shared Parking Easement  
Page 12 
 
 
STATE OF ALABAMA 
JEFFERSON COUNTY 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
 I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County, in said State, hereby 
certify that Ashley C. Curry, whose name as Mayor of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, a 
municipal corporation, is signed to the foregoing Agreement for Access Easement, Improvement, 
Temporary Construction Easement, Maintenance and Shared Parking Easement, and who is known 
to me, acknowledged before me on this day that, being informed of the contents of the instrument, 
he, as such officer and with full authority, executed the same voluntarily for and as the act of 
said City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 
 
 Given under my hand and official seal, this the _________ day of December, 2019. 
 
     _____________________________________________ 
      Notary Public 
My Commission Expires:  
___________________ 
SEAL 
 
STATE OF ALABAMA 
JEFFERSON COUNTY 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
 I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County, in said State, hereby 
certify that Jeffrey D. Downes, whose name as City Manager of the City of Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama, a municipal corporation, is signed to the foregoing Agreement for Access Easement, 
Improvement, Temporary Construction Easement, Maintenance and Shared Parking Easement, and 
who is known to me, acknowledged before me on this day that, being informed of the contents of 
the instrument, he, as such officer and with full authority, executed the same voluntarily for and 
as the act of said City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 
 
 Given under my hand and official seal, this the _________ day of December, 2019. 
 
     _____________________________________________ 
      Notary Public 
My Commission Expires:  
___________________ 
SEAL 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2903



Parcel C- CITY PROPERTY (parking area) 

Subdivision in Map Book 250 Page 85 in the Probate Office of Jefferson 
County, Alabama. 

Parcel A- DOLLY RIDGE DEVELOPMENT, LLC (“DRD”) 
PROPERTY  

Lot 2, Hollis Crossings, as recorded in Map Book 242 Page 64 in the 
Probate Office of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

Parcel B- PERMANENT ACCESS EASEMENT  

An easement of land located in the Southeast ¼ of the Northwest ¼ of 
Section 22, Township 18 South, Range 2 West, Jefferson County, 
Alabama, and being more particularly described as follows: 

Commence at a ½” capped rebar (J. O’Perry 12697) being the Northwest 
corner of Parcel 2 of Cahaba Heights Elementary Subdivision, a parcel of 
land located in the Northeast ¼ of the Southwest ¼ and the Southeast ¼ 
of the Northwest ¼ of Section 22, Township 18 South, Range 2 West, 
Jefferson County, Alabama; thence S 0˚ 40’ 38”W along the West 
property line of said Parcel 2 a distance of 146.61’ to the Point of 
Beginning of the following described permanent access easement; thence 
continue S 0˚ 40’ 38”W a distance of 69.48’ to a 5/8” capped rebar (GSA 
CA-560-LS); thence N 88˚ 03’ 07”W a distance of 9.94’ to a 5/8” capped 
rebar (GSA CA-560-LS); thence S 0˚ 49’ 48”W a distance of 95.05’ to a 
5/8” capped rebar (GSA CA-560-LS) and the SW corner of Parcel 2 along 
the North boundary line of a public access road; thence N 89˚ 10’ 50”W 
along said North boundary line of public access road a distance of 26.08’ 
to a point; thence N 0˚ 50’ 33”E a distance of 164.34’ to a point; thence S 
89˚ 09’ 27”E a distance of 35.80’ back to the Point of Beginning. Said 
easement containing 4,966 SQ FT (0.11 acres), more or less. 

EXHIBIT 1 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2903



ROW LINE

PARCEL B

5,942 SF±

VESTAVIA HILLS ELEMENTARY

CAHABA HEIGHTS CAMPUS

PERMANENT PUBLIC ACCESS EASEMENT

(HOLLIS CROSSINGS)

32.00'

EXHIBIT 2 - TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT
ACCESS EASEMENT, IMPROVEMENT AND MAINTENANCE

CAHABA HEIGHTS ATHLETIC FIELDS IMPROVEMENTS
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA SCALE: 1"=50'

200 OFFICE PARK DRIVE, SUITE 215     BIRMINGHAM, ALABAMA 35223     O:(205)423-5082

DATE: 12.03.2019

SHEET 1 OF 1

PARCEL C

[UNDER CONSTRUCTION]

4401 DOLLY RIDGE ROAD VESTAVIA HILLS, AL 35243

BILLANO INVESTMENTS, LLC.

2831 SHOOK HILL CIR.

BIRMINGHAM, AL 35223

PIN# 28-00-22-2-010-012.000

PARCEL A

DOLLY RIDGE DEVELOPMENT LLC

P.O. BOX 43342

PIN# 28-00-22-2-010-010.000

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 
L
I
N

E

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 
L
I
N

E

ROW LINE

P

R

O

P

E

R

T

Y

 
L
I
N

E

AND SHARED PARKING EASEMENT

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2903

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =     ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
25



Resolution Number 5212 
Page 1 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5212 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO PURCHASE 
CANCER INSURANCE FOR VESTAVIA HILLS FIRE FIGHTERS 
PURSUANT TO ACT NUMBER 2019-361 

WHEREAS, Act 2019-361 of the Alabama legislature mandates that municipalities 

purchase cancer coverage for all of their paid firefighters; and 

WHEREAS, said cancer coverage should, at a minimum, provide critical illness and long 

term disability coverage for firefighters who are diagnosed with cancer; and 

WHEREAS, said insurance shall be effective January 1, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills sought the most advantageous option from the 

insurance marketplace and has determined that the cancer insurance offered through the Alabama 

First Responders Benefit Program by The Hartford Life and Accident Company is the best option 

for Vestavia Hills as detailed in Exhibit A, attached to and incorporated into this Resolution 

Number 5212 as if written fully therein; and 

WHEREAS, the quoted annual premium amount through The Hartford Life and Accident 

Company for 2020 is $19,020.96; and 

WHEREAS, a summary of premium and benefits is marked as Exhibit B, attached to and 

incorporated into this Resolution Number 5212 as if written fully therein; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to accept the 

quote given by The Hartford Life and Accident Company. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to take all actions necessary in order to secure

required insurance coverage for Vestavia Hills Fire Fighters pursuant to Act 2019-361

through The Hartford Life and Accident Company as detailed in the attached Exhibit B;

and

2. This Resolution Number 5212 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and

approval.



Resolution Number 5212 
Page 2 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 16th day of December, 2019. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



City of Vestavia Hills  Fire Department Cancer Quotes

Hartford Life and Accident Insurance Company ACE American Insurance Company
Option 1

Firefighter class Basic Plan Rate Basic Plan Premium Firefighter class Enhanced Plan Rate Enhanced Plan Premium
Paid Career $186.48 $19,020.96 Paid Career $263.05 $26,832.00

Option 2
Enhanced Plan Rate Enhanced Plan Premium *This company does not show a basic plan in the quote section.
$198.24 $20,220.48

Exhibit A - Resolution 5212



City of Vestavia Hills  Fire Department Cancer Quotes

Hartford Life and Accident Insurance Company ACE American Insurance Company
Benefits(Paid Career) Benefits for class 1 employess(active career firefighters)

Lump Sum Cancer Plan Benefit Lump Sum Cancer Benefits Benefit
Cancer Benefit Amount $25,000 Early Stage Cancer $6,250
Invasive Cancer $25,000 Advanced Cancer  $25,000
Non‐invasive Cancer $6,250 Lifetime Max for Lump Sum Benefits $50,000
Lifetime Max Benefit/Firefighter $50,000
Recurrence Benefit 100%, 90 days seperation period

Long Term Disability Plan Benefit Long Term Disability Plan Benefit
Paid Career Firefighter $3,000 Maximum Monthly Benefit Monthly Benefit

180 Elimination Period
Duration of 3 years

$3,000, minus other income benefits
6 month waiting period from date of total 
disability Maximum benefit period of 3 years

Exhibit B - Resolution No. 5212



Resolution Number 5213 
Page 1 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5213 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND ASSENTING TO 
A DECLARATION OF VACATION 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS 

WHEREAS, a Declaration signed by the owners of all the lands abutting the 

following described ingress/egress easement situated in the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Jefferson County, Alabama, vacating said portion of utility easement, has been duly 

presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, for assent and 

approval of said governing body; and 

WHEREAS, a copy of said Declaration with map attached is marked as “Exhibit 

A”, attached hereto and incorporated into this Resolution by reference as though set out 

fully herein; and 

WHEREAS, the above-referenced portion of utility easement is commonly 

referred to as “an ingress/egress easement” and is more particularly described as follows: 

A strip of land 40’ in width running along and within Lot 5C in the 
approximate location shown on Preliminary Site Plan attached. 

WHEREAS, it appears to the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

that reasonable means of access as well as sewer access to be afforded to all utilities running 

through the tract of land or eventually located in said tract of land; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, that the vacation of the hereinabove 

described ingress/egress easement is assented to and approved and the same is hereby 

vacated pursuant to the provision of Section 23-4-20 of the Code of Alabama, 1975. 



Resolution Number 5213 
Page 2 

RESOLVED, DONE AND ORDERED, on this the 16th day of December, 2019. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

CERTIFICATION 

I, the undersigned qualified Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing is a true copy of a Resolution lawfully passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City named therein, at a regular meeting of such 
Council held on the 16th day of December, 2019, and that such Resolution is of record in 
the Minute Book of the City at page _________ thereof. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official 
seal of the City on this the __________ day of ___________________, 2019. 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5213



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5213



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5213



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5213



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5213



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5213



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5213



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5213



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5213



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5213



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5213



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5213



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5213



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5213



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5213



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5213



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5213



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5213



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5213



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5213



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5213



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5213



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5213



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5213



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5213



Ordinance Number 2900 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2900 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 
COUNTY R-4 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-5 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County R-4 (multi-

family residential) to Vestavia Hills R-5 (multi-family residential):  

2926 Columbiana Road (2927 Columbiana Court) 
Elevation Apartments (formerly Windcliff Apartments) 

ECG Vestavia, LLC; Summit Vestavia I, LLC; Summit Vestavia II, LLC as tenants in 
common, Owners 

Real property in the City of Vestavia Hills, County of Jefferson, State of 
Alabama, described as follows:  

A part of the Northeast quarter of the Northwest quarter of Section I, 
Township 19 South, Range 3 West, situated in Jefferson County, Alabama, 
lying North of the property conveyed to Wessel B. and Frances L. Fleming 
by deed recorded in Volume 4659, Page 46 6 and lying West and Northwest 
of Oxmoor Camp Branch Road, (also known as Old Columbiana Road), 
said property also lying West of the property conveyed to Jonas Schwab 
and wife, to W. F. and Mary Ethel Pilcher by deed recorded in Volume 
1421, Page 530 and West of the property conveyed by J.M. Oglesby and 
wife, to W.W.M. and Lillian F. Riddle by deed recorded in Volume 3727, 
Page 218 , LESS AND EXCEPT that part conveyed to Jefferson County, 
Alabama as recorded in Volume 6605 , Page 287, the above described 
parcel of land being more particularly described as follows: Begin at the 
Northwest comer of the Northeast quarter of the Northwest quarter of 
Section 1, Township 19 South, Range 3 West; thence in an Easterly 
direction along the North line of said quarter-quarter section a distance of 
584 .02 feet to a point on the Westerly right of way line of the Green Springs 
Highway; thence 77° 21' right in a Southeasterly direction along said right 
of way line a distance of 648 .81 feet; thence 48 ° 25' right in a 
Southwesterly direction a distance of28 .29 feet; thence 54 ° 06' right in a 
Westerly direction a distance of 695.2 2 feet to a point in the Westerly line 
of said quarter-quarter section; thence 88 ° 53' right in a Northerly direction 



Ordinance Number 2900 
Page 2 

along the Westerly line of said quarter-quarter section a distance of 657 .80 
feet to the point of beginning. 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 16th day of December, 2019. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

CERTIFICATION: 

I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2900 is a true and correct 
copy of such 16th day of December, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 

Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2019. 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2900 
Page 3 

 



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     NOVEMBER 14, 2019

CASE: P-1119-60

REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning JC R-4 to Vestavia Hills R-5

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 2926 Columbiana Rd.

APPLICANT/OWNER: ECG Vestavia, LLC; Et Al.

GENERAL DISCUSSION: This is a rezoning of a property on Columbiana Rd.
Property was annexed into the City on 8/8/84 but never compatibly rezoned, as is not 
customary. This request will compatibly rezone the property in accordance with 
zoning code. 

VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The request is consistent with 
the plan for Village Center.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

MOTION Mr. Weaver made a motion to recommend Rezoning from JC R-4 to Vestavia 
Hills R-5 for the property located At 2926 Columbiana Rd.. Second was by Ms. Cobb. Motion 
was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Vercher – yes 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2900



2

Mr. Farrell – yes Mr. Sykes– yes
Ms. Cobb – yes Mr. Larson – yes
Mr. Weaver – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2900



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2900



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2900



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2900



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2900



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2900



Ordinance Number 2901 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2901 
  

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM VESTAVIA HILLS B-
1.2 TO VESTAVIA HILLS B-1.2 WITH A REVISED SITE PLAN 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia Hills B-1.2 to Vestavia 

Hills B-1.2 with a revised site plan:  

3127 Blue Lake Drive 
Lot 10-A, Resurvey Lots 8, 9 &10 Topfield and Lot 11 Topfield Subdivision 

SWBP Investments LLC, Owners 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that said development is permitted as a 

conditional use, an additional 2,500 square feet for a 12,500 square foot building pursuant 

to the Vestavia Hills Zoning Code. 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 16th day of December, 2019. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2901 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2901 is a true and correct 
copy of such 16th day of December, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2019. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 

 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2901 
Page 3 

 



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     FEBRUARY 14, 2019

CASE: P-1119-61

REQUESTED ACTION: Site Plan Amendment And Conditional Use Approval 
2,500 Square Feet Of Gross Floor Area

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 3127 Blue Lake Dr.

APPLICANT/OWNER: SWBP Investments, LLC

REPRESENTING AGENT: Shannon Waltchack

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Applicant is seeking a site plan amendment for a 
medical office for the property at 3127 Blue Lake Dr. This property and the adjoining 
property were originally rezoned from R-1 to B-1.2 in October 2015 (Ordinance 
Number 2605) and conditioned on the site plan as presented at that time. The property 
is currently in purchase/sale, requiring a site plan change. This revised site plan will 
include one proposed building with the required parking and landscaping. The 
proposed building would be 12,500 square feet. Section 6.3.1.1 of the Zoning 
Ordinance states that any building over 10,000 square feet requires Conditional Use 
approval (see attached).

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  Building to be designed in a residential 
style and compatible with other new construction in the Blue Lake area

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no
issues with this request. 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2901



2

MOTION Mr. Weaver made a motion to recommend the Site Plan Amendment and 
Conditional Use for an Additional 2,500 square feet for the property located At 3127 Blue Lake 
Dr. Second was by Ms. Cobb. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Vercher – yes 
Mr. Farrell – yes Mr. Sykes– yes
Ms. Cobb – yes Mr. Larson – yes
Mr. Weaver – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2901



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2901



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2901





Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2901



K
no

w
 w

ha
t's

 b
el

ow
C

al
l b

ef
or

e 
yo

u 
di

g.
D

ia
l 8

11
O

r 
C

al
l 8

00
-2

82
-7

41
1



D
E

M
O

LI
T

IO
N

 N
O

T
E

S
D

E
M

O
LI

T
IO

N
 N

O
T

E
S

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2901



S
IT

E
 D

A
T

A
 T

A
B

LE










































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































K
no

w
 w

ha
t's

 b
el

ow
C

al
l b

ef
or

e 
yo

u 
di

g.
D

ia
l 8

11
O

r 
C

al
l 8

00
-2

82
-7

41
1





















































S
IT

E
 L

A
Y

O
U

T
 N

O
T

E
S



















Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2901



BA C D

K
no

w
 w

ha
t's

 b
el

ow
C

al
l b

ef
or

e 
yo

u 
di

g.
D

ia
l 8

11
O

r 
C

al
l 8

00
-2

82
-7

41
1



E G H IF J K L M N O P Q R S T U

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2901














































T
O

 B
E

 D
E

T
E

R
M

IN
E

D





















































































































































K
no

w
 w

ha
t's

 b
el

ow
C

al
l  b

ef
or

e 
yo

u 
di

g.
D

ia
l 8

11
O

r 
C

al
l 8

00
-2

82
-7

41
1



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2901



PA
R

T 
I  

C
ov

er
ag

e 
U

nd
er

 T
hi

s G
en

er
al

 P
er

m
it

A
.

Pe
rm

it 
C

ov
er

ag
e

Th
is

 p
er

m
it 

au
th

or
iz

es
, s

ub
je

ct
 to

 th
e 

co
nd

iti
on

s o
f t

hi
s p

er
m

it,
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

s a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
ac

tiv
ity

 th
at

 w
ill

 re
su

lt 
in

 la
nd

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 e
qu

al
 to

 o
r g

re
at

er
 th

an
 o

ne
 (1

)
ac

re
 o

r f
ro

m
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 in
vo

lv
in

g 
le

ss
 th

an
 o

ne
 (1

) a
cr

e 
an

d 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 p
ar

t o
f a

 c
om

m
on

 p
la

n 
of

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
r s

al
e 

eq
ua

l t
o 

or
 g

re
at

er
 th

an
 o

ne
 (1

) a
cr

e 
oc

cu
rr

in
g 

on
 o

r
be

fo
re

, a
nd

 c
on

tin
ui

ng
 a

fte
r t

he
 e

ff
ec

tiv
e 

da
te

 o
f t

hi
s p

er
m

it,
 e

xc
ep

t f
or

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
s i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 u
nd

er
 P

ar
t I

.C
. o

f t
he

 p
er

m
it.

 C
ov

er
ag

e 
un

de
r t

hi
s p

er
m

it 
is

 n
ot

 re
qu

ire
d 

fo
r d

is
ch

ar
ge

s
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 m
in

or
 la

nd
 d

is
tu

rb
in

g 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 (s

uc
h 

as
 h

om
e 

ga
rd

en
s o

r i
nd

iv
id

ua
l h

om
e 

la
nd

sc
ap

in
g,

 re
pa

irs
, m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 w

or
k,

 fe
nc

es
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 re
la

te
d 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 w
hi

ch
 re

su
lt 

in
m

in
or

 so
il 

er
os

io
n)

, a
ni

m
al

 fe
ed

in
g 

op
er

at
io

n 
(A

FO
) o

r c
on

ce
nt

ra
te

d 
an

im
al

 fe
ed

in
g 

op
er

at
io

n 
(C

A
FO

) c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
ac

tiv
ity

 th
at

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
gr

an
te

d 
N

PD
ES

 re
gi

st
ra

tio
n 

co
ve

ra
ge

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 C

ha
pt

er
 3

35
-6

-7
, n

or
m

al
 a

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l p

ra
ct

ic
es

 a
nd

 si
lv

ic
ul

tu
ra

l o
pe

ra
tio

ns
 a

s d
ef

in
ed

 in
 P

ar
t V

.

B
.

E
lig

ib
ili

ty
1.

A
llo

w
ab

le
 S

to
rm

w
at

er
 D

is
ch

ar
ge

s
Th

is
 p

er
m

it 
au

th
or

iz
es

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
st

or
m

w
at

er
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

s:
(a

)
St

or
m

w
at

er
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 d
ef

in
ed

 in
 P

ar
t I

.A
. o

f t
hi

s p
er

m
it;

(b
)

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
st

or
m

w
at

er
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

s h
av

e 
be

en
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 to

 re
qu

ire
 c

ov
er

ag
e 

un
de

r t
hi

s p
er

m
it:

(i)
Si

te
s, 

irr
es

pe
ct

iv
e 

of
 si

ze
, w

ho
se

 st
or

m
w

at
er

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
s h

av
e 

a 
re

as
on

ab
le

 p
ot

en
tia

l t
o 

be
 a

 si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 c

on
tri

bu
to

r o
f p

ol
lu

ta
nt

s t
o 

a 
w

at
er

 o
f t

he
 st

at
e,

 a
s d

et
er

m
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t;
(ii

)
Si

te
s, 

irr
es

pe
ct

iv
e 

of
 si

ze
, w

ho
se

 st
or

m
w

at
er

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
s h

av
e 

a 
re

as
on

ab
le

 p
ot

en
tia

l t
o 

ca
us

e 
or

 c
on

tri
bu

te
 to

 a
 v

io
la

tio
n 

of
 a

n 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 A
la

ba
m

a 
w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

st
an

da
rd

 a
s

de
te

rm
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t.
(c

)
D

is
ch

ar
ge

s f
ro

m
 su

pp
or

t a
ct

iv
iti

es
 (e

.g
., 

eq
ui

pm
en

t s
ta

gi
ng

 y
ar

ds
, m

at
er

ia
l s

to
ra

ge
 a

re
as

, e
xc

av
at

ed
 m

at
er

ia
l d

is
po

sa
l a

re
as

, b
or

ro
w

 a
re

as
) p

ro
vi

de
d:

(i)
Th

e 
su

pp
or

t a
ct

iv
ity

 is
 so

le
ly

 re
la

te
d 

to
 th

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
si

te
 c

ov
er

ed
 u

nd
er

 th
is

 p
er

m
it;

(ii
)

Th
e 

su
pp

or
t a

ct
iv

ity
 is

 n
ot

 a
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 o

pe
ra

tio
n 

se
rv

in
g 

m
ul

tip
le

 u
nr

el
at

ed
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 b
y 

di
ff

er
en

t o
pe

ra
to

rs
, a

nd
 d

oe
s n

ot
 o

pe
ra

te
 b

ey
on

d 
th

e 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
of

 th
e

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

ac
tiv

ity
 a

t t
he

 la
st

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
pr

oj
ec

t i
t s

up
po

rts
; a

nd
(ii

i)
Po

llu
ta

nt
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

s f
ro

m
 su

pp
or

t a
ct

iv
ity

 a
re

as
 a

re
 m

in
im

iz
ed

 to
 th

e 
m

ax
im

um
 e

xt
en

t p
ra

ct
ic

ab
le

 a
nd

 d
o 

no
t p

os
e 

a 
re

as
on

ab
le

 p
ot

en
tia

l t
o 

ex
ce

ed
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 w
at

er
 q

ua
lit

y
st

an
da

rd
s.

2.
A

llo
w

ab
le

 N
on

-S
to

rm
w

at
er

 D
is

ch
ar

ge
s

Th
is

 p
er

m
it 

au
th

or
iz

es
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

no
n-

st
or

m
w

at
er

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
s p

ro
vi

de
d 

th
e 

no
n-

st
or

m
w

at
er

 c
om

po
ne

nt
 o

f t
he

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
 is

 in
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ar
t I

II
.D

.
(a

)
D

is
ch

ar
ge

s f
ro

m
 fi

re
-f

ig
ht

in
g 

ac
tiv

iti
es

;
(b

)
Fi

re
 h

yd
ra

nt
 fl

us
hi

ng
s;

(c
)

W
at

er
s u

se
d 

to
 w

as
h 

ve
hi

cl
es

 w
he

re
 d

et
er

ge
nt

s a
re

 n
ot

 u
se

d;
(d

)
W

at
er

 u
se

d 
to

 c
on

tro
l d

us
t;

(e
)

Po
ta

bl
e 

w
at

er
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

un
co

nt
am

in
at

ed
 w

at
er

 li
ne

 fl
us

hi
ng

s n
ot

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 h
yd

ro
st

at
ic

 te
st

in
g;

(f
)

R
ou

tin
e 

ex
te

rn
al

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
w

as
h 

do
w

n 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
th

at
 d

oe
s n

ot
 u

se
 d

et
er

ge
nt

s;
(g

)
Pa

ve
m

en
t w

as
h 

w
at

er
s w

he
re

 sp
ill

s o
r l

ea
ks

 o
f t

ox
ic

 o
r h

az
ar

do
us

 m
at

er
ia

ls
 h

av
e 

no
t o

cc
ur

re
d 

(u
nl

es
s a

ll 
sp

ill
ed

 m
at

er
ia

l h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

m
ov

ed
) a

nd
 w

he
re

 d
et

er
ge

nt
s a

re
 n

ot
us

ed
. T

he
 o

pe
ra

to
r i

s p
ro

hi
bi

te
d 

fr
om

 d
ire

ct
in

g 
pa

ve
m

en
t w

as
h 

w
at

er
s d

ire
ct

ly
 in

to
 a

ny
 su

rf
ac

e 
w

at
er

, s
to

rm
 d

ra
in

 in
le

t, 
or

 st
or

m
w

at
er

 c
on

ve
ya

nc
e,

 u
nl

es
s t

he
 c

on
ve

ya
nc

e 
is

co
nn

ec
te

d 
to

 a
 se

di
m

en
t b

as
in

, s
ed

im
en

t t
ra

p,
 o

r s
im

ila
rly

 e
ff

ec
tiv

e 
co

nt
ro

l;
(h

)
U

nc
on

ta
m

in
at

ed
 a

ir 
co

nd
iti

on
in

g 
or

 c
om

pr
es

so
r c

on
de

ns
at

e 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 te
m

po
ra

ry
 o

ff
ic

e 
tra

ile
rs

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 si

m
ila

r b
ui

ld
in

gs
;

(i)
U

nc
on

ta
m

in
at

ed
 g

ro
un

d 
w

at
er

 o
r s

pr
in

g 
w

at
er

;
(j)

Fo
un

da
tio

n 
or

 fo
ot

in
g 

dr
ai

ns
 w

he
re

 fl
ow

s a
re

 n
ot

 c
on

ta
m

in
at

ed
 w

ith
 p

ro
ce

ss
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 su
ch

 a
s s

ol
ve

nt
s;

(k
)

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
irr

ig
at

io
n;

(l)
D

is
ch

ar
ge

 a
ut

ho
riz

ed
 b

y 
an

d 
in

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 a
 se

pa
ra

te
 N

PD
ES

 p
er

m
it.

C
.

Pr
oh

ib
ite

d 
D

is
ch

ar
ge

s
 T

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

di
sc

ha
rg

es
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

ar
e 

no
t a

ut
ho

riz
ed

 b
y 

th
is

 p
er

m
it:

1.
St

or
m

w
at

er
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

s t
ha

t a
re

 m
ix

ed
 w

ith
 so

ur
ce

s o
f n

on
-s

to
rm

w
at

er
 u

nl
es

s s
uc

h 
st

or
m

w
at

er
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

s a
re

:
(a

)
In

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 a
 se

pa
ra

te
 N

PD
ES

 p
er

m
it,

 o
r

(b
)

D
et

er
m

in
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t n

ot
 to

 b
e 

a 
co

nt
rib

ut
or

 o
f p

ol
lu

ta
nt

s t
o 

w
at

er
s o

f t
he

 S
ta

te
.

2.
St

or
m

w
at

er
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

s c
ur

re
nt

ly
 c

ov
er

ed
 u

nd
er

 a
no

th
er

 N
PD

ES
 p

er
m

it;
3.

W
as

te
w

at
er

 fr
om

 w
as

ho
ut

 o
f c

on
cr

et
e,

 u
nl

es
s m

an
ag

ed
 b

y 
an

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 c
on

tro
l. 

(W
as

te
w

at
er

 fr
om

 C
on

cr
et

e 
B

at
ch

 P
la

nt
s a

re
 p

ro
hi

bi
te

d 
un

le
ss

 su
ch

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
s a

re
au

th
or

iz
ed

 b
y 

an
d 

in
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 a

 se
pa

ra
te

 N
PD

ES
 p

er
m

it)
;

4.
W

as
te

w
at

er
 fr

om
 w

as
ho

ut
 a

nd
 c

le
an

ou
t o

f s
tu

cc
o,

 p
ai

nt
, f

or
m

 re
le

as
e 

oi
ls

, c
ur

in
g 

co
m

po
un

ds
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
m

at
er

ia
ls

, u
nl

es
s m

an
ag

ed
 b

y 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 c
on

tro
ls

 a
s

de
te

rm
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t;
5.

Fu
el

s, 
oi

ls
, o

r o
th

er
 p

ol
lu

ta
nt

s u
se

d 
in

 v
eh

ic
le

 a
nd

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t o

pe
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

;
6.

So
ap

s o
r s

ol
ve

nt
s u

se
d 

in
 v

eh
ic

le
 a

nd
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t w
as

hi
ng

;
7.

D
is

ch
ar

ge
s f

ro
m

 d
ew

at
er

in
g 

ac
tiv

iti
es

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

s o
f g

ro
un

d 
w

at
er

 o
r a

cc
um

ul
at

ed
 st

or
m

w
at

er
 fr

om
 d

ew
at

er
in

g 
of

 tr
en

ch
es

, e
xc

av
at

io
ns

, f
ou

nd
at

io
ns

, v
au

lts
, o

r
ot

he
r s

im
ila

r p
oi

nt
s o

f a
cc

um
ul

at
io

n,
 u

nl
es

s m
an

ag
ed

 b
y 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 c

on
tro

ls
, a

s d
et

er
m

in
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t;

8.
D

is
ch

ar
ge

s t
o 

su
rf

ac
e 

w
at

er
s f

ro
m

 se
di

m
en

t b
as

in
s o

r i
m

po
un

dm
en

ts
, u

nl
es

s a
n 

ou
tle

t s
tru

ct
ur

e 
th

at
 w

ith
dr

aw
s w

at
er

 fr
om

 th
e 

su
rf

ac
e,

 u
nl

es
s i

nf
ea

si
bl

e,
 is

 u
til

iz
ed

;
9.

D
is

ch
ar

ge
s w

he
re

 th
e 

tu
rb

id
ity

 o
f s

uc
h 

di
sc

ha
rg

e 
w

ill
 c

au
se

 o
r c

on
tri

bu
te

 to
 a

 su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l v

is
ib

le
 c

on
tra

st
 w

ith
 th

e 
na

tu
ra

l a
pp

ea
ra

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
re

ce
iv

in
g 

w
at

er
;

10
.

D
is

ch
ar

ge
s w

he
re

 th
e 

tu
rb

id
ity

 o
f s

uc
h 

di
sc

ha
rg

e 
w

ill
 c

au
se

 o
r c

on
tri

bu
te

 to
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 th
e 

tu
rb

id
ity

 o
f t

he
 re

ce
iv

in
g 

w
at

er
 b

y 
m

or
e 

th
an

 5
0 

N
TU

s a
bo

ve
 b

ac
kg

ro
un

d.
 F

or
th

e 
pu

rp
os

es
 o

f d
et

er
m

in
in

g 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

is
 li

m
ita

tio
n,

 b
ac

kg
ro

un
d 

w
ill

 b
e 

in
te

rp
re

te
d 

as
 th

e 
na

tu
ra

l c
on

di
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
w

at
er

 w
ith

ou
t t

he
 in

flu
en

ce
 o

f m
an

-m
ad

e 
or

m
an

-in
du

ce
d 

ca
us

es
. T

ur
bi

di
ty

 le
ve

ls
 c

au
se

d 
by

 n
at

ur
al

 ru
no

ff
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 e
st

ab
lis

hi
ng

 b
ac

kg
ro

un
d 

le
ve

ls
;

11
.

D
is

ch
ar

ge
s o

f a
ny

 p
ol

lu
ta

nt
 in

to
 a

ny
 w

at
er

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 a
 to

ta
l m

ax
im

um
 d

ai
ly

 lo
ad

 (T
M

D
L)

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
fin

al
iz

ed
 o

r a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 E
PA

 u
nl

es
s t

he
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

 is
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 th
e

TM
D

L;
 a

nd
12

.
D

is
ch

ar
ge

s t
o 

w
at

er
s l

is
te

d 
on

 th
e 

m
os

t r
ec

en
tly

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
30

3(
d)

 li
st

 o
f i

m
pa

ire
d 

st
re

am
s u

nl
es

s t
he

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
 w

ill
 n

ot
 c

au
se

 o
r c

on
tri

bu
te

 to
 th

e 
lis

te
d 

im
pa

irm
en

t.

PA
R

T
 II

 N
ot

ic
e 

of
 In

te
nt

 (N
O

I)
 R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 (P
A

R
T

)
D

.
Su

bm
itt

al
 o

f D
oc

um
en

ts
Th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 m

us
t c

om
pl

et
e 

an
d 

su
bm

it 
th

e 
N

O
I e

le
ct

ro
ni

ca
lly

, u
si

ng
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t’s
 e

N
O

I s
ys

te
m

, u
nl

es
s t

he
 P

er
m

itt
ee

 su
bm

its
 in

 w
rit

in
g 

va
lid

 ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

as
 to

 w
hy

 th
e

el
ec

tro
ni

c 
su

bm
itt

al
 p

ro
ce

ss
 c

an
no

t b
e 

ut
ili

ze
d 

an
d

th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t a

pp
ro

ve
s i

n 
w

rit
in

g 
th

e 
ut

ili
za

tio
n 

of
 h

ar
d 

co
py

 su
bm

itt
al

s. 
Th

e 
eN

O
I s

ys
te

m
 c

an
 b

e 
ac

ce
ss

ed
 a

t t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
lin

k
ht

tp
s:

//a
pp

.a
de

m
.a

la
ba

m
a.

go
v/

eN
O

I/D
ef

au
lt.

as
px

. P
er

m
it 

re
qu

es
ts

 fo
r i

ni
tia

l i
ss

ua
nc

e 
an

d 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 e
xi

st
in

g 
pe

rm
it 

sh
ou

ld
 a

ll 
be

 su
bm

itt
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

eN
O

I s
ys

te
m

. A
ll

ot
he

r d
oc

um
en

ts
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 b
e 

su
bm

itt
ed

 to
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t b
y 

th
is

 g
en

er
al

 p
er

m
it 

sh
al

l b
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 to
 th

e
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ad
dr

es
s:

A
la

ba
m

a 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l M

an
ag

em
en

t
W

at
er

 D
iv

is
io

n
St

or
m

w
at

er
 M

an
ag

em
en

t B
ra

nc
h

Po
st

 O
ff

ic
e 

B
ox

 3
01

46
3 

(Z
ip

 C
od

e:
 3

61
30

-1
46

3)
14

00
 C

ol
is

eu
m

 B
ou

le
va

rd
 (Z

ip
 C

od
e:

 3
61

10
-2

05
9)

M
on

tg
om

er
y,

 A
la

ba
m

a

PA
R

T
 II

I S
to

rm
w

at
er

 P
ol

lu
tio

n 
Pr

ev
en

tio
n 

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 (P

A
R

T
)

B
.

Pr
ov

id
e 

N
at

ur
al

 B
uf

fe
rs

 o
r 

E
qu

iv
al

en
t S

ed
im

en
t C

on
tr

ol
s

B
uf

fe
r z

on
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 a
pp

ly
 to

 a
ll 

su
rf

ac
e 

w
at

er
s a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
si

te
s o

r c
on

ta
in

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
ei

r o
ve

ra
ll 

pr
oj

ec
t b

ou
nd

ar
y.

 A
 2

5-
fo

ot
 n

at
ur

al
 ri

pa
ria

n 
bu

ff
er

 z
on

e 
ad

ja
ce

nt
to

 a
ll 

st
re

am
s a

t t
he

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
si

te
 sh

al
l b

e 
pr

es
er

ve
d,

 to
 th

e 
m

ax
im

um
 e

xt
en

t p
ra

ct
ic

ab
le

, d
ur

in
g 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 a
t t

he
 si

te
. T

he
 ri

pa
ria

n 
bu

ff
er

 z
on

e 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

pr
es

er
ve

d
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
to

p 
of

 st
re

am
 b

an
k 

an
d 

th
e 

di
st

ur
be

d 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
ar

ea
. T

he
 w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

bu
ff

er
 z

on
e 

ai
ds

 in
 th

e 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

of
 w

at
er

s o
f t

he
 st

at
e 

(e
.g

., 
pe

re
nn

ia
l a

nd
 in

te
rm

itt
en

t s
tre

am
s,

riv
er

s, 
la

ke
s, 

w
et

la
nd

s)
 lo

ca
te

d 
w

ith
in

 o
r i

m
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

th
e 

bo
un

da
rie

s o
f t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
. N

at
ur

al
 b

uf
fe

r z
on

es
 a

re
 n

ot
 p

rim
ar

y 
se

di
m

en
t c

on
tro

l m
ea

su
re

s a
nd

 sh
ou

ld
 n

ot
 b

e
re

lie
d 

on
 a

s s
uc

h.
 T

he
 n

at
ur

al
 b

uf
fe

r z
on

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t o
nl

y 
ap

pl
ie

s t
o 

ne
w

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
si

te
s.

1.
C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
A

lte
rn

at
iv

es
(a

)
Pr

ov
id

e 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

a 
25

-f
oo

t u
nd

is
tu

rb
ed

 n
at

ur
al

 b
uf

fe
r; 

or
(i)

If
 la

nd
 d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
s a

re
 lo

ca
te

d 
25

 fe
et

 o
r f

ur
th

er
 fr

om
 su

rf
ac

e 
w

at
er

, t
he

n 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

is
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
ha

s b
ee

n 
ac

hi
ev

ed
.

(ii
)

R
eh

ab
ili

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
en

ha
nc

em
en

t o
f a

 n
at

ur
al

 b
uf

fe
r z

on
e 

is
 a

llo
w

ed
, i

f n
ec

es
sa

ry
, f

or
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t o
f i

ts
 e

ff
ec

tiv
en

es
s o

f p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

of
 th

e 
w

at
er

s o
f t

he
 st

at
e.

(ii
i)

A
ny

 p
re

ex
is

tin
g 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 (e

.g
., 

bu
ild

in
gs

, p
ar

ki
ng

 lo
ts

, r
oa

dw
ay

s, 
ut

ili
ty

 li
ne

s, 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

, i
m

pe
rv

io
us

 su
rf

ac
es

) a
re

 a
llo

w
ed

 in
 th

e 
na

tu
ra

l b
uf

fe
r; 

pr
ov

id
ed

 th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

re
ta

in
s a

nd
 p

ro
te

ct
s f

ro
m

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 a
ny

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 n

at
ur

al
 b

uf
fe

r a
re

a 
co

nt
ai

ne
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
bu

ff
er

 z
on

e 
bu

t o
ut

si
de

 th
e 

pr
ee

xi
st

in
g 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 fo

ot
pr

in
t.

(b
)

Pr
ov

id
e 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

 u
nd

is
tu

rb
ed

 n
at

ur
al

 b
uf

fe
r t

ha
t i

s l
es

s t
ha

n 
25

 fe
et

 a
nd

 is
 su

pp
le

m
en

te
d 

by
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 e
ro

si
on

 a
nd

 se
di

m
en

t c
on

tro
ls

, w
hi

ch
 in

 c
om

bi
na

tio
n 

ac
hi

ev
es

th
e 

se
di

m
en

t l
oa

d 
re

du
ct

io
n 

eq
ui

va
le

nt
 to

 a
 2

5-
fo

ot
 u

nd
is

tu
rb

ed
 n

at
ur

al
 b

uf
fe

r; 
or

(c
)

If
 it

 is
 in

fe
as

ib
le

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

nd
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

an
 u

nd
is

tu
rb

ed
 n

at
ur

al
 b

uf
fe

r o
f a

ny
 si

ze
, t

he
 P

er
m

itt
ee

 m
us

t i
m

pl
em

en
t e

ro
si

on
 a

nd
 se

di
m

en
t c

on
tro

ls
 th

at
 a

ch
ie

ve
 th

e 
se

di
m

en
t l

oa
d

re
du

ct
io

n 
eq

ui
va

le
nt

 to
 a

 2
5-

fo
ot

 u
nd

is
tu

rb
ed

 n
at

ur
al

 b
uf

fe
r.

(d
)

A
ll 

di
sc

ha
rg

es
 fr

om
 th

e 
ar

ea
 o

f e
ar

th
 d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 to

 th
e 

na
tu

ra
l b

uf
fe

r m
us

t f
irs

t b
e 

tre
at

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
si

te
’s

 e
ro

si
on

 a
nd

 se
di

m
en

t c
on

tro
ls

, a
nd

 u
se

 v
el

oc
ity

 d
is

si
pa

tio
n 

de
vi

ce
s i

f
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

to
 p

re
ve

nt
 e

ro
si

on
 c

au
se

d 
by

 st
or

m
w

at
er

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
bu

ff
er

.
(e

)
A

ll 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
 m

us
t b

e 
do

cu
m

en
te

d 
in

 th
e 

C
B

M
PP

 a
nd

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 a
ll 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

. T
he

 b
uf

fe
r b

ou
nd

ar
y 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
in

di
ca

te
d 

on
 th

e 
si

te
 p

la
n.

(f
)

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 m
us

t b
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
du

ra
tio

n 
of

 p
er

m
it 

co
ve

ra
ge

.
(g

)
A

ll 
na

tu
ra

l b
uf

fe
r a

re
as

 sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
de

lin
ea

te
d,

 a
nd

 c
le

ar
ly

 m
ar

ke
d 

of
f w

ith
 fl

ag
s, 

ta
pe

, o
r s

im
ila

r m
ar

ki
ng

de
vi

ce
.

2.
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 a
t s

ite
s t

ha
t h

av
e 

be
en

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 p

rio
r t

o 
A

pr
il 

1,
 2

01
6,

 a
re

 e
xe

m
pt

 fr
om

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

hi
s P

ar
t I

II
.B

. C
on

fir
m

at
io

n 
of

 p
er

m
it 

co
ve

ra
ge

 p
rio

r t
o

A
pr

il 
1,

 2
01

6,
 m

us
t b

e 
su

bm
itt

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
N

O
I.

3.
If

 th
er

e 
is

 n
o 

di
sc

ha
rg

e 
of

 st
or

m
w

at
er

 to
 su

rf
ac

e 
w

at
er

s t
hr

ou
gh

 th
e 

ar
ea

s b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
si

te
 a

nd
 a

ny
 su

rf
ac

e 
w

at
er

s l
oc

at
ed

 w
ith

in
 2

5 
fe

et
 o

f y
ou

r s
ite

, c
om

pl
ia

nc
e

w
ith

 th
is

 re
qu

ire
m

en
t i

s a
ch

ie
ve

d.
4.

W
he

re
 n

o 
na

tu
ra

l b
uf

fe
r e

xi
st

s d
ue

 to
 p

re
ex

is
tin

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

s (
e.

g.
, b

ui
ld

in
gs

, p
ar

ki
ng

 lo
ts

, r
oa

dw
ay

s, 
ut

ili
ty

 li
ne

s, 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

, i
m

pe
rv

io
us

 su
rf

ac
es

) t
ha

t o
cc

ur
re

d
pr

io
r t

o 
th

e 
in

iti
at

io
n 

of
 p

la
nn

in
g 

fo
r t

he
cu

rr
en

t d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f t

he
 si

te
, t

he
 P

er
m

itt
ee

 is
 n

ot
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 in
 th

is
 se

ct
io

n,
 u

nl
es

s p
or

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 p

re
ex

is
tin

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t w
ill

 b
e 

re
m

ov
ed

.
5.

W
he

re
 so

m
e 

na
tu

ra
l b

uf
fe

r e
xi

st
s b

ut
 p

or
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 a
re

a 
w

ith
in

 2
5 

fe
et

 o
f t

he
 su

rf
ac

e 
w

at
er

 a
re

 o
cc

up
ie

d 
by

 p
re

ex
is

tin
g 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
s, 

th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 is
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

co
m

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 in
 th

is
 se

ct
io

n.
 O

nl
y 

th
e 

po
rti

on
 o

f t
he

 b
uf

fe
r z

on
e 

th
at

 c
on

ta
in

s t
he

 fo
ot

pr
in

t o
f t

he
 e

xi
st

in
g 

“s
tru

ct
ur

e”
 is

 e
xe

m
pt

  f
ro

m
 th

e 
bu

ff
er

 z
on

e.
 A

ct
iv

iti
es

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
us

es
 a

re
 a

llo
w

ed
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

th
at

 n
o 

ad
di

tio
na

l v
eg

et
at

io
n 

is
 re

m
ov

ed
 fr

om
 th

e 
bu

ff
er

 z
on

e.
6.

Fo
r “

lin
ea

r c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
pr

oj
ec

ts
”,

 th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 is
 n

ot
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 in
 th

is
 se

ct
io

n 
if 

si
te

 c
on

st
ra

in
ts

 (e
.g

., 
lim

ite
d 

rig
ht

-o
f-

w
ay

) p
re

ve
nt

 th
e

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 fr
om

 m
ee

tin
g 

an
y 

of
 th

e 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

th
at

, t
o 

th
e 

ex
te

nt
 p

ra
ct

ic
ab

le
, d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
s w

ith
in

 2
5 

fe
et

 o
f t

he
 su

rf
ac

e 
w

at
er

 a
re

 li
m

ite
d 

an
d/

or
 su

pp
le

m
en

ta
l

er
os

io
n 

an
d 

se
di

m
en

t c
on

tro
ls

 to
 tr

ea
t s

to
rm

w
at

er
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

s f
ro

m
 e

ar
th

di
st

ur
ba

nc
es

 w
ith

in
 2

5 
fe

et
 o

f t
he

 su
rf

ac
e 

w
at

er
 a

re
 p

ro
vi

de
d.

 It
 m

us
t b

e 
do

cu
m

en
te

d 
in

 th
e 

C
B

M
PP

 a
s t

o 
w

hy
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

is 
se

ct
io

n 
is

 in
fe

as
ib

le
, a

nd
 d

es
cr

ib
e 

an
y 

bu
ff

er
w

id
th

 re
ta

in
ed

 a
nd

/o
r s

up
pl

em
en

ta
l e

ro
si

on
 a

nd
 se

di
m

en
t c

on
tro

ls
 in

st
al

le
d.

7.
Fo

r “
sm

al
l r

es
id

en
tia

l l
ot

” 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
(i.

e.
, a

 lo
t b

ei
ng

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 fo

r r
es

id
en

tia
l p

ur
po

se
s t

ha
t w

ill
 d

is
tu

rb
 le

ss
 th

an
 1

 a
cr

e 
of

 la
nd

, b
ut

 is
 p

ar
t o

f a
 la

rg
er

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l p

ro
je

ct
th

at
 w

ill
 u

lti
m

at
el

y 
di

st
ur

b 
gr

ea
te

r t
ha

n 
or

 e
qu

al
 to

 1
 a

cr
e)

, y
ou

 h
av

e 
th

e 
op

tio
n 

of
 c

om
pl

yi
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t o

r l
im

iti
ng

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 w
ith

in
 2

5 
fe

et
 o

f t
he

 su
rf

ac
e 

w
at

er
 a

nd
/o

r
pr

ov
id

e 
su

pp
le

m
en

ta
l e

ro
si

on
 a

nd
 se

di
m

en
t c

on
tro

ls
 to

 tr
ea

t s
to

rm
w

at
er

di
sc

ha
rg

es
 fr

om
 e

ar
th

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

s w
ith

in
 2

5 
fe

et
 o

f t
he

 su
rf

ac
e 

w
at

er
.

8.
Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

di
st

ur
ba

nc
es

 w
ith

in
 2

5 
fe

et
 o

f a
 su

rf
ac

e 
w

at
er

 a
re

 e
xe

m
pt

 fr
om

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 in
 th

is
 P

ar
t:

(a
)

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 u

nd
er

 a
 C

W
A

 S
ec

tio
n 

40
4 

pe
rm

it;
 o

r
(b

)
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

of
 a

 w
at

er
-d

ep
en

de
nt

 st
ru

ct
ur

e 
or

 w
at

er
 a

cc
es

s a
re

a 
(e

.g
., 

pi
er

, b
oa

t r
am

p,
 tr

ai
l)

C
.

So
il 

St
ab

ili
za

tio
n

Fi
na

l s
ta

bi
liz

at
io

n 
of

 d
is

tu
rb

ed
 a

re
as

 m
us

t, 
at

 a
 m

in
im

um
, b

e 
in

iti
at

ed
 im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 w

he
ne

ve
r a

ny
 c

le
ar

in
g,

 g
ra

di
ng

, e
xc

av
at

in
g 

or
 o

th
er

 e
ar

th
 d

is
tu

rb
in

g 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 h

av
e 

pe
rm

an
en

tly
ce

as
ed

 o
n 

an
y 

po
rti

on
 o

f t
he

 si
te

. T
em

po
ra

ry
 st

ab
ili

za
tio

n 
of

 d
is

tu
rb

ed
 a

re
as

 m
us

t b
e 

in
iti

at
ed

 im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 w
he

ne
ve

r w
or

k 
to

w
ar

d 
pr

oj
ec

t c
om

pl
et

io
n 

an
d 

fin
al

 st
ab

ili
za

tio
n 

of
 a

y
po

rti
on

 o
f t

he
 si

te
 h

as
 te

m
po

ra
ril

y 
ce

as
ed

 o
n 

an
y 

po
rti

on
 o

f t
he

 si
te

 a
nd

w
ill

 n
ot

 re
su

m
e 

fo
r a

 p
er

io
d 

ex
ce

ed
in

g 
th

irt
ee

n 
(1

3)
 c

al
en

da
r d

ay
s.

D
.

Po
llu

tio
n 

Pr
ev

en
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s

Th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 m
us

t d
es

ig
n,

 in
st

al
l, 

im
pl

em
en

t, 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
po

llu
tio

n 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s t
o 

m
in

im
iz

e 
th

e 
di

sc
ha

rg
e 

of
 p

ol
lu

ta
nt

s. 
A

t a
 m

in
im

um
, s

uc
h 

m
ea

su
re

s m
us

t b
e

de
si

gn
ed

, i
ns

ta
lle

d,
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
to

:
1.

M
in

im
iz

e 
th

e 
di

sc
ha

rg
e 

of
 p

ol
lu

ta
nt

s f
ro

m
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t a
nd

 v
eh

ic
le

 w
as

hi
ng

, w
he

el
 w

as
h 

w
at

er
, c

on
cr

et
e 

w
as

ho
ut

, a
nd

 o
th

er
 w

as
h 

w
at

er
s. 

W
as

h 
w

at
er

s m
us

t b
e 

tre
at

ed
 in

 a
se

di
m

en
t b

as
in

 o
r a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
co

nt
ro

l t
ha

t p
ro

vi
de

s e
qu

iv
al

en
t o

r b
et

te
r t

re
at

m
en

t p
rio

r t
o 

di
sc

ha
rg

e;
(a

)
Li

qu
id

 w
as

te
 sh

al
l n

ot
 b

e 
di

sc
ha

rg
ed

 in
to

 st
or

m
 se

w
er

s.
(b

)
W

as
ho

ut
 a

nd
 c

le
an

ou
t a

ct
iv

iti
es

 sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
lo

ca
te

d 
as

 fa
r a

w
ay

 a
s p

os
si

bl
e 

fr
om

 su
rf

ac
e 

w
at

er
s, 

na
tu

ra
l b

uf
fe

r a
re

as
, s

to
rm

w
at

er
 in

le
ts

, a
nd

 c
on

ve
ya

nc
es

.
2.

M
in

im
iz

e 
th

e 
ex

po
su

re
 o

f b
ui

ld
in

g 
m

at
er

ia
ls

, b
ui

ld
in

g 
pr

od
uc

ts
, c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

w
as

te
s, 

tra
sh

, l
an

ds
ca

pe
 m

at
er

ia
ls

, f
er

til
iz

er
s, 

pe
st

ic
id

es
, h

er
bi

ci
de

s, 
de

te
rg

en
ts

, s
an

ita
ry

 w
as

te
an

d 
ot

he
r m

at
er

ia
ls

 p
re

se
nt

 o
n 

th
e 

si
te

 to
 p

re
ci

pi
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

to
 st

or
m

w
at

er
;

3.
M

in
im

iz
e 

th
e 

di
sc

ha
rg

e 
of

 p
ol

lu
ta

nt
s f

ro
m

 a
ny

 sp
ill

s a
nd

 le
ak

s f
ro

m
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 b
ut

 n
ot

 li
m

ite
d 

to
 v

eh
ic

le
s;

 m
ec

ha
ni

ca
l e

qu
ip

m
en

t; 
ch

em
ic

al
 st

or
ag

e;
 a

nd
 re

fu
el

in
g 

ac
tiv

iti
es

;
an

d
4.

U
se

 o
f p

ol
ym

er
s, 

flo
cc

ul
an

ts
, o

r o
th

er
 tr

ea
tm

en
t c

he
m

ic
al

s a
t t

he
 si

te
 m

ay
 o

nl
y 

be
 a

pp
lie

d 
w

he
re

 tr
ea

te
d 

st
or

m
w

at
er

 is
 d

ire
ct

ed
 to

 a
 se

di
m

en
t c

on
tro

l p
rio

r t
o 

di
sc

ha
rg

e.
E

.
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

B
es

t M
an

ag
em

en
t P

ra
ct

ic
es

 P
la

n 
(C

B
M

PP
) (

PA
R

T
)

5.
M

ai
nt

ai
n 

an
 U

pd
at

ed
 C

B
M

PP
(a

)
Th

e 
C

B
M

PP
 sh

al
l b

e 
up

da
te

d 
as

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 th

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
ac

tiv
ity

, s
ite

 w
ea

th
er

 p
at

te
rn

s, 
ne

w
 T

M
D

Ls
 fi

na
liz

ed
 o

r a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 E
PA

, n
ew

 3
03

(d
)

lis
tin

gs
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 E

PA
, o

r m
an

uf
ac

tu
re

r s
pe

ci
fic

at
io

ns
 fo

r s
pe

ci
fic

 c
on

tro
l

te
ch

no
lo

gi
es

.
(b

)
Th

e 
C

B
M

PP
 sh

al
l b

e 
am

en
de

d 
if 

in
sp

ec
tio

ns
 o

r i
nv

es
tig

at
io

ns
 b

y 
si

te
 st

af
f o

r b
y 

lo
ca

l, 
st

at
e,

 o
r f

ed
er

al
 o

ff
ic

ia
ls

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

th
at

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

se
di

m
en

t
co

nt
ro

l m
ea

su
re

s, 
er

os
io

n 
co

nt
ro

l m
ea

su
re

s, 
or

 o
th

er
 si

te
 m

an
ag

em
en

t p
ra

ct
ic

es
 a

re
 in

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
or

 d
o 

no
t m

ee
t t

he
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
hi

s p
er

m
it.

 A
ll 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 to

 th
e 

C
B

M
PP

 sh
al

l b
e 

m
ad

e 
w

ith
in

 se
ve

n 
(7

) c
al

en
da

r d
ay

s f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

no
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

un
le

ss
 g

ra
nt

ed
 a

n 
ex

te
ns

io
n 

of
 ti

m
e 

by
 th

e
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t.
(c

)
If

 e
xi

st
in

g 
se

di
m

en
t c

on
tro

l m
ea

su
re

s, 
er

os
io

n 
co

nt
ro

l m
ea

su
re

s, 
or

 o
th

er
 si

te
 m

an
ag

em
en

t p
ra

ct
ic

es
 p

ro
ve

 in
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

in
 p

ro
te

ct
in

g 
w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

or
 n

ee
d

to
 b

e 
m

od
ifi

ed
; o

r i
f a

dd
iti

on
al

 se
di

m
en

t c
on

tro
l m

ea
su

re
s, 

er
os

io
n 

co
nt

ro
l m

ea
su

re
s, 

or
 o

th
er

 si
te

 m
an

ag
em

en
t p

ra
ct

ic
es

 a
re

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 to

 m
ee

t t
he

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

of
 P

ar
t I

II
.A

. B
. C

. D
. a

nd
 E

., 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

sh
al

l b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 b

ef
or

e 
th

e 
ne

xt
 st

or
m

 e
ve

nt
 w

he
ne

ve
r p

ra
ct

ic
ab

le
. I

f i
m

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

be
fo

re
 th

e 
ne

xt
 st

or
m

ev
en

t i
s i

m
pr

ac
tic

ab
le

, t
he

n 
ne

w
 la

nd
 d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 m
us

t c
ea

se
 u

nt
il 

th
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 o
r a

dd
iti

on
al

 c
on

tro
ls

 c
an

 b
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d.

(d
)

A
 c

op
y 

of
 th

e 
C

B
M

PP
 sh

al
l b

e 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
at

 th
e 

si
te

 d
ur

in
g 

no
rm

al
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

ho
ur

s a
s d

ef
in

ed
 b

y 
Pa

rt 
V

 o
f t

hi
s p

er
m

it 
w

he
n 

re
gu

la
te

d 
la

nd
 d

is
tu

rb
in

g
ac

tiv
iti

es
 a

re
 o

cc
ur

rin
g.

F.
Sp

ill
 P

re
ve

nt
io

n,
 C

on
tr

ol
, a

nd
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
Th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 sh

al
l p

re
pa

re
, i

m
pl

em
en

t, 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

a 
Sp

ill
 P

re
ve

nt
io

n,
 C

on
tro

l a
nd

 C
ou

nt
er

m
ea

su
re

s (
SP

C
C

) P
la

n 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 4
0 

C
FR

 P
ar

t 1
12

 a
nd

A
D

EM
 A

dm
in

 C
od

e 
r.3

35
-6

-6
-.1

2(
r)

 fo
r a

ll 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 o
ns

ite
 p

et
ro

le
um

 st
or

ag
e 

ta
nk

s. 
Th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 sh

al
l a

ls
o 

pr
ep

ar
e,

 im
pl

em
en

t, 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

a 
SP

C
C

 P
la

n
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 A
D

EM
 A

dm
in

 C
od

e 
r.3

35
-6

-6
-.1

2(
r)

 fo
r a

ny
 st

or
ed

 p
ol

lu
ta

nt
(s

) t
ha

t m
ay

, i
f s

pi
lle

d,
 b

e 
re

as
on

ab
ly

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 e
nt

er
 a

 w
at

er
 o

f t
he

 st
at

e 
or

th
e 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
sy

st
em

 fo
r a

 p
ub

lic
ly

 o
r p

riv
at

el
y 

ow
ne

d 
tre

at
m

en
t w

or
ks

. T
he

 S
PC

C
 P

la
n(

s)
 sh

al
l b

e 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
as

 a
 se

pa
ra

te
 d

oc
um

en
t o

r a
s p

ar
t o

f t
he

 C
B

M
PP

Pl
an

 re
qu

ire
d 

in
 P

ar
t I

II
.D

. T
he

 P
er

m
itt

ee
 sh

al
l i

m
pl

em
en

t a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 st
ru

ct
ur

al
 a

nd
/o

r n
on

-s
tru

ct
ur

al
 sp

ill
 p

re
ve

nt
io

n,
 c

on
tro

l, 
an

d/
or

m
an

ag
em

en
t s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 to
 p

re
ve

nt
 a

ny
 sp

ill
s o

f p
ol

lu
ta

nt
s f

ro
m

 e
nt

er
in

g 
a 

w
at

er
 o

f t
he

 st
at

e 
or

 a
 p

ub
lic

ly
 o

r p
riv

at
el

y 
ow

ne
d 

tre
at

m
en

t w
or

ks
. T

he
 p

la
n(

s)
 m

us
t

be
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f 4

0 
C

FR
 P

ar
t 1

12
 a

nd
/o

r A
D

EM
 A

dm
in

 C
od

e 
r.3

35
-6

-6
-.1

2(
r)

. A
ny

 c
on

ta
in

m
en

t s
ys

te
m

 u
se

d 
to

 im
pl

em
en

t t
hi

s
re

qu
ire

m
en

t s
ha

ll 
be

 c
on

st
ru

ct
ed

 o
f m

at
er

ia
ls

 c
om

pa
tib

le
 w

ith
 th

e 
su

bs
ta

nc
e(

s)
 c

on
ta

in
ed

 a
nd

 o
f m

at
er

ia
ls

 w
hi

ch
 sh

al
l p

re
ve

nt
 th

e 
co

nt
am

in
at

io
n 

of
 g

ro
un

dw
at

er
an

d 
sh

al
l b

e 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 re
ta

in
in

g 
11

0 
pe

rc
en

t o
f t

he
 v

ol
um

e 
of

 th
e 

la
rg

es
t c

on
ta

in
er

 o
f p

ol
lu

ta
nt

s f
or

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
co

nt
ai

nm
en

t s
ys

te
m

 is
 p

ro
vi

de
d.

 T
he

 P
er

m
itt

ee
sh

al
l m

ai
nt

ai
n 

on
si

te
 o

r h
av

e 
re

ad
ily

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
su

ff
ic

ie
nt

 o
il 

&
 g

re
as

e 
ab

so
rb

in
g 

m
at

er
ia

l a
nd

 a
flo

ta
tio

n 
bo

om
s t

o 
co

nt
ai

n 
an

d 
cl

ea
n-

up
 fu

el
 o

r c
he

m
ic

al
sp

ill
s a

nd
 le

ak
s. 

So
il 

co
nt

am
in

at
ed

 b
y 

pa
in

t o
r c

he
m

ic
al

 sp
ill

s, 
oi

l s
pi

lls
, e

tc
. m

us
t b

e 
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 c

le
an

ed
 u

p,
 re

m
ed

ia
te

d,
 o

r b
e 

re
m

ov
ed

 a
nd

 d
is

po
se

d 
of

 in
 a

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t a

pp
ro

ve
d 

m
an

ne
r.

G
.

T
ra

in
in

g
U

nl
es

s t
he

 P
er

m
itt

ee
 h

as
 e

m
pl

oy
ed

 o
r c

on
tra

ct
ed

 w
ith

 a
 Q

C
P 

th
at

 p
er

fo
rm

s d
ut

ie
s a

s r
eq

ui
re

d 
by

 th
is

 p
er

m
it,

 a
nd

 th
e 

Q
C

P 
is

 re
ad

ily
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

an
d 

ab
le

 to
 b

e
pr

es
en

t o
ns

ite
 a

s o
fte

n 
as

 is
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
fu

ll 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
hi

s p
er

m
it,

 th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 sh
al

l e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

:
1.

A
t l

ea
st

 o
ne

 o
ns

ite
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 sh
al

l b
e 

ce
rti

fie
d 

as
 a

 Q
ua

lif
ie

d 
C

re
de

nt
ia

le
d 

In
sp

ec
to

r (
Q

C
I)

 b
y 

co
m

pl
et

in
g 

an
 in

iti
al

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 a
nn

ua
l r

ef
re

sh
er

s t
hr

ou
gh

an
 A

D
EM

-a
pp

ro
ve

d 
Q

ua
lif

ie
d 

C
re

de
nt

ia
le

d 
In

sp
ec

to
r P

ro
gr

am
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 b
y 

a 
co

op
er

at
in

g 
tra

in
in

g 
en

tit
y.

2.
Th

e 
Q

C
IP

 m
us

t b
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t p

rio
r t

o 
us

e 
an

d 
pr

ov
id

e 
tra

in
in

g 
in

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ar

ea
s:

(a
)

Th
e 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 A
la

ba
m

a 
N

PD
ES

 ru
le

s;
(b

)
Th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
hi

s p
er

m
it;

(c
)

Th
e 

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
of

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
si

te
s t

o 
en

su
re

 th
at

 Q
C

P 
de

si
gn

ed
 a

nd
 c

er
tif

ie
d 

er
os

io
n 

co
nt

ro
ls

 a
nd

 se
di

m
en

t c
on

tro
ls

 d
et

ai
le

d 
in

 a
 C

B
M

PP
 a

re
 e

ff
ec

tiv
el

y
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d;
(d

)
Th

e 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

of
 c

on
ve

ya
nc

e 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

, r
ec

ei
vi

ng
 w

at
er

s a
nd

 a
dj

ac
en

t i
m

pa
ct

ed
 o

ff
si

te
 a

re
as

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

of
 w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e

w
ith

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

hi
s p

er
m

it;
 a

nd
3.

Ea
ch

 in
di

vi
du

al
 h

ol
di

ng
 a

 Q
C

I C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
ne

ed
 n

ot
 b

e 
on

-s
ite

 c
on

tin
uo

us
ly

 a
nd

 th
ey

 m
ay

 c
on

du
ct

 si
te

 in
sp

ec
tio

ns
 a

t m
ul

tip
le

 si
te

s p
er

m
itt

ed
 b

y 
th

em
 o

r
th

ei
r e

m
pl

oy
er

.
4.

Ea
ch

 in
di

vi
du

al
 h

ol
di

ng
 Q

C
I c

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

sh
al

l o
bt

ai
n 

an
nu

al
 c

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 sa

tis
fa

ct
or

y 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
of

 fo
rm

al
 re

fr
es

he
r e

du
ca

tio
n 

or
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 re

ga
rd

in
g

ge
ne

ra
l e

ro
si

on
 c

on
tro

ls
 a

nd
 se

di
m

en
t c

on
tro

ls
, t

he
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
hi

s p
er

m
it,

 a
nd

 th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l o

pe
ra

tio
n 

of
 a

 tu
rb

id
ity

 m
et

er
 o

r s
im

ila
r d

ev
ic

e 
in

te
nd

ed
 fo

r t
he

m
ea

su
re

m
en

t o
f t

ur
bi

di
ty

. T
he

 re
fr

es
he

r t
ra

in
in

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 b
ut

 n
ot

 li
m

ite
d 

to
, a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 c

ur
ric

ul
a,

 c
ou

rs
e 

co
nt

en
t, 

co
ur

se
 le

ng
th

, a
nd

 a
ny

pa
rti

ci
pa

nt
 te

st
in

g,
 sh

al
l b

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

ac
ce

pt
an

ce
 b

y 
th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 p

rio
r t

o 
us

e.
H

.
In

sp
ec

tio
n 

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
1.

Pr
e-

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
O

bs
er

va
tio

ns
(a

)
A

 p
re

-c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
si

te
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

sh
al

l b
e 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
pr

io
r t

he
 p

la
ce

m
en

t o
f a

ny
 B

M
Ps

, o
r t

he
 c

om
m

en
ce

m
en

t o
f l

an
d 

di
st

ur
bi

ng
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

.
(b

)
Pr

e-
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

sh
al

l c
on

si
st

 o
f a

 c
om

pl
et

e 
an

d 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 in
sp

ec
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

en
tir

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

si
te

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
al

l p
ro

po
se

d 
ar

ea
s

of
 la

nd
 d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
, p

ro
po

se
d 

ar
ea

s u
se

d 
fo

r s
to

ra
ge

 o
f m

at
er

ia
ls

 th
at

 m
ay

 b
e 

ex
po

se
d 

to
 p

re
ci

pi
ta

tio
n,

 a
ff

ec
te

d 
di

tc
he

s, 
an

d 
ot

he
r s

to
rm

w
at

er
 c

on
ve

ya
nc

es
, a

s
w

el
l a

s a
ll 

pr
op

os
ed

 o
ut

fa
lls

, r
ec

ei
vi

ng
 w

at
er

s a
nd

 st
re

am
 b

an
ks

 to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
if 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
pr

e-
ex

is
tin

g 
ar

ea
s o

f c
on

ce
rn

.
(c

)
Pr

e-
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 sh
al

l b
e 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

 th
e 

Q
C

P;
(d

)
Th

e 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

sh
al

l b
e 

do
cu

m
en

te
d 

an
d 

m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t u
po

n 
re

qu
es

t;
(e

)
Pr

e-
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

sh
al

l i
nc

lu
de

 d
at

ed
 e

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
ph

ot
og

ra
ph

ic
 d

oc
um

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 a

ll 
ar

ea
s d

es
cr

ib
ed

 in
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 (b
) a

bo
ve

;
(f

)
Th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 sh

al
l m

ai
nt

ai
n 

re
co

rd
 o

f t
he

 p
re

-c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
si

te
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 P

ar
t I

V
.J.

2.
D

ai
ly

 O
bs

er
va

tio
ns

(a
)

Ea
ch

 d
ay

 th
er

e 
is

 a
ct

iv
ity

 a
t t

he
 si

te
, t

he
 P

er
m

itt
ee

 sh
al

l v
is

ua
lly

 o
bs

er
ve

 th
at

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
pr

oj
ec

t w
he

re
 a

ct
iv

e 
di

st
ur

ba
nc

e,
 w

or
k,

 o
r

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

oc
cu

rr
ed

 to
 n

ot
e 

an
y 

ra
in

fa
ll 

m
ea

su
re

m
en

ts
 o

cc
ur

rin
g 

si
nc

e 
th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 o

bs
er

va
tio

n,
 a

nd
 a

ny
 a

pp
ar

en
t B

M
P 

de
fic

ie
nc

ie
s i

n 
th

e 
ar

ea
 o

f a
ct

iv
e

di
st

ur
ba

nc
e.

(b
)

Su
ch

 d
ai

ly
 o

bs
er

va
tio

ns
 m

ay
 b

e 
pe

rf
or

m
ed

 b
y 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 si

te
 p

er
so

nn
el

.
(c

)
Th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 sh

al
l m

ai
nt

ai
n 

a 
lo

g 
of

 a
ll 

da
ily

 o
bs

er
va

tio
ns

 a
nd

 re
co

rd
 in

 su
ch

 lo
g 

an
y 

ra
in

fa
ll 

m
ea

su
re

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 B

M
P 

de
fic

ie
nc

ie
s o

bs
er

ve
d.

3.
Si

te
 In

sp
ec

tio
ns

(a
)

A
 si

te
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

sh
al

l c
on

si
st

 o
f a

 c
om

pl
et

e 
an

d 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 o
bs

er
va

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
en

tir
e 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

si
te

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
al

l a
re

as
 o

f l
an

d 
di

st
ur

ba
nc

e,
 a

re
as

us
ed

 fo
r s

to
ra

ge
 o

f m
at

er
ia

ls
 th

at
 a

re
 e

xp
os

ed
 to

 p
re

ci
pi

ta
tio

n,
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t s
to

ra
ge

 a
nd

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
re

as
, a

ff
ec

te
d 

di
tc

he
s a

nd
 o

th
er

 st
or

m
w

at
er

 c
on

ve
ya

nc
es

, a
s

w
el

l a
s a

ll 
ou

tfa
lls

, r
ec

ei
vi

ng
 w

at
er

s a
nd

 st
re

am
 b

an
ks

 to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
if,

 a
nd

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

:
(i)

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
er

os
io

n 
co

nt
ro

ls
 a

nd
 se

di
m

en
t c

on
tro

ls
 h

av
e 

be
en

 fu
lly

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

is
 p

er
m

it,
 th

e 
si

te
 C

B
M

PP
, a

nd
 th

e
A

la
ba

m
a 

H
an

db
oo

k;
(ii

)
Po

llu
ta

nt
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

s a
re

 b
ei

ng
 p

re
ve

nt
ed

/m
in

im
iz

ed
 to

 th
e 

m
ax

im
um

 e
xt

en
t p

ra
ct

ic
ab

le
, a

nd
 D

is
ch

ar
ge

s a
re

 n
ot

 a
nd

 h
av

e 
no

t r
es

ul
te

d 
in

 a
 c

on
tra

ve
nt

io
n

of
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 S
ta

te
 w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

st
an

da
rd

s f
or

 th
e 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
st

re
am

(s
) o

r o
th

er
 w

at
er

s i
m

pa
ct

ed
 o

r a
ff

ec
te

d 
by

 th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

.
(b

)
Si

te
 in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 sh
al

l b
e 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 b

y 
a 

Q
C

I, 
Q

C
P,

 a
 q

ua
lif

ie
d 

pe
rs

on
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

di
re

ct
 su

pe
rv

is
io

n 
of

 a
 Q

C
P.

(c
)

Fo
r n

on
-li

ne
ar

 p
ro

je
ct

s, 
a 

si
te

 in
sp

ec
tio

n 
sh

al
l b

e 
pe

rf
or

m
ed

 o
nc

e 
ea

ch
 m

on
th

 a
nd

 a
fte

r a
ny

 q
ua

lif
yi

ng
 p

re
ci

pi
ta

tio
n 

ev
en

t, 
co

m
m

en
ci

ng
 a

s p
ro

m
pt

ly
 a

s
po

ss
ib

le
, b

ut
 n

o 
la

te
r t

ha
n 

24
-h

ou
rs

 a
fte

r r
es

um
in

g 
or

 c
on

tin
ui

ng
 a

ct
iv

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
or

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

, a
nd

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 n

o 
la

te
r t

ha
n 

72
-h

ou
rs

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e
qu

al
ify

in
g 

pr
ec

ip
ita

tio
n 

ev
en

t;
(d

)
Fo

r l
in

ea
r p

ro
je

ct
s w

he
re

 a
ct

iv
e 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

or
 a

re
as

 w
he

re
 p

er
en

ni
al

 v
eg

et
at

io
n 

ha
s n

ot
 b

ee
n 

fu
lly

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d,

 m
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

de
fin

iti
on

 o
f f

in
al

st
ab

ili
za

tio
n,

 a
 si

te
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

sh
al

l b
e 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 a

t l
ea

st
 o

nc
e 

a 
m

on
th

 a
nd

 a
fte

r a
ny

 q
ua

lif
yi

ng
 p

re
ci

pi
ta

tio
n 

ev
en

t s
in

ce
 th

e 
la

st
 in

sp
ec

tio
n,

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 a

s
pr

om
pt

ly
 a

s p
os

si
bl

e,
 b

ut
 n

o 
la

te
r t

ha
n 

24
-h

ou
rs

 a
fte

r r
es

um
in

g 
or

 c
on

tin
ui

ng
 a

ct
iv

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
or

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 a
nd

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 n

o 
la

te
r t

ha
n 

fiv
e 

(5
) d

ay
s a

fte
r

th
e 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
pr

ec
ip

ita
tio

n 
ev

en
t;

(e
)

A
 si

te
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

sh
al

l a
ls

o 
be

 p
er

fo
rm

ed
 a

s o
fte

n 
as

 is
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 u
nt

il 
an

y 
po

or
ly

 fu
nc

tio
ni

ng
 e

ro
si

on
 c

on
tro

ls
 o

r s
ed

im
en

t c
on

tro
ls

, n
on

-c
om

pl
ia

nt
di

sc
ha

rg
es

, o
r a

ny
 o

th
er

 d
ef

ic
ie

nc
ie

s o
bs

er
ve

d 
du

rin
g 

a 
pr

io
r i

ns
pe

ct
io

n 
ar

e 
co

rr
ec

te
d 

an
d 

do
cu

m
en

te
d 

as
 b

ei
ng

 in
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
hi

s
pe

rm
it.

(f
)

O
n 

al
l a

ct
iv

e 
di

st
ur

ba
nc

e,
 d

re
dg

in
g,

 e
xc

av
at

io
n,

 o
r c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
or

 lo
ca

te
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
ba

nk
s o

f a
 w

at
er

bo
dy

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 b

ut
 n

ot
 li

m
ite

d 
to

,
eq

ui
pm

en
t/v

eh
ic

le
 c

ro
ss

in
gs

, p
ip

el
in

es
, o

r o
th

er
 tr

an
sm

is
si

on
 li

ne
 in

st
al

la
tio

n,
 c

on
ve

yo
r s

tru
ct

ur
e 

in
st

al
la

tio
n,

 a
nd

 w
at

er
bo

dy
 re

lo
ca

tio
n,

 st
re

am
ba

nk
st

ab
ili

za
tio

n,
 o

r o
th

er
 a

lte
ra

tio
ns

, a
 si

te
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

sh
al

l b
e 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 a

t l
ea

st
 o

nc
e 

a 
w

ee
k 

an
d 

as
 o

fte
n 

as
 is

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 u

nt
il 

th
e 

di
st

ur
ba

nc
e/

ac
tiv

ity
 im

pa
ct

in
g 

th
e

w
at

er
bo

dy
 is

 c
om

pl
et

e 
an

d 
re

cl
am

at
io

n 
or

 e
ff

ec
tiv

e 
st

or
m

w
at

er
 q

ua
lit

y 
re

m
ed

ia
tio

n 
is

 a
ch

ie
ve

d.
(g

)
Th

e 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

sh
al

l b
e 

re
co

rd
ed

 in
 a

 w
rit

te
n 

fo
rm

at
 a

cc
ep

ta
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t. 

Th
e 

in
sp

ec
tio

n 
re

co
rd

 sh
al

l i
nc

lu
de

:
(i)

Th
e 

si
te

 n
am

e 
an

d 
lo

ca
tio

n,
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

 p
oi

nt
 n

um
be

r, 
da

te
, t

im
e 

an
d 

ex
ac

t p
la

ce
 o

f a
ny

 sa
m

pl
in

g 
pe

rf
or

m
ed

;
(ii

)
Th

e 
na

m
e(

s)
 o

f p
er

so
n(

s)
 w

ho
 p

er
fo

rm
ed

 th
e 

in
sp

ec
tio

n 
an

d/
or

 o
bt

ai
ne

d 
an

y 
sa

m
pl

es
 o

r m
ea

su
re

m
en

ts
 ta

ke
n;

(ii
i)

Th
e 

da
te

s a
nd

 ti
m

es
 o

f t
he

 in
sp

ec
tio

n 
an

d 
an

y 
sa

m
pl

es
 o

r m
ea

su
re

m
en

ts
 ta

ke
n;

(iv
)

A
 d

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
of

 a
ny

 sa
m

pl
in

g 
an

d 
an

al
yt

ic
al

 te
ch

ni
qu

es
 o

r m
et

ho
ds

 u
se

d,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

so
ur

ce
 o

f m
et

ho
d 

an
d 

m
et

ho
d 

nu
m

be
r;

(v
)

Th
e 

re
su

lts
 o

f a
ny

 a
na

ly
se

s p
er

fo
rm

ed
;

(v
i)

W
ea

th
er

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 a

t t
he

 ti
m

e 
of

 th
e 

in
sp

ec
tio

n;
(v

ii)
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
of

 a
ny

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
s o

f s
ed

im
en

t o
r o

th
er

 p
ol

lu
ta

nt
s f

ro
m

 th
e 

si
te

;
(v

iii
)

Lo
ca

tio
ns

 o
f d

is
ch

ar
ge

s o
f s

ed
im

en
t o

r o
th

er
 p

ol
lu

ta
nt

s f
ro

m
 th

e 
si

te
;

(ix
)

Lo
ca

tio
ns

 o
f B

M
Ps

 th
at

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d;

(x
)

Lo
ca

tio
ns

 o
f B

M
Ps

 th
at

 fa
ile

d 
to

 o
pe

ra
te

 a
s d

es
ig

ne
d;

(x
i)

Lo
ca

tio
ns

 w
he

re
 B

M
Ps

 re
qu

ire
d 

by
 th

e 
C

B
M

PP
 a

re
 n

ot
 in

st
al

le
d 

or
 in

st
al

le
d 

in
 a

 m
an

ne
r i

nc
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 th

e 
C

B
M

PP
; a

nd
(x

ii)
Lo

ca
tio

ns
 w

he
re

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 B

M
Ps

 a
re

 n
ee

de
d 

th
at

 d
id

 n
ot

 e
xi

st
 a

t t
he

 ti
m

e 
of

 th
e 

in
sp

ec
tio

n.
 T

hi
s r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t i

s a
pp

lic
ab

le
 o

nl
y 

to
 si

te
 in

sp
ec

tio
ns

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 b

y 
a 

Q
C

P 
or

 q
ua

lif
ie

d 
pe

rs
on

s u
nd

er
 th

e 
di

re
ct

 su
pe

rv
is

io
n 

of
 a

 Q
C

P.
(h

)
R

es
ul

ts
 o

f a
ll 

re
qu

ire
d 

in
sp

ec
tio

ns
 sh

al
l b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
r i

ns
pe

ct
io

n 
no

 la
te

r t
ha

n 
15

 d
ay

s f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

th
e 

da
te

 o
f t

he
 in

sp
ec

tio
ns

, m
on

ito
rin

g 
or

 sa
m

pl
in

g.
(i)

R
ep

or
ts

 sh
al

l b
e 

le
gi

bl
e 

an
d 

be
ar

 a
n 

or
ig

in
al

 si
gn

at
ur

e 
or

 in
 th

e 
ca

se
 o

f e
le

ct
ro

ni
c 

re
po

rts
, a

n 
el

ec
tro

ni
c 

si
gn

at
ur

e.
4.

C
B

M
PP

 E
va

lu
at

io
ns

(a
)

Th
e 

Q
C

P 
sh

al
l p

er
fo

rm
 a

n 
on

si
te

 e
va

lu
at

io
n 

of
 a

ll 
er

os
io

n 
an

d 
se

di
m

en
t c

on
tro

ls
 b

ei
ng

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

fo
r a

de
qu

ac
y 

an
d 

co
ns

is
te

nc
y 

w
ith

 si
te

 c
on

di
tio

ns
.

(b
)

Th
e 

C
B

M
PP

 e
va

lu
at

io
n 

sh
al

l b
e 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 a

s o
fte

n 
as

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 u

nt
il 

po
or

ly
 fu

nc
tio

ni
ng

 o
r d

am
ag

ed
 e

ro
si

on
 c

on
tro

ls
 o

r s
ed

im
en

t c
on

tro
ls

 a
re

 c
or

re
ct

ed
,

an
d,

 a
t a

 m
in

im
um

, o
nc

e 
ev

er
y 

si
x 

m
on

th
s.

(c
)

If
, b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

C
B

M
PP

 e
va

lu
at

io
n,

 th
e 

Q
C

P 
id

en
tif

ie
s a

ny
 n

ee
de

d 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 o

r a
dd

iti
on

s t
o 

er
os

io
n 

an
d 

se
di

m
en

t c
on

tro
ls,

 th
e 

C
B

M
PP

 sh
al

l b
e

up
da

te
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ar
t I

II
.D

.4
.

(d
)

Th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 sh
al

l m
ai

nt
ai

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 d
oc

um
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

C
B

M
PP

 e
va

lu
at

io
n.

I.
C

or
re

ct
iv

e 
A

ct
io

n
A

ny
 p

oo
rly

 fu
nc

tio
ni

ng
 e

ro
si

on
 c

on
tro

ls
 o

r s
ed

im
en

t c
on

tro
ls

, n
on

-c
om

pl
ia

nt
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

s, 
or

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 d

ef
ic

ie
nc

ie
s o

bs
er

ve
d 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 re
qu

ire
d

un
de

r P
ar

t I
II

.G
.2

 sh
al

l b
e 

co
rr

ec
te

d 
as

 so
on

 a
s p

os
si

bl
e,

 b
ut

 n
ot

 to
 e

xc
ee

d 
fiv

e 
(5

) d
ay

s o
f t

he
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

un
le

ss
 p

re
ve

nt
ed

 b
y 

un
sa

fe
 w

ea
th

er
 c

on
di

tio
ns

.
5.

In
 th

e 
ev

en
t o

f a
 b

re
ac

h 
of

 a
 se

di
m

en
t b

as
in

/p
on

d 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 c
on

ta
in

m
en

t m
ea

su
re

s s
ha

ll 
be

 ta
ke

n 
w

ith
in

 2
4 

ho
ur

s a
fte

r t
he

 in
sp

ec
tio

n.
 P

er
m

an
en

t
co

rr
ec

tiv
e 

m
ea

su
re

s s
ha

ll 
be

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

w
ith

in
 fi

ve
 (5

) d
ay

s o
f t

he
 in

sp
ec

tio
n;

 h
ow

ev
er

, i
f p

er
m

an
en

t c
or

re
ct

iv
e 

m
ea

su
re

s c
an

no
t b

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
w

ith
in

 th
e

tim
ef

ra
m

es
pr

ov
id

ed
 h

er
ei

n 
th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 sh

al
l c

on
ta

ct
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t; 
an

d
6.

Th
e 

op
er

at
or

 sh
al

l p
ro

m
pt

ly
 ta

ke
 a

ll 
re

as
on

ab
le

 st
ep

s t
o 

re
m

ov
e,

 to
 th

e 
m

ax
im

um
 e

xt
en

t p
ra

ct
ic

al
, p

ol
lu

ta
nt

s d
ep

os
ite

d 
of

fs
ite

 o
r i

n 
an

y 
w

at
er

bo
dy

 o
r

st
or

m
w

at
er

 c
on

ve
ya

nc
e 

st
ru

ct
ur

e.
J.

Su
sp

en
si

on
 o

f M
on

ito
ri

ng
Su

sp
en

si
on

 o
f a

pp
lic

ab
le

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 fo
r p

ha
se

d 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 o

r d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
gr

an
te

d 
pr

ov
id

ed
:

1.
Th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t i
s n

ot
ifi

ed
 in

 w
rit

in
g 

at
 le

as
t t

hi
rty

 d
ay

s p
rio

r t
o 

th
e 

re
qu

es
te

d 
su

sp
en

si
on

;
2.

Th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 a
nd

 th
e 

Q
C

P 
ce

rti
fy

 in
 th

e 
re

qu
es

t t
ha

t a
ll 

di
st

ur
ba

nc
e 

ha
s b

ee
n 

gr
ad

ed
, s

ta
bi

liz
ed

, a
nd

/o
r f

ul
ly

 v
eg

et
at

ed
 o

r o
th

er
w

is
e 

pe
rm

an
en

tly
 c

ov
er

ed
,

an
d 

th
at

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

, e
ff

ec
tiv

e 
st

ep
s h

av
e 

be
en

 a
nd

 w
ill

 b
e 

ta
ke

n 
by

 th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
hi

s p
er

m
it 

an
d 

co
m

m
it 

th
at

th
es

e 
m

ea
su

re
s

w
ill

 re
m

ai
n 

co
nt

in
ua

lly
 e

ff
ec

tiv
e 

un
til

 th
e 

pe
rm

it 
is

 p
ro

pe
rly

 te
rm

in
at

ed
;

3.
Th

e 
re

qu
es

t s
ho

ul
d 

be
 a

cc
om

pa
ni

ed
 b

y 
a 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

st
or

m
w

at
er

 in
sp

ec
tio

n 
re

po
rt 

co
nf

irm
in

g 
pe

rm
an

en
t s

ta
bi

liz
at

io
n 

of
 a

ll 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

 d
is

tu
rb

ed
 a

re
as

,
in

cl
ud

in
g 

m
at

er
ia

l s
to

ra
ge

 a
re

as
, a

nd
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
su

pp
or

t a
ct

iv
iti

es
. I

n 
ad

di
tio

n,
 p

ho
to

 d
oc

um
en

ta
tio

n 
m

ay
 b

e 
su

bm
itt

ed
 fo

r c
on

fir
m

at
io

n 
pu

rp
os

es
; a

nd
4.

Th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 n
ot

ifi
es

 th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t i

n 
w

rit
in

g 
w

ith
in

 1
5 

da
ys

 p
rio

r t
o 

re
su

m
pt

io
n 

of
 d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 o

r c
om

m
en

ce
m

en
t o

f t
he

 n
ex

t p
ha

se
 o

f d
ev

el
op

m
en

t
an

d 
th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 c

om
pl

ie
s w

ith
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
hi

s P
er

m
it 

pr
io

r t
o 

co
m

m
en

ce
m

en
t o

f a
dd

iti
on

al
 d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
.

K
.

Pr
ec

ip
ita

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t
Th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 sh

al
l m

ea
su

re
 a

nd
 re

co
rd

 a
ll 

pr
ec

ip
ita

tio
n 

oc
cu

rr
in

g 
at

 th
e 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

si
te

. P
re

ci
pi

ta
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

 sh
al

l b
e 

ta
ke

n 
us

in
g 

co
nt

in
uo

us
 re

co
rd

er
s,

da
ily

 re
ad

in
gs

 o
f a

n 
on

si
te

 ra
in

 g
au

ge
, d

ai
ly

 re
ad

in
gs

 o
f a

n 
of

fs
ite

 p
re

ci
pi

ta
tio

n 
ga

ug
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 o

r i
n 

cl
os

e 
pr

ox
im

ity
 (m

ax
im

um
 1

 m
ile

 d
is

ta
nc

e)
 to

 th
e

fa
ci

lit
y,

 o
r b

y 
ot

he
r m

ea
su

re
m

en
t d

ev
ic

es
 a

cc
ep

ta
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t (

e.
g.

 o
nl

in
e 

re
so

ur
ce

s)
. P

re
ci

pi
ta

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

m
en

ts
 m

us
t b

e 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
e 

of
 th

e
Pe

rm
itt

ee
’s

 si
te

.
L

.
Im

pa
ir

ed
 W

at
er

s a
nd

 T
ot

al
 M

ax
im

um
 D

ai
ly

 L
oa

d 
(T

M
D

L
) W

at
er

s
1.

Th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 m
us

t d
et

er
m

in
e 

w
he

th
er

 th
e 

di
sc

ha
rg

e 
fr

om
 a

ny
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
si

te
 c

on
tri

bu
te

s d
ire

ct
ly

 o
r i

nd
ire

ct
ly

 to
 a

 w
at

er
bo

dy
 th

at
 is

in
cl

ud
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

la
te

st
 §

30
3(

d)
 li

st
 o

r d
es

ig
na

te
d 

by
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t a
s i

m
pa

ire
d;

2.
If

 th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

’s
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

si
te

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
s t

o 
a 

w
at

er
bo

dy
 in

cl
ud

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
la

te
st

 §
30

3(
d)

 o
r d

es
ig

na
te

d 
by

 th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t a

s i
m

pa
ire

d,
 it

 m
us

t
de

m
on

st
ra

te
 th

e 
di

sc
ha

rg
es

, a
s c

on
tro

lle
d 

by
 th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
, d

o 
no

t c
au

se
 o

r c
on

tri
bu

te
 to

 th
e 

im
pa

irm
en

t. 
Th

e 
C

B
M

PP
 m

us
t d

et
ai

l t
he

 B
M

Ps
 th

at
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

ut
ili

ze
d 

to
 c

on
tro

l d
is

ch
ar

ge
s o

f p
ol

lu
ta

nt
s a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
im

pa
irm

en
t. 

If
 e

xi
st

in
g 

B
M

Ps
 a

re
 n

ot
 su

ff
ic

ie
nt

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 th

is 
de

m
on

st
ra

tio
n,

 th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 m
us

t,
w

ith
in

 si
xt

y 
(6

0)
 d

ay
s f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

la
te

st
 fi

na
l §

30
3(

d)
 li

st
, D

ep
ar

tm
en

t d
es

ig
na

tio
n,

 o
r t

he
 e

ff
ec

tiv
e 

da
te

 o
f t

hi
s p

er
m

it,
 su

bm
it 

a 
re

vi
se

d
C

B
M

PP
 d

et
ai

lin
g 

ne
w

 o
r m

od
ifi

ed
 B

M
Ps

. T
he

 C
B

M
PP

 m
us

t b
e 

re
vi

se
d 

as
 d

ire
ct

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t a
nd

 th
e 

ne
w

 o
r m

od
ifi

ed
 B

M
Ps

 m
us

t b
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d

w
ith

in
 n

in
et

y 
(9

0)
 d

ay
s f

ro
m

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
la

te
st

 fi
na

l §
30

3(
d)

 li
st

 o
r D

ep
ar

tm
en

t d
es

ig
na

tio
n.

3.
Pe

rm
itt

ee
s d

is
ch

ar
gi

ng
 fr

om
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

si
te

s i
nt

o 
w

at
er

s w
ith

 E
PA

-A
pp

ro
ve

d 
TM

D
Ls

 a
nd

/o
r E

PA
 E

st
ab

lis
he

d 
TM

D
Ls

(a
)

Th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 m
us

t d
et

er
m

in
e 

w
he

th
er

 it
s c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

si
te

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
s t

o 
a 

w
at

er
bo

dy
 fo

r w
hi

ch
 a

 to
ta

l m
ax

im
um

 d
ai

ly
 lo

ad
 (T

M
D

L)
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d

or
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 E

PA
. I

f a
n 

M
S4

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
s i

nt
o 

a 
w

at
er

 b
od

y 
w

ith
 a

n 
EP

A
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

or
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
TM

D
L,

 th
en

 th
e 

C
B

M
PP

 m
us

t i
nc

lu
de

 B
M

Ps
 ta

rg
et

ed
 to

m
ee

t t
he

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 a
nd

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 T

M
D

L.
 If

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 B

M
Ps

 w
ill

 b
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

 m
ee

t t
he

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 T

M
D

L,
 th

e 
C

B
M

PP
 m

us
t i

nc
lu

de
 a

sc
he

du
le

 fo
r i

ns
ta

lla
tio

n 
an

d/
or

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 su
ch

 B
M

Ps
.

(b
)

If
, d

ur
in

g 
th

is
 p

er
m

it 
cy

cl
e,

 a
 T

M
D

L 
is

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 E
PA

 o
r a

 T
M

D
L 

is
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
by

 E
PA

 fo
r a

ny
 w

at
er

bo
dy

 in
to

 w
hi

ch
 a

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
si

te
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

s,
th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 m

us
t r

ev
ie

w
 th

e 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 T
M

D
L 

to
 se

e 
if 

it 
in

cl
ud

es
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 fo

r c
on

tro
l o

f s
to

rm
 w

at
er

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
s f

ro
m

 th
e 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

si
te

.
(i)

If
 it

 is
 fo

un
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 m
us

t i
m

pl
em

en
t s

pe
ci

fic
 a

llo
ca

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 T

M
D

L,
 it

 m
us

t a
ss

es
s w

he
th

er
 th

e 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 T
M

D
L

ar
e 

be
in

g 
m

et
 th

ro
ug

h 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 e

xi
st

in
g 

B
M

Ps
 o

r i
f a

dd
iti

on
al

 B
M

Ps
 a

re
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

. T
he

 C
B

M
PP

 m
us

t i
nc

lu
de

 B
M

Ps
 ta

rg
et

ed
 to

 m
ee

t t
he

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

an
d 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 T

M
D

L.
 If

 e
xi

st
in

g 
B

M
Ps

 a
re

 n
ot

 su
ff

ic
ie

nt
, t

he
 P

er
m

itt
ee

 m
us

t, 
w

ith
in

 si
xt

y 
(6

o)
 d

ay
s f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
th

e 
ap

pr
ov

al
 o

r e
st

ab
lis

hm
en

t o
f t

he
TM

D
L 

by
 E

PA
, s

ub
m

it 
a 

re
vi

se
d 

C
B

M
PP

 d
et

ai
lin

g 
ne

w
 o

r m
od

ifi
ed

 B
M

Ps
 to

 b
e 

ut
ili

ze
d 

al
on

g 
w

ith
 a

 sc
he

du
le

 o
f i

ns
ta

lla
tio

n 
an

d/
or

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 su
ch

B
M

Ps
. A

ny
 n

ew
 o

r m
od

ifi
ed

 B
M

Ps
 m

us
t b

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d
w

ith
in

 n
in

et
y 

(9
0)

 d
ay

s, 
un

le
ss

 a
n 

al
te

rn
at

e 
da

te
 is

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t, 

fr
om

 th
e

es
ta

bl
is

hm
en

t o
r a

pp
ro

va
l o

f t
he

 T
M

D
L 

by
 E

PA
.

PA
R

T 
IV

 S
ta

nd
ar

d 
an

d 
G

en
er

al
 P

er
m

it 
C

on
di

tio
ns

 (P
A

R
T)

A
.

D
ut

y 
to

 C
om

pl
y

1.
Th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 m

us
t c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 a

ll 
te

rm
s a

nd
 c

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

hi
s p

er
m

it.
 A

ny
 p

er
m

it 
no

nc
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

co
ns

tit
ut

es
 a

 v
io

la
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

A
W

PC
A

 a
nd

 th
e

FW
PC

A
 a

nd
 is

 g
ro

un
ds

 fo
r: 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t a

ct
io

n,
 te

rm
in

at
io

n,
 o

r s
us

pe
ns

io
n 

of
 c

ov
er

ag
e 

un
de

r t
hi

s p
er

m
it;

 d
en

ia
l o

f a
 p

er
m

it 
re

ne
w

al
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n;
 a

re
qu

ire
m

en
t t

ha
t t

he
 P

er
m

itt
ee

 su
bm

it 
an

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r a

n 
in

di
vi

du
al

 N
PD

ES
 p

er
m

it.
2.

Fo
r a

ny
 v

io
la

tio
n(

s)
 o

f t
hi

s P
er

m
it,

 th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 m
ay

 b
e 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
a 

ci
vi

l p
en

al
ty

 a
s a

ut
ho

riz
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
W

PC
A

, t
he

 F
W

PC
A

, a
nd

 C
od

e 
of

 A
la

ba
m

a
19

75
, §

§2
2-

22
A

-1
 e

t. 
se

q.
, a

s a
m

en
de

d,
 a

nd
/o

r a
 c

rim
in

al
 p

en
al

ty
 a

s a
ut

ho
riz

ed
 b

y 
C

od
e 

of
 A

la
ba

m
a 

19
75

, §
22

-2
2-

1 
et

. s
eq

., 
as

 a
m

en
de

d.
3.

Th
e 

di
sc

ha
rg

e 
of

 a
 p

ol
lu

ta
nt

 fr
om

 a
 so

ur
ce

 n
ot

 sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 th

e 
N

O
I t

o 
be

 c
ov

er
ed

 u
nd

er
 th

is
 P

er
m

it 
an

d 
no

t s
pe

ci
fic

al
ly

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e
de

sc
rip

tio
n 

of
 a

n 
ou

tfa
ll 

(w
he

re
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

) i
n 

th
is

 p
er

m
it 

is
 n

ot
 a

ut
ho

riz
ed

 a
nd

 sh
al

l c
on

st
itu

te
 n

on
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

is
 p

er
m

it.
4.

N
ot

hi
ng

 in
 th

is
 P

er
m

it 
sh

al
l b

e 
co

ns
tru

ed
 to

 p
re

cl
ud

e 
or

 n
eg

at
e 

th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

’s
 re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

or
 li

ab
ili

ty
 to

 a
pp

ly
 fo

r, 
ob

ta
in

, o
r c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 o

th
er

A
D

EM
, f

ed
er

al
, s

ta
te

, o
r l

oc
al

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t p

er
m

its
, c

er
tif

ic
at

io
ns

, l
ic

en
se

s, 
or

 o
th

er
 a

pp
ro

va
ls

.
B

.
D

ut
y 

to
 R

ea
pp

ly
1.

Th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 a
ut

ho
riz

ed
 to

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
 u

nd
er

 th
is

 G
en

er
al

 P
er

m
it,

 w
ho

 w
is

he
s t

o 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
 u

po
n 

th
e 

ex
pi

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
is

 p
er

m
it,

 sh
al

l s
ub

m
it

a 
N

O
I t

o 
be

 c
ov

er
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

re
is

su
ed

 G
en

er
al

 P
er

m
it.

 S
uc

h 
N

O
I s

ha
ll 

be
 su

bm
itt

ed
 a

t l
ea

st
 3

0 
da

ys
 p

rio
r t

o 
th

e 
ex

pi
ra

tio
n 

da
te

 o
f t

hi
s G

en
er

al
 P

er
m

it.
2.

Fa
ilu

re
 o

f t
he

 P
er

m
itt

ee
 to

 su
bm

it 
a 

co
m

pl
et

e 
N

O
I f

or
 re

au
th

or
iz

at
io

n 
un

de
r t

hi
s p

er
m

it 
at

 le
as

t 3
0 

da
ys

 p
rio

r t
o 

th
e 

pe
rm

it’
s e

xp
ira

tio
n 

w
ill

 v
oi

d 
th

e
au

to
m

at
ic

 c
on

tin
ua

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
au

th
or

iz
at

io
n 

to
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

 u
nd

er
 th

is
 p

er
m

it 
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 A
D

EM
 A

dm
in

. C
od

e 
r. 

33
5-

6-
6-

.0
6.

 S
ho

ul
d 

th
e 

pe
rm

it 
no

t b
e

re
is

su
ed

 fo
r a

ny
 re

as
on

 p
rio

r t
o 

its
 e

xp
ira

tio
n 

da
te

, P
er

m
itt

ee
s w

ho
 fa

ile
d 

to
 m

ee
t t

he
 3

0-
da

y 
su

bm
itt

al
 d

ea
dl

in
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

ill
eg

al
ly

 d
is

ch
ar

gi
ng

 w
ith

ou
t a

 p
er

m
it

af
te

r t
he

 e
xp

ira
tio

n 
da

te
 o

f t
he

 p
er

m
it.

C
.

N
ee

d 
to

 H
al

t o
r 

R
ed

uc
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 N
ot

 a
 D

ef
en

se
It 

sh
al

l n
ot

 b
e 

a 
de

fe
ns

e 
fo

r t
he

 P
er

m
itt

ee
 in

 a
n 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t a

ct
io

n 
th

at
 it

 w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

be
en

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 to

 h
al

t o
r r

ed
uc

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
co

nd
iti

on
s o

f t
he

 p
er

m
it.

D
.

D
ut

y 
to

 M
iti

ga
te

Th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 sh
al

l t
ak

e 
al

l r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

st
ep

s t
o 

m
iti

ga
te

 o
r p

re
ve

nt
 a

ny
 v

io
la

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
pe

rm
it 

or
 to

 m
in

im
iz

e 
or

 p
re

ve
nt

 a
ny

 a
dv

er
se

 im
pa

ct
 o

f a
ny

 p
er

m
it

vi
ol

at
io

n.
E

.
Pr

op
er

 O
pe

ra
tio

n 
an

d 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
Th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 sh

al
l a

t a
ll 

tim
es

 p
ro

pe
rly

 o
pe

ra
te

 a
nd

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
al

l f
ac

ili
tie

s a
nd

 sy
st

em
s o

f t
re

at
m

en
t a

nd
 c

on
tro

l (
an

d 
re

la
te

d 
ap

pu
rte

na
nc

es
) w

hi
ch

 a
re

in
st

al
le

d 
or

 u
se

d 
by

 th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
co

nd
iti

on
s o

f t
hi

s p
er

m
it.

 P
ro

pe
r o

pe
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 in
cl

ud
es

 e
ff

ec
tiv

e
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
, a

de
qu

at
e 

fu
nd

in
g,

 a
de

qu
at

e 
op

er
at

or
 st

af
fin

g 
an

d 
tra

in
in

g,
 a

nd
 a

de
qu

at
e 

la
bo

ra
to

ry
 a

nd
 p

ro
ce

ss
 c

on
tro

ls
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 q
ua

lit
y

as
su

ra
nc

e 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

. T
hi

s p
ro

vi
si

on
 re

qu
ire

s t
he

 o
pe

ra
tio

n 
of

 b
ac

ku
p 

or
 a

ux
ili

ar
y 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s o
nl

y 
w

he
n 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

co
nd

iti
on

s
of

 th
is

 p
er

m
it.

F.
Pe

rm
it 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
n,

 R
ev

oc
at

io
n 

an
d 

R
ei

ss
ua

nc
e,

 S
us

pe
ns

io
n,

 a
nd

 T
er

m
in

at
io

n
1.

D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

te
rm

 o
f t

hi
s G

en
er

al
 P

er
m

it 
th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 m

ay
, f

or
 c

au
se

, a
nd

 su
bj

ec
t t

o 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 n
ot

ic
e 

pr
oc

ed
ur

e 
of

 A
D

EM
 A

dm
in

ist
ra

tiv
e 

C
od

e 
r.

33
5-

6-
21

, m
od

ify
 o

r r
ev

ok
e 

an
d 

re
is

su
e 

th
is

 G
en

er
al

 P
er

m
it.

 T
he

 c
au

se
s f

or
 th

is
 a

ct
io

n 
in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
ca

us
es

 li
st

ed
 b

el
ow

:
(a

)
W

he
n 

th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 re
ce

iv
es

 a
ny

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

th
at

 w
as

 n
ot

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
at

 th
e 

tim
e 

of
 p

er
m

it 
is

su
an

ce
 a

nd
 th

at
 w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
ju

st
ifi

ed
 th

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
of

di
ff

er
en

t p
er

m
it 

co
nd

iti
on

s a
t t

he
 ti

m
e 

of
 is

su
an

ce
;

(b
)

W
he

n 
th

e 
st

an
da

rd
s o

r r
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 o
n 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
pe

rm
it 

w
as

 b
as

ed
 h

av
e 

be
en

 c
ha

ng
ed

 b
y 

pr
om

ul
ga

tio
n 

of
 a

m
en

de
d 

st
an

da
rd

s o
r r

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 o

r b
y

ju
di

ci
al

 d
ec

is
io

n 
ar

e 
th

e 
pe

rm
it 

w
as

 is
su

ed
;

(c
)

U
po

n 
fa

ilu
re

 o
f t

he
 st

at
e 

to
 n

ot
ify

, a
s r

eq
ui

re
d 

by
 S

ec
tio

n 
40

2(
b)

(3
) o

f t
he

 F
W

PC
A

, a
no

th
er

 st
at

e 
w

ho
se

 w
at

er
s m

ay
 b

e 
af

fe
ct

ed
 b

y 
a 

di
sc

ha
rg

e;
(d

)
W

he
n 

th
e 

le
ve

l o
f d

is
ch

ar
ge

 o
f a

ny
 p

ol
lu

ta
nt

 w
hi

ch
 is

 n
ot

 li
m

ite
d 

in
 th

e 
pe

rm
it 

ex
ce

ed
s t

he
 le

ve
l w

hi
ch

 c
an

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

te
ch

no
lo

gy
 b

as
ed

tre
at

m
en

t r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 to

 th
e 

di
sc

ha
rg

e 
un

de
r 4

0C
FR

 1
25

.3
(c

)(
19

94
);

(e
)

To
 c

or
re

ct
 te

ch
ni

ca
l m

is
ta

ke
s, 

su
ch

 a
s e

rr
or

s i
n 

ca
lc

ul
at

io
ns

, o
r m

is
ta

ke
n 

in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 la
w

 m
ad

e 
in

 d
et

er
m

in
in

g 
pe

rm
it 

co
nd

iti
on

s;
(f

)
W

he
n 

th
e 

pe
rm

it 
lim

ita
tio

ns
 a

re
 fo

un
d 

no
t t

o 
be

 p
ro

te
ct

iv
e 

of
 w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

st
an

da
rd

s;
 o

r
(g

)
Fo

r a
ny

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 c

au
se

 se
t f

or
th

 in
 4

0 
C

FR
 S

ec
tio

ns
 1

22
.6

1,
 1

22
.6

2,
 1

22
.6

3,
 a

nd
 1

22
.6

4 
(1

99
4)

.
2.

Su
bj

ec
t t

o 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 n
ot

ic
e 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 o

f r
ul

e 
33

5-
6-

.2
1,

 th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 m
ay

 te
rm

in
at

e 
th

is
 G

en
er

al
 P

er
m

it 
du

rin
g 

its
 te

rm
 fo

r a
ny

 o
f t

he
 c

au
se

s f
or

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

lis
te

d 
in

 A
D

EM
 A

dm
in

 C
od

e 
r. 

33
5-

6-
6-

.2
3(

7)
(a

).
3.

Th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 m
ay

 te
rm

in
at

e 
co

ve
ra

ge
 o

f a
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

 u
nd

er
 th

is
 g

en
er

al
 p

er
m

it 
fo

r c
au

se
. C

au
se

 sh
al

l i
nc

lu
de

 b
ut

 n
ot

 b
e 

lim
ite

d 
to

 n
on

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t r

ul
es

; o
r a

 fi
nd

in
g 

th
at

 th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l p

er
m

it 
do

es
 n

ot
 c

on
tro

l w
ith

 w
as

te
w

at
er

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
 su

ff
ic

ie
nt

ly
 to

 p
ro

te
ct

 w
at

er
 q

ua
lit

y 
or

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

tre
at

m
en

t b
as

ed
 li

m
its

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

di
sc

ha
rg

e.
G

.
Pr

op
er

ty
 R

ig
ht

s
Th

is
 p

er
m

it 
do

es
 n

ot
 c

on
ve

y 
an

y 
pr

op
er

ty
 ri

gh
ts

 in
 e

ith
er

 re
al

 o
r p

er
so

na
l p

ro
pe

rty
, o

r a
ny

 e
xc

lu
si

ve
 p

riv
ile

ge
s, 

no
r d

oe
s i

t a
ut

ho
riz

e 
an

y 
in

ju
ry

 to
 p

er
so

ns
 o

r
pr

op
er

ty
 o

r i
nv

as
io

n 
of

 o
th

er
 p

riv
at

e 
rig

ht
s, 

or
 a

ny
 in

fr
in

ge
m

en
t o

f f
ed

er
al

, s
ta

te
, o

r l
oc

al
 la

w
s o

r r
eg

ul
at

io
ns

, n
or

 d
oe

s i
t a

ut
ho

riz
e 

or
 a

pp
ro

ve
 th

e
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
of

 a
ny

 p
hy

si
ca

l s
tru

ct
ur

es
 o

r f
ac

ili
tie

s o
r t

he
 u

nd
er

ta
ki

ng
 o

f a
ny

 w
or

k 
in

 a
ny

 w
at

er
s o

f t
he

 st
at

e 
or

 o
f t

he
 U

ni
te

d 
St

at
es

.
H

.
D

ut
y 

to
 P

ro
vi

de
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n
1.

Th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 sh
al

l f
ur

ni
sh

 to
 th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
, w

ith
in

 a
 re

as
on

ab
le

 ti
m

e,
 a

ny
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

hi
ch

 th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 m
ay

 re
qu

es
t t

o 
de

te
rm

in
e 

w
he

th
er

 c
au

se
ex

is
ts

 fo
r m

od
ify

in
g,

 re
vo

ki
ng

 a
nd

 re
-is

su
in

g,
 su

sp
en

di
ng

, o
r t

er
m

in
at

in
g 

th
is

 p
er

m
it 

or
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
is

 P
er

m
it.

 T
he

 P
er

m
itt

ee
 sh

al
l a

ls
o

fu
rn

is
h 

to
 th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 u

po
n 

re
qu

es
t, 

co
pi

es
 o

f r
ec

or
ds

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 b

e 
ke

pt
 b

y 
th

is
 P

er
m

it.
2.

Th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 sh
al

l i
nf

or
m

 th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 in
 w

rit
in

g 
of

 a
ny

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
’s

 m
ai

lin
g 

ad
dr

es
s o

r t
el

ep
ho

ne
 n

um
be

r o
r i

n 
th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
’s

de
si

gn
at

io
n 

of
 a

 fa
ci

lit
y 

co
nt

ac
t o

r o
ff

ic
er

 h
av

in
g 

th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 a
nd

 re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
to

 p
re

ve
nt

 a
nd

 a
ba

te
 v

io
la

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 A

W
PC

A
, t

he
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t’s
 ru

le
s a

nd
th

e 
te

rm
s a

nd
 c

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

hi
s p

er
m

it 
no

 la
te

r t
ha

n 
te

n 
(1

0)
 d

ay
s a

fte
r s

uc
h 

ch
an

ge
. U

po
n 

re
qu

es
t o

f t
he

 D
ire

ct
or

, t
he

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 sh
al

l f
ur

ni
sh

 a
n 

up
da

te
 o

f a
ny

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 in
 th

e 
N

O
I.

3.
If

 th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 b
ec

om
es

 a
w

ar
e 

th
at

 it
 fa

ile
d 

to
 su

bm
it 

an
y 

re
le

va
nt

 fa
ct

s i
n 

th
e 

N
O

I; 
or

 su
bm

itt
ed

 in
co

rr
ec

t i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
in

 th
e 

N
O

I; 
or

 in
 a

ny
 re

po
rt 

to
th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
, i

t s
ha

ll 
pr

om
pt

ly
 su

bm
it 

su
ch

 fa
ct

s o
r i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

w
ith

 a
 w

rit
te

n 
ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 m
is

ta
ke

 a
nd

/o
r o

m
is

si
on

.
I.

In
sp

ec
tio

n 
an

d 
E

nt
ry

Th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 sh
al

l a
llo

w
 th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
, o

r a
n 

au
th

or
iz

ed
 re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
e,

 u
po

n 
th

e 
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 c
re

de
nt

ia
ls

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 d

oc
um

en
ts

 a
s m

ay
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
by

 la
w

to
:

1.
En

te
r u

po
n 

th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

’s
 p

re
m

is
es

 w
he

re
 a

 re
gu

la
te

d 
ac

tiv
ity

 is
 lo

ca
te

d 
or

 c
on

du
ct

ed
, o

r w
he

re
 re

co
rd

s m
us

t b
e 

ke
pt

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
co

nd
iti

on
s o

f t
hi

s
Pe

rm
it;

2.
H

av
e 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 a
nd

 c
op

y,
 a

t r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

tim
es

, a
ny

 re
co

rd
s t

ha
t m

us
t b

e 
ke

pt
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

co
nd

iti
on

s o
f t

hi
s P

er
m

it;
3.

In
sp

ec
t a

t r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

tim
es

 a
ny

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s, 
eq

ui
pm

en
t (

in
cl

ud
in

g 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

co
nt

ro
l e

qu
ip

m
en

t),
 p

ra
ct

ic
es

, o
r o

pe
ra

tio
ns

 re
gu

la
te

d 
or

 re
qu

ire
d

un
de

r t
hi

s P
er

m
it;

 a
nd

4.
Sa

m
pl

e 
or

 m
on

ito
r a

t r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

tim
es

, f
or

 th
e 

pu
rp

os
es

 o
f a

ss
ur

in
g 

pe
rm

it 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
or

 a
s o

th
er

w
is

e 
au

th
or

iz
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
W

PC
A

, a
ny

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
,

su
bs

ta
nc

es
 o

r p
ar

am
et

er
s a

t a
ny

 lo
ca

tio
n.

J.
N

on
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
N

ot
ifi

ca
tio

n
1.

Th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 m
us

t n
ot

ify
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t i
f, 

fo
r a

ny
 re

as
on

, t
he

 P
er

m
itt

ee
's 

di
sc

ha
rg

e:
(a

)
Po

te
nt

ia
lly

 th
re

at
en

s h
um

an
 h

ea
lth

 o
r w

el
fa

re
;

(b
)

Po
te

nt
ia

lly
 th

re
at

en
s f

is
h 

or
 a

qu
at

ic
 li

fe
;

(c
)

C
au

se
s a

n 
in

-s
tre

am
 w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

cr
ite

rio
n 

to
 b

e 
ex

ce
ed

ed
;

(d
)

D
oe

s n
ot

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 a
n 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 to

xi
c 

po
llu

ta
nt

 e
ff

lu
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

d 
or

 p
ro

hi
bi

tio
n 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

un
de

r S
ec

tio
n 

30
7(

a)
 o

f t
he

 F
W

PC
A

, 3
3 

U
.S

.C
.

§1
31

7(
a)

; o
r

(e
)

C
on

ta
in

s a
 q

ua
nt

ity
 o

f a
 h

az
ar

do
us

 su
bs

ta
nc

e 
w

hi
ch

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 m
ay

 b
e 

ha
rm

fu
l t

o 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ea

lth
 o

r w
el

fa
re

 u
nd

er
 S

ec
tio

n 
31

1(
b)

(4
) o

f
th

e 
FW

PC
A

, 3
3 

U
.S

.C
. §

13
21

(b
)(

4)
. T

he
 P

er
m

itt
ee

 sh
al

l o
ra

lly
 re

po
rt 

th
e 

oc
cu

rr
en

ce
s, 

de
sc

rib
in

g 
th

e 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s a

nd
 p

ot
en

tia
l e

ff
ec

ts
 o

f s
uc

h 
di

sc
ha

rg
e

to
 th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 n

o 
la

te
r t

ha
n 

24
-h

ou
rs

 a
fte

r t
he

 P
er

m
itt

ee
 b

ec
om

es
 a

w
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

oc
cu

rr
en

ce
 o

f s
uc

h 
di

sc
ha

rg
e.

 In
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 th
e 

or
al

 re
po

rt,
 th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
sh

al
l s

ub
m

it 
to

 th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 a
 w

rit
te

n 
re

po
rt 

as
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 P

ar
t I

V
.J.

2 
be

lo
w

, n
o 

la
te

r t
ha

n 
fiv

e 
(5

) d
ay

s a
fte

r b
ec

om
in

g 
aw

ar
e 

of
 th

e 
oc

cu
rr

en
ce

 o
f s

uc
h

di
sc

ha
rg

e.
2.

Th
e 

w
rit

te
n 

re
po

rt 
sh

al
l b

e 
in

 a
 fo

rm
at

 a
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

to
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t a
nd

 sh
al

l i
nc

lu
de

:
(a

)
A

 d
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
no

nc
om

pl
ia

nt
 e

ve
nt

, i
ts

 c
au

se
, i

f k
no

w
n,

 a
nd

 lo
ca

tio
n;

(b
)

Th
e 

pe
rio

d 
of

 n
on

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
ex

ac
t d

at
es

 a
nd

 ti
m

es
 o

r, 
if 

no
t c

or
re

ct
ed

, t
he

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 ti
m

e 
th

e 
no

nc
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

is 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 c
on

tin
ue

;
an

d
(c

)
A

 d
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
st

ep
s t

ak
en

 a
nd

/o
r b

ei
ng

 ta
ke

n 
to

 re
du

ce
 o

r e
lim

in
at

e 
th

e 
no

nc
om

pl
yi

ng
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

 a
nd

 to
 p

re
ve

nt
 it

s r
ec

ur
re

nc
e.

K
.

R
et

en
tio

n 
of

 R
ec

or
ds

1.
Th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 sh

al
l r

et
ai

n 
re

co
rd

s o
f a

ll 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

re
co

rd
s, 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

al
l c

al
ib

ra
tio

n 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 re

co
rd

s a
nd

 a
ll 

or
ig

in
al

st
rip

 c
ha

rt 
re

co
rd

in
gs

 fo
r c

on
tin

uo
us

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
in

st
ru

m
en

ta
tio

n,
 c

op
ie

s o
f a

ll 
re

po
rts

 re
qu

ire
d 

by
 th

e 
pe

rm
it,

 a
nd

 re
co

rd
s o

f a
ll 

da
ta

 u
se

d 
to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
su

ch
re

po
rts

, f
or

 a
 p

er
io

d 
of

 a
t l

ea
st

 th
re

e 
(3

) y
ea

rs
 fr

om
 th

e 
da

te
 o

f t
he

 in
sp

ec
tio

n,
 sa

m
pl

e 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
t, 

or
 re

po
rt.

 T
hi

s p
er

io
d 

m
ay

 b
e 

ex
te

nd
ed

 b
y 

re
qu

es
t o

f t
he

D
ire

ct
or

 a
t a

ny
 ti

m
e.

 If
 li

tig
at

io
n 

or
 o

th
er

 e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t a
ct

io
n,

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
A

W
PC

A
 a

nd
/o

r t
he

 F
W

PC
A

, i
s o

ng
oi

ng
 w

hi
ch

 in
vo

lv
es

 a
ny

 o
f t

he
se

 re
co

rd
s, 

th
e

re
co

rd
s s

ha
ll 

be
 k

ep
t u

nt
il 

th
e 

lit
ig

at
io

n 
is

 re
so

lv
ed

.
2.

A
ll 

re
co

rd
s r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 b

e 
ke

pt
 fo

r a
 p

er
io

d 
of

 th
re

e 
(3

) y
ea

rs
 sh

al
l b

e 
ke

pt
 a

t t
he

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 fa

ci
lit

y 
or

 a
n 

al
te

rn
at

e 
lo

ca
tio

n 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

to
 th

e
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t i
n 

w
rit

in
g 

an
d 

sh
al

l b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

r i
ns

pe
ct

io
n 

up
on

 re
qu

es
t.

Si
gn

at
or

y 
R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

Th
e 

N
O

I a
nd

 a
ll 

re
po

rts
 o

r i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
su

bm
itt

ed
 to

 th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 sh
al

l b
e 

si
gn

ed
 a

nd
 c

er
tif

ie
d 

ac
co

rd
in

g 
to

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t o

f A
D

EM
 A

dm
in

 C
od

e 
r.

33
5-

6-
6-

.0
9.

 W
he

re
 re

qu
ire

d 
by

 th
is

 P
er

m
it,

 d
oc

um
en

ts
 w

ill
 a

ls
o 

be
 si

gn
ed

 b
y 

a 
Q

C
P 

or
 Q

C
I.

L
.

T
ra

ns
fe

rs
Th

is
 P

er
m

it 
m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
tra

ns
fe

rr
ed

 w
ith

ou
t n

ot
ic

e 
to

 th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 a
nd

 su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
or

 re
vo

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
re

is
su

an
ce

 o
f t

hi
s P

er
m

it.
 In

 th
e 

ca
se

 o
f a

ch
an

ge
 in

 n
am

e,
 o

w
ne

rs
hi

p 
or

 c
on

tro
l o

f t
he

 P
er

m
itt

ee
’s

 p
re

m
is

es
, a

 re
qu

es
t f

or
 p

er
m

it 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
in

 a
 fo

rm
at

 a
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

to
 th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 is

 re
qu

ire
d 

at
 le

as
t

30
 d

ay
s p

rio
r t

o 
th

e 
ch

an
ge

.
M

.
B

yp
as

s
A

ny
 b

yp
as

s o
f e

ro
si

on
 c

on
tro

ls
, s

ed
im

en
t c

on
tro

ls
, o

r a
ny

 o
th

er
 st

or
m

w
at

er
 m

an
ag

em
en

t/t
re

at
m

en
t c

on
tro

ls
 sp

ec
ifi

ed
 in

 th
e 

C
B

M
PP

 is
 p

ro
hi

bi
te

d 
ex

ce
pt

 a
s

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

A
D

EM
 A

dm
in

 C
od

e 
r. 

33
5-

6-
6-

.1
2(

m
).

N
.

U
ps

et
1.

Ef
fe

ct
 o

f a
n 

U
ps

et
. A

n 
up

se
t c

on
st

itu
te

s a
n 

af
fir

m
at

iv
e 

de
fe

ns
e 

to
 a

n 
ac

tio
n 

br
ou

gh
t f

or
 n

on
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 te

ch
no

lo
gy

 b
as

ed
 p

er
m

it 
lim

ita
tio

n 
if 

th
e

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f s

ub
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

33
5-

6-
6-

.1
2(

n)
2.

 a
re

 m
et

.
2.

C
on

di
tio

ns
 N

ec
es

sa
ry

 fo
r D

em
on

st
ra

tio
n 

of
 a

n 
U

ps
et

. A
 P

er
m

itt
ee

 w
ho

 w
is

he
s t

o 
es

ta
bl

is
h 

th
e 

af
fir

m
at

iv
e 

de
fe

ns
e 

of
 a

n 
up

se
t s

ha
ll 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

th
ro

ug
h 

pr
op

er
ly

 si
gn

ed
, c

on
te

m
po

ra
ne

ou
s o

pe
ra

tin
g 

lo
gs

, o
r o

th
er

 re
le

va
nt

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
th

at
:

(a
)

A
n 

up
se

t o
cc

ur
re

d 
an

d 
th

at
 th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 c

an
 id

en
tif

y 
th

e 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
ca

us
e(

s)
 o

f t
he

 u
ps

et
;

(b
)

Th
e 

w
as

te
w

at
er

 tr
ea

tm
en

t f
ac

ili
ty

 w
as

 a
t t

he
 ti

m
e 

be
in

g 
pr

op
er

ly
 o

pe
ra

te
d;

(c
)

Th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 su
bm

itt
ed

 n
ot

ic
e 

of
 th

e 
up

se
t a

s r
eq

ui
re

d 
in

 su
bp

ar
ag

ra
ph

 3
35

-6
-6

-.1
2(

l)6
.; 

an
d

(d
)

Th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 c
om

pl
ie

d 
w

ith
 a

ny
 re

m
ed

ia
l m

ea
su

re
s r

eq
ui

re
d 

un
de

r p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 3

35
-6

-6
-.1

2(
d)

.
3.

B
ur

de
n 

of
 P

ro
of

. I
n 

an
y 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t p

ro
ce

ed
in

g 
th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 se

ek
in

g 
to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
th

e 
oc

cu
rr

en
ce

 o
f a

n 
up

se
t h

as
 th

e 
bu

rd
en

 o
f p

ro
of

.
P.

Se
ve

ra
bi

lit
y

Th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 o

f t
hi

s p
er

m
it 

ar
e 

se
ve

ra
bl

e,
 a

nd
 if

 a
ny

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f t
hi

s p
er

m
it 

or
 th

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
of

 a
ny

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f t
hi

s p
er

m
it 

to
 a

ny
 c

irc
um

st
an

ce
 is

 h
el

d
in

va
lid

, t
he

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

of
 su

ch
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 to
 o

th
er

 c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s, 
an

d 
th

e 
re

m
ai

nd
er

 o
f t

hi
s p

er
m

it 
sh

al
l n

ot
 b

e 
af

fe
ct

ed
 th

er
eb

y.
Q

.
Is

su
an

ce
 o

f a
n 

In
di

vi
du

al
 P

er
m

it
Th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 m

ay
 re

qu
ire

 th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 to
 o

bt
ai

n 
an

 in
di

vi
du

al
 p

er
m

it 
fo

r d
is

ch
ar

ge
s c

ov
er

ed
 b

y 
th

is
 p

er
m

it 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 A
D

EM
 A

dm
in

. C
od

e 
r.

33
5-

6-
6-

.2
3(

9)
.

R
.

R
eq

ue
st

 fo
r 

In
di

vi
du

al
 P

er
m

it 
by

 G
en

er
al

 P
er

m
it 

H
ol

de
r

1.
A

ny
 p

er
so

n 
co

ve
re

d 
by

 th
is

 G
en

er
al

 P
er

m
it 

m
ay

 a
pp

ly
 fo

r t
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 c
ov

er
ag

e 
by

 a
pp

ly
in

g 
fo

r a
n 

in
di

vi
du

al
 N

PD
ES

 p
er

m
it.

 A
 p

er
m

it 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n
su

bm
itt

ed
 v

ol
un

ta
ril

y 
or

 a
t t

he
 d

ire
ct

io
n 

of
 th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 fo

r t
he

 p
ur

po
se

 o
f t

er
m

in
at

io
n 

of
 c

ov
er

ag
e 

by
 th

is
 G

en
er

al
 P

er
m

it 
sh

al
l b

e 
pr

oc
es

se
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e
w

ith
 th

e 
ru

le
s f

ou
nd

 in
 A

D
EM

 A
dm

in
. C

od
e 

ch
. 3

35
-6

-6
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 to
 in

di
vi

du
al

 p
er

m
its

.
2.

A
ny

 p
er

so
n 

m
ay

 p
et

iti
on

 th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 fo
r w

ith
dr

aw
al

 o
f t

hi
s G

en
er

al
 P

er
m

it 
au

th
or

ity
 fr

om
 a

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
r. 

Th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 sh
al

l c
on

si
de

r t
he

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

su
bm

itt
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

pe
tit

io
ne

r a
nd

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
he

 m
ay

 b
e 

aw
ar

e 
of

 a
nd

 m
ay

 o
bt

ai
n 

ad
di

tio
na

l i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
fr

om
 th

e 
di

sc
ha

rg
er

 a
nd

 th
ro

ug
h

in
sp

ec
tio

ns
 b

y 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t s
ta

ff
 a

nd
 sh

al
l d

ec
id

e 
if 

co
ve

ra
ge

 sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
w

ith
dr

aw
n.

 T
he

 p
et

iti
on

er
 sh

al
l b

e 
in

fo
rm

ed
 o

f t
he

 D
ire

ct
or

’s
 d

ec
is

io
n 

an
d 

sh
al

l b
e

pr
ov

id
ed

 a
 su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
co

ns
id

er
ed

.
S.

T
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 C
ov

er
ag

e
Th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 m

ay
 su

sp
en

d 
or

 te
rm

in
at

e 
co

ve
ra

ge
 u

nd
er

 th
is

 p
er

m
it 

fo
r c

au
se

 w
ith

ou
t t

he
 c

on
se

nt
 o

f t
he

 P
er

m
itt

ee
. C

au
se

 sh
al

l i
nc

lu
de

, b
ut

 n
ot

 b
e 

lim
ite

d 
to

no
nc

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

is
 p

er
m

it 
or

 th
e 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f D
ep

ar
tm

en
t r

ul
es

, o
r a

 fi
nd

in
g 

th
at

 th
is

 p
er

m
it 

do
es

 n
ot

 c
on

tro
l t

he
 st

or
m

w
at

er
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

su
ff

ic
ie

nt
ly

 to
 p

ro
te

ct
 w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y.

1.
N

ot
ic

e 
of

 T
er

m
in

at
io

n
Th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 m

us
t s

ub
m

it 
a 

N
ot

ic
e 

of
 T

er
m

in
at

io
n 

(N
O

T)
 in

 a
 fo

rm
at

 a
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

to
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t w
ith

in
 th

irt
y 

(3
0)

 d
ay

s o
f o

ne
 o

f t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g
co

nd
iti

on
s:

(a
)

Fi
na

l s
ta

bi
liz

at
io

n 
as

 d
ef

in
ed

 in
 P

ar
t V

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 o

n 
al

l p
or

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 si

te
;

(b
)

A
no

th
er

 o
pe

ra
to

r h
as

 a
ss

um
ed

 c
on

tro
l o

ve
r a

ll 
ar

ea
s o

f t
he

 si
te

 th
at

 h
av

e 
no

t a
ch

ie
ve

d 
fin

al
 st

ab
ili

za
tio

n 
an

d 
th

e 
ne

w
 o

pe
ra

to
r h

as
 su

bm
itt

ed
 a

n 
N

O
I

fo
r c

ov
er

ag
e 

un
de

r t
hi

s p
er

m
it;

 o
r

(c
)

C
ov

er
ag

e 
un

de
r a

n 
in

di
vi

du
al

 p
er

m
it 

or
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
ge

ne
ra

l p
er

m
it 

ha
s b

ee
n 

ob
ta

in
ed

.
2.

C
on

te
nt

 o
f t

he
 N

ot
ic

e 
of

 T
er

m
in

at
io

n
Th

e 
N

O
T 

sh
al

l i
nc

lu
de

:
(a

)
Th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 n

am
e,

 p
er

m
it 

nu
m

be
r, 

an
d 

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
si

te
; a

nd
(b

)
C

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

by
 th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 a

nd
 th

e 
Q

C
P 

th
at

 a
ll 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

ac
tiv

ity
 c

ov
er

ed
 b

y 
th

is
 p

er
m

it 
ha

s b
ee

n 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 a
nd

 fi
na

l s
ta

bi
liz

at
io

n 
ha

s b
ee

n
ac

hi
ev

ed
; o

r
(c

)
Id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
co

m
pl

et
e 

co
nt

ac
t i

nf
or

m
at

io
n,

 o
f t

he
 p

er
so

n 
th

at
 h

as
 a

ss
um

ed
 le

ga
l o

r o
pe

ra
tio

na
l c

on
tro

l o
ve

r t
he

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
si

te
.

(i)
Lo

ss
 o

f o
pe

ra
tio

na
l c

on
tro

l d
oe

s n
ot

 re
lie

ve
 th

e 
op

er
at

or
 fr

om
 li

ab
ili

ty
 a

nd
 re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

fo
r c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 o
f t

hi
s p

er
m

it 
un

til
 th

e
co

m
pl

et
e 

an
d 

co
rr

ec
t r

eq
ue

st
 fo

r t
er

m
in

at
io

n 
is

 re
ce

iv
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t.

(ii
)

Sa
le

 o
r t

ra
ns

fe
r o

f o
pe

ra
tio

na
l r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
ty

 fo
r t

he
 si

te
 b

y 
th

e 
op

er
at

or
 p

rio
r t

o 
th

e 
su

cc
ee

di
ng

 o
pe

ra
to

r o
bt

ai
ni

ng
 p

er
m

it 
co

ve
ra

ge
 re

qu
ire

d 
by

 th
is

ch
ap

te
r, 

do
es

 n
ot

 re
lie

ve
 th

e 
op

er
at

or
 fr

om
 th

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

to
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
hi

s p
er

m
it

T
.

Fa
ci

lit
y 

Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n
Th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 sh

al
l p

os
t a

nd
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

si
gn

(s
) a

t t
he

 fr
on

t g
at

e/
en

tra
nc

e,
 a

nd
 if

 u
til

ity
 in

st
al

la
tio

n,
 w

he
re

 p
ro

je
ct

 c
ro

ss
es

 p
av

ed
 c

ou
nt

y,
 S

ta
te

, o
r f

ed
er

al
hi

gh
w

ay
s/

ro
ad

s, 
an

d/
or

 a
t o

th
er

 e
as

ily
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
lo

ca
tio

n(
s)

 to
 a

de
qu

at
el

y 
id

en
tif

y 
th

e 
si

te
 p

rio
r t

o 
co

m
m

en
ce

m
en

t o
f a

nd
 d

ur
in

g 
N

PD
ES

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
un

til
pe

rm
it 

co
ve

ra
ge

 is
 p

ro
pe

rly

te
rm

in
at

ed
. S

uc
h 

si
gn

 sh
al

l d
is

pl
ay

 th
e 

na
m

e 
of

 th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

, “
A

D
EM

 N
PD

ES
 A

LR
10

” 
fo

llo
w

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
fiv

e 
di

gi
t N

PD
ES

 p
er

m
it 

nu
m

be
r,

fa
ci

lit
y 

or
 p

ro
je

ct
 n

am
e,

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 d

es
cr

ip
tiv

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
de

em
ed

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 b
y 

th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

.
U

.
Sc

he
du

le
 o

f C
om

pl
ia

nc
e

Th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 sh
al

l a
ch

ie
ve

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

hi
s p

er
m

it 
on

 th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
da

te
 o

f c
ov

er
ag

e 
un

de
r t

hi
s p

er
m

it.
V

.
D

is
ch

ar
ge

 o
f W

as
te

w
at

er
 G

en
er

at
ed

 b
y 

O
th

er
s

Th
e 

di
sc

ha
rg

e 
of

 w
as

te
w

at
er

 g
en

er
at

ed
 b

y 
an

y 
pr

oc
es

s, 
fa

ci
lit

y,
 o

r b
y 

an
y 

ot
he

r m
ea

ns
 n

ot
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

op
er

at
io

na
l c

on
tro

l o
f t

he
 P

er
m

itt
ee

 o
r n

ot
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 th

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
fo

r t
hi

s p
er

m
it 

or
 n

ot
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 in

 th
e 

de
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 a
n 

ou
tfa

ll 
in

 th
is

 p
er

m
it 

is 
no

t a
ut

ho
riz

ed
 b

y 
th

is
pe

rm
it 

ex
ce

pt
 a

s a
llo

w
ed

 b
y 

Pa
rt 

I.
W

.
C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 W

at
er

 Q
ua

lit
y 

St
an

da
rd

s a
nd

 O
th

er
 P

ro
vi

si
on

s
1.

O
n 

th
e 

ba
si

s o
f t

he
 P

er
m

itt
ee

's 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n,
 p

la
ns

, o
r o

th
er

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n,
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t h
as

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 th
at

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e

te
rm

s a
nd

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 o

f t
hi

s P
er

m
it 

w
ill

 a
ss

ur
e 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

st
an

da
rd

s. 
H

ow
ev

er
, t

hi
s P

er
m

it 
do

es
 n

ot
 re

lie
ve

 th
e

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 fr
om

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 S

ta
te

 w
at

er
 q

ua
lit

y 
st

an
da

rd
s e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
in

 A
D

EM
 A

dm
in

. C
od

e 
ch

. 3
35

-6
-1

0,
 a

nd
 d

oe
s n

ot
 p

re
cl

ud
e

th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t f

ro
m

 ta
ki

ng
 a

ct
io

n 
as

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 to
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 c

on
tra

ve
nt

io
n 

of
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 S
ta

te
 w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

sta
nd

ar
ds

 w
hi

ch
co

ul
d 

re
su

lt 
fr

om
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

s o
f p

ol
lu

ta
nt

s f
ro

m
 th

e 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 fa

ci
lit

y.
2.

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 P
er

m
it 

te
rm

s a
nd

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 n

ot
w

ith
st

an
di

ng
, i

f t
he

 P
er

m
itt

ee
's 

di
sc

ha
rg

e(
s)

 c
au

se
(s

) o
r c

on
tri

bu
te

(s
) t

o 
a 

co
nd

iti
on

 in
co

nt
ra

ve
nt

io
n 

of
 S

ta
te

 w
at

er
 q

ua
lit

y 
st

an
da

rd
s, 

th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t m

ay
 re

qu
ire

 a
ba

te
m

en
t a

ct
io

n 
to

 b
e 

ta
ke

n 
by

 th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

, m
od

ify
 th

e 
Pe

rm
it

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t's
 ru

le
s a

nd
re

gu
la

tio
ns

, o
r b

ot
h.

3.
If

 th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t d

et
er

m
in

es
, o

n 
th

e 
ba

si
s o

f a
ny

 in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n,
 in

sp
ec

tio
n,

 o
r s

am
pl

in
g,

 th
at

 a
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
of

 th
is

 P
er

m
it 

is
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 to
as

su
re

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

st
an

da
rd

s o
r c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s o

f t
he

 A
W

PC
A

 o
r F

W
PC

A
, t

he
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t m
ay

 re
qu

ire
 su

ch
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
an

d,
 in

 c
as

es
 o

f e
m

er
ge

nc
y,

 th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 m
ay

 p
ro

hi
bi

t t
he

 n
ot

ic
ed

 a
ct

 u
nt

il 
th

e 
Pe

rm
it 

ha
s b

ee
n 

m
od

ifi
ed

.
X

.
C

iv
il 

an
d 

C
ri

m
in

al
 L

ia
bi

lit
y

1.
Ta

m
pe

rin
g:

 A
ny

 p
er

so
n 

w
ho

 fa
ls

ifi
es

, t
am

pe
rs

 w
ith

, o
r k

no
w

in
gl

y 
re

nd
er

s i
na

cc
ur

at
e 

an
y 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
de

vi
ce

 o
r m

et
ho

d 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 b
e

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

or
 p

er
fo

rm
ed

 u
nd

er
 th

is
 P

er
m

it 
sh

al
l, 

up
on

 c
on

vi
ct

io
n,

 b
e 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
pe

na
lti

es
 a

nd
/o

r i
m

pr
is

on
m

en
t a

s p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 th
e 

A
W

PC
A

an
d/

or
 th

e 
A

EM
A

.
2.

Fa
ls

e 
St

at
em

en
ts

: A
ny

 p
er

so
n 

w
ho

 k
no

w
in

gl
y 

m
ak

es
 a

ny
 fa

ls
e 

st
at

em
en

t, 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n,

 o
r c

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

in
 a

ny
 re

co
rd

 o
r o

th
er

 d
oc

um
en

t
su

bm
itt

ed
 o

r r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 b
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

un
de

r t
hi

s P
er

m
it,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

re
po

rts
 o

r r
ep

or
ts

 o
f c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
or

 n
on

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

sh
al

l, 
up

on
co

nv
ic

tio
n,

 b
e 

pu
ni

sh
ed

 a
s p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 S
ta

te
 a

nd
 F

ed
er

al
 la

w
.

3.
Pe

rm
it 

En
fo

rc
em

en
t: 

Th
is

 N
PD

ES
 P

er
m

it 
is

 a
 P

er
m

it 
fo

r t
he

 p
ur

po
se

 o
f t

he
 A

W
PC

A
, t

he
 A

EM
A

, a
nd

 th
e 

FW
PC

A
, a

nd
 a

s s
uc

h 
al

l t
er

m
s,

co
nd

iti
on

s, 
or

 li
m

ita
tio

ns
 o

f t
hi

s P
er

m
it 

ar
e 

en
fo

rc
ea

bl
e 

un
de

r S
ta

te
 a

nd
 F

ed
er

al
 la

w
.

4.
R

el
ie

f F
ro

m
 L

ia
bi

lit
y:

 E
xc

ep
t a

s p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 P
ar

t I
V

.M
. (

B
yp

as
s)

 a
nd

 P
ar

t I
V

.N
. (

U
ps

et
), 

no
th

in
g 

in
 th

is
 P

er
m

it 
sh

al
l b

e 
co

ns
tru

ed
 to

re
lie

ve
 th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 o

f c
iv

il 
or

 c
rim

in
al

 li
ab

ili
ty

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
A

W
PC

A
, A

EM
A

, o
r F

W
PC

A
 fo

r n
on

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 a
ny

 te
rm

 o
r c

on
di

tio
n 

of
 th

is
Pe

rm
it.

Y
.

O
il 

an
d 

H
az

ar
do

us
 S

ub
st

an
ce

 L
ia

bi
lit

y
N

ot
hi

ng
 in

 th
is

 P
er

m
it 

sh
al

l b
e 

co
ns

tru
ed

 to
 p

re
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

in
st

itu
tio

n 
of

 a
ny

 le
ga

l a
ct

io
n 

or
 re

lie
ve

 th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 fr
om

 a
ny

 re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s,

lia
bi

lit
ie

s, 
or

 p
en

al
tie

s t
o 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 is

 o
r m

ay
 b

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

un
de

r S
ec

tio
n 

31
1 

of
 th

e 
FW

PC
A

, 3
3 

U
.S

.C
. §

13
21

.

K
no

w
 w

ha
t's

 b
el

ow
C

al
l b

ef
or

e 
yo

u 
di

g.
D

ia
l 8

11
O

r 
C

al
l 8

00
-2

82
-7

41
1



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2901



S
O

IL
 N

A
M

E

S
O

IL
 L

E
G

E
N

D

H
Y

D
R

O
LO

G
IC

 S
O

IL
 G

R
O

U
P

B
H

O
LS

T
O

N
-U

R
B

A
N

 L
A

N
D

 C
O

M
P

LE
X

 2
 T

O
 8

P
E

R
C

E
N

T
 S

LO
P

E
S

K
no

w
 w

ha
t's

 b
el

ow
C

al
l b

ef
or

e 
yo

u 
di

g.
D

ia
l 8

11
O

r 
C

al
l 8

00
-2

82
-7

41
1



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2901



K
no

w
 w

ha
t's

 b
el

ow
C

al
l b

ef
or

e 
yo

u 
di

g.
D

ia
l 8

11
O

r 
C

al
l 8

00
-2

82
-7

41
1



- 
F

E
R

T
IL

IZ
E

R
:

  S
po

t s
ee

di
ng

 c
an

 b
e 

do
ne

 o
n 

sm
al

l a
re

as
 to

 fi
ll 

in
 b

ar
e 

sp
ot

s 
w

he
re

 g
ra

ss
 d

id
 n

ot
 g

ro
w

 

  I
f t

he
 s

ee
de

d 
ar

ea
 is

 d
am

ag
ed

 d
ue

 to
 r

un
of

f, 
ad

di
tio

na
l s

to
rm

w
at

er
 m

ea
su

re
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

ne
ed

ed
. 

  N
ew

ly
 s

ee
de

d 
ar

ea
s 

ne
ed

 to
 b

e 
in

sp
ec

te
d 

fr
eq

ue
nt

ly
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

gr
as

s 
is

 g
ro

w
in

g.
 

  A
pp

ly
 m

ul
ch

 o
r 

er
os

io
n 

co
nt

ro
l b

la
nk

et
, a

s 
sp

ec
ifi

ed
, o

ve
r 

th
e 

se
ed

ed
 a

re
as

. I
ns

pe
ct

io
n 

an
d 

  A
pp

ly
 fe

rt
ili

ze
r 

as
 s

pe
ci

fie
d.

th
en

 li
gh

tly
 c

om
pa

ct
ed

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 g

oo
d 

se
ed

-s
oi

l c
on

ta
ct

.

  B
ro

ad
ca

st
 s

ee
d 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

to
 th

e 
so

il 
by

 r
ak

in
g 

or
 c

ha
in

 d
ra

gg
in

g,
 a

nd

m
ec

ha
ni

ca
l d

ril
ls

, o
r 

hy
dr

os
ee

de
r 

so
 th

e 
se

ed
 is

 a
pp

lie
d 

un
ifo

rm
ly

 o
n 

th
e 

si
te

  A
pp

ly
 s

ee
d 

at
 th

e 
ra

te
s 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

 u
si

ng
 c

al
ib

ra
te

d 
se

ed
 s

pr
ea

de
rs

, c
yc

lo
ne

 s
ee

de
rs

,

  A
lw

ay
s 

ap
pl

y 
se

ed
 b

ef
or

e 
ap

pl
yi

ng
 m

ul
ch

. 

S
ee

d 
to

 s
oi

l c
on

ta
ct

 is
 th

e 
ke

y 
to

 g
oo

d 
ge

rm
in

at
io

n.

  H
ar

ro
w

in
g,

 tr
ac

ki
ng

 o
r 

fu
rr

ow
in

g 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

do
ne

 h
or

iz
on

ta
lly

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

fa
ce

 o
f t

he
 s

lo
pe

. 

eq
ui

pm
en

t d
es

ig
ne

d 
to

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 th

e 
so

il 
fo

r 
se

ed
in

g.
 

to
ps

oi
l s

ho
ul

d 
be

 h
ar

ro
w

ed
 w

ith
 a

 d
is

k,
 s

pr
in

g 
to

ot
h 

dr
ag

, s
pi

ke
 to

ot
h 

dr
ag

, o
r 

ot
he

r

m
oi

st
. I

f t
he

 s
ee

db
ed

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
id

le
 lo

ng
 e

no
ug

h 
fo

r 
th

e 
so

il 
to

 b
ec

om
e 

co
m

pa
ct

, t
he

  S
ee

d 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 a
fte

r 
se

ed
be

d 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 
w

hi
le

 th
e 

so
il 

is
 lo

os
e 

an
d

  S
ee

d 
to

 s
oi

l c
on

ta
ct

 is
 th

e 
ke

y 
to

 g
oo

d 
ge

rm
in

at
io

n.

cr
os

s 
se

ct
io

ns
 s

ho
w

n 
on

 th
e 

gr
ad

in
g 

pl
an

s.
 

  T
he

 to
ps

oi
l s

ur
fa

ce
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 in
 r

ea
so

na
bl

y 
cl

os
e 

co
nf

or
m

ity
 to

 th
e 

lin
es

, g
ra

de
s 

an
d

lo
os

e,
 m

oi
st

 a
nd

 fr
ee

 o
f l

ar
ge

 c
lo

ds
 a

nd
 s

to
ne

s.
  

  T
he

 s
ee

db
ed

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 fi

rm
 b

ut
 n

ot
 c

om
pa

ct
.  

T
he

 to
p 

th
re

e 
in

ch
es

 o
f s

oi
l s

ho
ul

d 
be

  P
re

pa
re

 a
 3

-5
 in

ch
 (

76
-1

27
 m

m
) 

de
ep

 s
ee

db
ed

, w
ith

 th
e 

to
p 

3-
4 

in
ch

es
 (

76
-1

02
 m

m
)

  A
pp

ly
 a

m
en

dm
en

ts
 a

s 
ne

ed
ed

 to
 a

dj
us

t p
H

 to
 6

.0
-7

.5
.  

In
co

rp
or

at
e 

th
es

e 
am

en
dm

en
ts

tr
ac

ki
ng

, g
ro

ov
in

g 
or

 fu
rr

ow
in

g.

  C
on

du
ct

 s
oi

l t
es

t t
o 

de
te

rm
in

e 
pH

 a
nd

 n
ut

rie
nt

 c
on

te
nt

.  
R

ou
gh

en
 th

e 
so

il 
by

 h
ar

ro
w

in
g,

 

  D
iv

er
t c

on
ce

nt
ra

te
d 

flo
w

s 
aw

ay
 fr

om
 th

e 
se

ed
ed

 a
re

a.
 

  B
rin

g 
th

e 
pl

an
tin

g 
ar

ea
 to

 fi
na

l g
ra

de
 a

nd
 in

st
al

l t
he

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 e

ro
si

on
 c

on
tr

ol
 p

ra
ct

ic
es

. 

  U
se

 s
ee

d 
ra

te
s 

ba
se

d 
on

 p
ur

e 
liv

e 
se

ed
 (

P
LS

) 
of

 8
0%

.  
W

he
n 

P
LS

 is
 b

el
ow

 8
0%

  U
se

 a
 s

ee
d 

bl
en

d 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

an
nu

al
s,

 p
er

en
ni

al
s 

an
d 

le
gu

m
es

.

  C
on

su
lt 

lo
ca

l a
gr

on
om

is
t o

r 
er

os
io

n 
co

nt
ro

l s
pe

ci
al

is
ts

 fo
r 

se
ed

 m
ix

.

  U
se

 s
ee

ds
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 to

 th
e 

se
as

on
 a

nd
 s

ite
 c

on
di

tio
ns

.

  U
se

 d
or

m
an

t s
ee

di
ng

 fo
r 

la
te

 fa
ll 

or
 w

in
te

r 
se

ed
in

g 
sc

he
du

le
s.

 

  A
pp

ly
 p

er
m

an
en

t s
ee

di
ng

 b
ef

or
e 

se
as

on
al

 r
ai

ns
 o

r 
fr

ee
zi

ng
 w

ea
th

er
 is

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

. 

  T
o 

de
te

rm
in

e 
op

tim
um

 s
ee

di
ng

 s
ch

ed
ul

e,
 c

on
su

lt 
a 

lo
ca

l a
gr

on
om

is
t o

r 
er

os
io

n 
co

nt
ro

l 

  A
pp

ly
 p

er
m

an
en

t s
ee

di
ng

 w
he

n 
no

 fu
rt

he
r 

di
st

ur
ba

nc
es

 a
re

 p
la

nn
ed

. 

  A
pp

ly
 p

er
m

an
en

t s
ee

di
ng

 o
n 

ar
ea

s 
le

ft 
do

rm
an

t f
or

 1
 y

ea
r 

or
 m

or
e.

 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
S

pe
ci

fic
at

io
ns

:

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

:

pr
op

er
ly

.

P
la

nt
in

g:

co
ns

is
tin

g 
of

 to
ps

oi
l.

in
to

 th
e 

so
il.

S
ite

 P
re

pa
ra

tio
n:

ad
ju

st
 r

at
es

 a
cc

or
di

ng
ly

.

S
ee

d 
M

ix
es

:

sp
ec

ia
lis

t. 

T
im

in
g:

N
.T

.S
.

N
O

TE
S:

“
”

N
.T

.S
.

R
O

U
N

D
 F

R
A

M
E 

&
 F

IL
TE

R
 A

SS
EM

B
LY

M
od

el
 #

 R
-1

00
A

N
.T

.S
.

N
.T

.S
.

C
on

cr
et

e 
W

as
ho

ut
 A

re
a 

In
st

al
la

tio
n 

N
ot

es
1.

  S
ee

 p
la

n 
vi

ew
 fo

r 
lo

ca
tio

ns
 o

f c
on

cr
et

e 
w

as
ho

ut
 a

re
a.

2.
  T

he
 c

on
cr

et
e 

w
as

ho
ut

 a
re

a 
sh

al
l b

e 
in

st
al

le
d 

pr
io

r 
to

 a
ny

 c
on

cr
et

e 
pl

ac
em

en
t o

n 
si

te
 o

r 
on

 th
e

pr
oj

ec
t.

3.
  V

eh
ic

le
 tr

ac
ki

ng
 c

on
tr

ol
 is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
at

 th
e 

ac
ce

ss
 p

oi
nt

.
4.

  S
ig

ns
 s

ha
ll 

be
 p

la
ce

d 
at

 th
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

en
tr

an
ce

, a
t t

he
 w

as
ho

ut
 a

re
a,

 a
nd

 e
ls

ew
he

re
 a

s
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

to
 c

le
ar

ly
 in

di
ca

te
 th

e 
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

co
nc

re
te

 w
as

ho
ut

 a
re

a 
to

 o
pe

ra
to

rs
 o

f c
on

cr
et

e 
tr

uc
ks

an
d 

pu
m

p 
rig

s.
5.

  E
xc

av
at

ed
 m

at
er

ia
l s

ha
ll 

be
 u

til
iz

ed
 in

 th
e 

pe
rim

et
er

 b
er

m
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n.

6.
  P

or
ta

bl
e 

co
nc

re
te

 w
as

ho
ut

s 
ar

e 
ac

ce
pt

ed
 a

s 
an

 a
lte

rn
at

e 
so

lu
tio

n 
to

 h
av

in
g 

a 
pe

rm
an

en
t s

tr
uc

tu
re

.
C

on
cr

et
e 

W
as

ho
ut

 A
re

a 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 N

ot
es

1.
  T

he
 c

on
cr

et
e 

w
as

ho
ut

 a
re

a 
sh

al
l b

e 
re

pa
ire

d 
an

d 
en

la
rg

ed
 o

r 
cl

ea
ne

d 
ou

t a
s 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n
ca

pa
ci

ty
 fo

r 
w

as
te

d 
co

nc
re

te
.

2.
  A

t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n,

 a
ll 

co
nc

re
te

 s
ha

ll 
be

 r
em

ov
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

si
te

 a
nd

 d
is

po
se

d 
of

 a
t a

n
ap

pr
ov

ed
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 la

nd
fil

l b
y 

th
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

or
.

3.
  W

he
n 

th
e 

co
nc

re
te

 w
as

ho
ut

 a
re

a 
is

 r
em

ov
ed

, c
ov

er
 th

e 
di

st
ur

be
d 

ar
e 

w
ith

 c
le

an
 to

ps
oi

l, 
se

ed
 a

nd
m

ul
ch

.

N
.T

.S
.

N
.T

.S
.

N
.T

.S
.

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2901





U
T

IL
IT

Y
 L

E
G

E
N

D













































































































































































1.
T

R
A

F
F

IC
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L 

D
E

V
IC

E
S

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 U
T

IL
IZ

E
D

 IN
 A

C
C

O
R

D
A

N
C

E
 W

IT
H

 T
H

E
 N

A
T

IO
N

A
L

M
A

N
U

A
L 

O
N

 U
N

IF
O

R
M

 T
R

A
F

F
IC

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L 
D

E
V

IC
E

S
 F

O
R

 S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 A

N
D

 H
IG

H
W

A
Y

S
.

D
E

V
IC

E
S

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 IM
P

LE
M

E
N

T
E

D
 F

O
LL

O
W

IN
G

 T
H

E
 S

T
A

T
E

'S
 D

E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
 O

F
T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

A
T

IO
N

 G
U

ID
E

LI
N

E
S

 A
N

D
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
M

E
N

T
S

.

B
W

W
B

 N
O

TE
S:

1.
A

LL
 F

IR
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
: B

irm
in

gh
am

 W
at

er
 W

or
ks

 B
oa

rd
 w

ill
 in

st
al

l t
ap

pi
ng

 s
le

ev
e 

an
d 

va
lv

e.
  A

 D
ev

el
op

er
In

st
al

l c
on

tr
ac

to
r 

m
us

t b
e 

hi
re

d 
to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
A

LL
 d

ig
gi

n 
an

d 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
up

 to
 a

nd
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

m
ag

ne
tic

flo
w

 m
et

er
 v

au
lts

.
2.

T
he

 W
at

er
 B

oa
rd

 c
on

du
ct

s 
fu

ll 
in

st
al

ls
 o

n 
4”

 a
nd

 la
rg

er
 d

om
es

tic
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

3.
D

om
es

tic
 s

er
vi

ce
 a

nd
/o

r 
fir

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
ba

ck
flo

w
 p

re
ve

nt
er

 a
ss

em
bl

y 
m

us
t b

e 
in

st
al

le
d 

ou
ts

id
e 

th
e 

fa
ci

lit
y.

T
he

 B
ac

kf
lo

w
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t w
ill

 r
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 e
va

lu
at

e 
sp

ec
ia

l c
on

di
tio

ns
 o

n 
a 

ca
se

 b
y 

ca
se

 b
as

is
.

4.
T

he
 c

us
to

m
er

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r 

ki
lli

ng
 A

LL
 e

xi
st

in
g 

an
d 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 th

e 
pr

op
er

ty
si

m
ul

ta
ne

ou
sl

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 a
ny

 n
ew

 s
er

vi
ce

 c
on

ne
ct

io
ns

 b
y 

th
e 

W
at

er
 B

oa
rd

.  
  A

ny
 e

xi
st

in
g

an
d 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

m
us

t b
e 

ki
lle

d 
at

 th
e 

m
ai

n 
an

d 
in

sp
ec

te
d 

by
 B

W
W

B
 p

er
so

nn
el

 b
ef

or
e 

th
e 

ne
w

se
rv

ic
e(

s)
 w

ill
 b

e 
ac

tiv
at

ed
. A

ny
 e

xi
st

in
g 

se
rv

ic
e 

to
 b

e 
re

us
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

cu
st

om
er

 m
us

t b
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

th
e

w
at

er
 B

oa
rd

's
 M

et
er

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t a

nd
 b

ro
ug

ht
 u

p 
to

 c
ur

re
nt

 W
at

er
 B

oa
rd

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
  

N
O

 E
XC

EP
TI

O
N

S.
5.

T
he

 d
om

es
tic

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
nd

/o
r 

fir
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

ba
ck

flo
w

 p
re

ve
nt

er
 a

ss
em

bl
y 

m
us

t N
O

T
 B

E
 IN

S
T

A
LL

E
D

 u
nt

il 
th

e
m

ag
ne

tic
 fl

ow
 m

et
er

 a
ss

em
bl

y 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
is

 c
om

pl
et

e.
  

T
he

 c
us

to
m

er
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 r
em

ov
e 

an
y

ba
ck

flo
w

 p
re

ve
nt

er
 a

ss
em

bl
y 

in
 c

on
fli

ct
 w

ith
 th

e 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 a
 m

ag
ne

tic
 fl

ow
 m

et
er

 a
ss

em
bl

y 
(n

o
ex

ce
pt

io
ns

).
  

A
ny

 c
os

t a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
m

ov
al

 a
nd

 re
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 a
 b

ac
kf

lo
w

 p
re

ve
nt

er
as

se
m

bl
y 

w
ill

 b
e 

in
cu

rr
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

cu
st

om
er

 a
nd

 n
ot

 th
e 

W
at

er
 B

oa
rd

.
6.

T
he

 fi
re

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
nd

/o
r 

do
m

es
tic

 s
er

vi
ce

 m
ag

ne
tic

 fl
ow

 m
et

er
 v

au
lts

 m
us

t h
av

e 
lo

ca
tio

n 
A

N
D

 e
le

va
tio

n
st

ak
es

 m
ar

ke
d 

on
 s

ite
 b

ef
or

e 
B

W
W

B
 w

ill
 m

ak
e 

th
e 

ta
p 

an
d 

se
t t

he
 v

au
lt(

s)
. T

he
 o

w
ne

r 
or

 h
is

/h
er

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e 
M

U
ST

 s
ig

n 
th

e 
B

W
W

B
 fo

rm
 th

at
 s

ta
te

s 
th

e 
va

ul
ts

 a
re

 s
et

 a
t t

he
 p

ro
pe

r 
lo

ca
tio

n 
an

d
el

ev
at

io
n.

 A
ny

 c
os

t a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
m

ov
al

 a
nd

 re
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 a
 m

ag
ne

tic
 fl

ow
 m

et
er

 v
au

lt
w

ill
 b

e 
in

cu
rr

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
cu

st
om

er
 a

nd
 n

ot
 th

e 
W

at
er

 B
oa

rd
.

7.
B

W
W

B
 w

ill
 N

O
T 

m
ak

e 
an

y 
fie

ld
 c

ha
ng

es
 o

nc
e 

th
e 

dr
aw

in
g 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 B
W

W
B

 p
er

so
nn

el
. I

f a
fie

ld
 c

ha
ng

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d,
 y

ou
 m

us
t s

ub
m

it 
a 

ne
w

 d
ra

w
in

g 
to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 p

ro
je

ct
 c

oo
rd

in
at

or
 in

 S
ys

te
m

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t v
ia

 e
m

ai
l a

nd
 r

es
ch

ed
ul

e 
yo

ur
 ta

p.
 N

O
 E

XC
EP

TI
O

N
S.

K
no

w
 w

ha
t's

 b
el

ow
C

al
l b

ef
or

e 
yo

u 
di

g.
D

ia
l 8

11
O

r 
C

al
l 8

00
-2

82
-7

41
1



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2901


	Agenda
	2019_1113CC_M
	2019_1118_CC_work session
	2019_1125_CC_work session
	2019_1125CC_M
	2019_1126CC_work session
	Resolution 5208
	Resolution 5209
	Resolution 5210
	Resolution 5211
	Resolution 5214
	Resolution 5215
	Ordinance 2903
	Resolution 5212
	Resolution 5213
	Ordinance 2900
	Ordinance 2901



